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FOREWORD

The Statutes of the University of Ghana highlights in Statute 8 (1) that “the University shall be managed
and administered in accordance with sound and internationally acceptable practices, benchmarks,
principles and ideas on university management and administration including the principles of aca-
demic and financial integrity, confidentiality, accountability, transparency, fairness and equality of
opportunity.”

Accordingly, to conduct its business effectively, the University of Ghana ensures that it has sound
financial management systems in place and that they are strictly adhered to. Part of this process is
the establishment of the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy which set out the University of
Ghana’s policies and procedures relating to financial management, control and reporting.

These Regulations are made by Council pursuant to its powers under Statute 53 of the Statutes of the
University of Ghana. The purpose of the Regulations is to provide a framework and guidelines to ensure
control over the totality of the University’s resources and provide management and stakeholders with
assurances that the resources are properly applied for the achievement of the University’s Vision and
Mission. The basic principles to be applied are:

i. Ensuring financial viability;

ii. Achieving value for money;

iii. Fulfilling the University’s responsibility for the provision of effective financial
management of public funds;

iv. Ensuring that the University complies with all relevant legislation; and

v. Safeguarding the assets of the University.

The Council of the University has approved these Financial Regulations and Governance Policy and
wishes to inform all employees of its existence and application in all relevant matters.

All officers and Universities bodies shall in accordance with the policy decisions of the Council, manage
and administer the affairs of the University in their various capacities in strict adherence to these
Financial Regulations and Governance Policy. Thus, any employee who contravenes these Regulations
will be considered to be in breach of their duties towards the University and Council and will be con-
sidered open for disciplinary action to be taken against them. This will also apply to employees who are
aware of deliberate deviations from these regulations by others and become complicit by not reporting
their concerns or knowledge to the relevant University Authorities or any member of Council.

Professor Ebenezer Oduro Owusu
Vice-Chancellor, University of Ghana
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1.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Introduction

The University of Ghana was established under the provisions of the University of Ghana Act, 1961 (Act
79) now repealed and replaced with the University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806).

The University is regulated by the University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806) and the Statutes of the
University of Ghana, as amended by the amendment Statutes of 2016 as well as other national laws
such as are referred to in these regulations. Its financial governance structure is laid down in Act 806
as referenced in paragraph 2.0 below.

The University is obliged to have in place sound systems of financial and management control. The
principles of financial and management controls are set out within the Governance Structure and the
Financial Regulations and Governance Policy. The Financial Regulations and Governance Policy are
supported by detailed procedures that set out the operational application of these principles.

The Financial Regulations and Governance Policy contain policies relating to the financial operations
of the University of Ghana. They are published through the Office of the Director of Finance which is
responsible for the financial operation, implementation of fiscal policies and control of the finances
of the University of Ghana.

The Financial Regulations and Governance Policy contained herein have been assembled with refer-

ence to the following:

1. The codification of the existing Financial and Stores Regulations and current practices of the
University of Ghana;
The University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806);

3. The Statutes of the University of Ghana as amended by the amendment Statutes of 2016;

4. National Laws that relate to the Financial Administration of the University, including:

The Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921)

Public Financial Management Regulations, 2019 (LI 2378)

Ministries, Departments and Agencies (Retention of Funds) Act, 2007 (Act 735)

The Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) and the Public Procurement

(Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914)

The Internal Audit Agency Act, 2003 (Act 658)

The Audit Service Act, 2000 (Act 584)

Fair Wages and Salaries Commission Act, 2007 (Act 737)

The National Pensions Act, 2008 (Act 766) and the National Pensions Amendment

Act, 2014 (Act 883).

SR

B o ™o

5. Policy statements incorporated from previously issued memoranda; and
6. Best practices in other Universities
7. International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

Page | 01
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The Financial Regulations and Governance Policy apply to the University of Ghana and all its trans-
actions, projects and undertakings, and all funds (irrespective of their source’) passing through the
University’s Accounts. All members of the University are required to comply with these Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy for the time-period they are in force. These include all employees,
students and all associated individuals.

1.2

1.3

ii.

1i1.

iv.

vi.

i1.

iil.

Status of the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy

These Regulations are made by Council pursuant to its powers under Statute 53 of the Statutes
of the University of Ghana, and it is purposed to provide a framework and guidelines to
ensure control over the totality of the University’s resources and provide management and
stakeholders with assurances that the resources are properly applied for the achievement of
the University’s Vision and Mission.

It is the responsibility of the Director of Finance to ensure that all employees have access to
these Financial Regulations and Governance Policy, and it is the responsibility of all employees
to ensure that they comply with the provisions therein.

The Finance and General Purposes Committee is responsible for maintaining a continuous
review of the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy, on the advice of the Directors of
Finance and Internal Audit, and the Legal Counsel, subject to the approval of the Council.

Where there is any doubt or question about the interpretation of any of the provisions con-
tained herein, an application by way of an appeal against the decision of the Council or any
decision making body of the University relying on such interpretation may be brought before
the Appeals Board established under section 32 of Act 806.

An action required by the Vice Chancellor, the Registrar, the Director of Finance and/or
Provosts/Deans/Directors, under this Policy, may be delegated, in writing, to an appropriate
nominee. All relevant Officers including Pro-Vice-Chancellors, Provosts, Registrar, Director
of Finance, Legal Counsel, Director of Internal Audit must be informed of such delegation in
writing and must be recorded by the Registrar and Director of Finance, but such delegated
authority shall not survive the retirement or expiration of the term of office of the grantor

of the authority.

A breach of any provision of this Financial Regulations and Governance Policy may result in
disciplinary action against the individual.

Approvals and Amendments

The Council may approve the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy on the recom-
mendation of the University’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.

The Finance and General Purposes Committee shall review the Financial Regulations and
Governance Policy, at least on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee will be consulted on amendments to the Financial Regulations and
Governance Policy

" Where the conditions attached to the Funds are not inconsistent with the University of Ghana Act and other Regulations.
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1.4. Commencement

This Financial Regulation and Governance Policy referred to as the University of Ghana Financial
Regulation and Governance Policy, 2020, takes effect from the 15th day of December 2020.

1.5 Repeal and Savings

The University of Ghana Financial Regulation and Governance, 2012 is hereby repealed.

Despite the repeal of the Financial Regulation and Governance, all notices, orders, directions, appoint-
ments, transactions, contracts, policies, instructions or guidelines or any other act lawfully made or
done under the repealed Financial Regulation and Governance, 2012, not being inconsistent with this
Policy, shall continue in force as if made or done under this Policy and shall continue to have effect
until reviewed, cancelled, or terminated.

2.0 FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

2.1. The University Council

The University Council is responsible for the governance and financial management of the
University. The responsibilities of the University Council shall be to:

i. formulate in consultation with relevant bodies, the strategic vision and mission, long term
academic and business plans and key performance indicators of the University;

ii. promote income generation activities for the operation of the University as part of the
University’s programme;

iii. establish standing and ad hoc committees for the finances of the University

iv. control the property, funds and investments of the University and may, on behalf of the
University, sell, buy, exchange, lease and accept leases of such property;

v. borrow money on behalf of the University and use the property of the University as secu-

rity;

vi. control the finances of the University and determine any question of finance arising out of the
administration of the University or the execution of its policy or in the execution of a Trust
requiring execution by the University;

vil. determine the allocation of the funds at the disposal of the University; and in so doing, the
recurrent grants shall be made in the form of block grants, unless the Council otherwise
determines, for expenditure by the University on those central activities of the University
for which the University is wholly responsible and for the expenditure of the Units as part of
their general income;

viii. determine annually, the expenditure necessary for capital and revenue investments, the
maintenance of the property of the University, and the human resources for transacting the
business of the University and may appropriate moneys for these purposes; provided that
the University shall not enter into any agreement with financial commitment that binds the
Government for more than one financial year or that results in a contingent liability except
where the financial commitment or the contingent liability (a) is with the prior written
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IX.

xI.

Xii.

approval of the Minister, and (b) authorised by Parliament in accordance with article 181 of
the Constitution under section 33(1) of Act 921;

Pursuant to Section 101(1) of Act 921, ensure that the University complies with any of the
methods for the preparation, evaluation and execution of investment projects to which sec-
tion 33 of Act 921 applies, including but not limited to the Expenditure ceiling provided under
sections 25 of Act 921 and regulations 16-20 of the Public Financial Management Regulation,
LI 2378, 2.019.

prescribe the manner and form in which, and the times at which Units of the University
shall submit accounts or estimates of income and expenditure.

act as trustee for any property, legacy, endowment, bequest, device or gift made to or belong-
ing to the University or any of its’ Units.

determine student fees.

xiii.ensure the University complies with the Government’s audit code of practice.

xiv.appoint or remove, terminate, dismiss, suspend and interdict a Vice-Chancellor, Pro-Vice-

XV.

Chancellor, Provost, Registrar, Dean, Director, Legal Counsel, Deputy Registrar and a Professor

upon proven just cause.

appoint and remove directors of subsidiary companies, joint ventures and  trustees of
trusts of the University.

xvi. appoint external auditors.

XVil.

XVIil.

approve the annual financial statements.

approve and authorize the opening and closing of bank accounts; and

2.2 The Vice-Chancellor

The Vice-Chancellor being the Chief Executive Officer and the senior administrative head of the
University is the Principal Spending Officer of the University as conferred on him or her by section 7
of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921) and shall be responsible as follows:

ii.

1i1.

1v.

Page | 04

be responsible for driving the overall growth and development of the University under the
direction of the Council and shall have overall authority over academic, financial and admin-
istrative controls.

being the Chairperson of the Academic Board, shall make a report to Convocation about the
Management of the University, state of the University and future plans of the University.

determine the authority limits for the use of finances of the University.

submit annually to the Council, a statement of the financial and human resource requirements
which in his opinion are necessary for the effective conduct of the business of the University,
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v. for internal approval, and the management of budgets and resources, within the estimates
approved by the Council.

vi. authorizing commitments for the covered entity (the University) and managing the resources
received, held, or disposed of by or on account of the University.

vii. delegate a financial function or responsibility in writing to a public officer of the University
who is under the control of the Vice-Chancellor, however, the Vice-Chancellor shall not be
relieved of the ultimate responsibility and liability for the performance of the delegated
function or responsibility.

viii. advise the Council and Academic Board on matters affecting policy, finance, governance and
administration of the University.

ix. report to the Council on the financial management of the University at its regular
meetings on the progress and problems of the University.

x. ensure that the University keeps books of accounts and proper record in relation to them in
the form approved by the Auditor-General, the books of accounts opened under the signature
of the Vice-Chancellor and the Director of Finance.

xi. approve all accounting procedures and financial records. Such procedures are to have due
regard for the need to promote probity, integrity and accountability and to any advice pro-
vided from internal and external auditors.

xii. where required, justify any of the University’s financial matters to the Public Accounts
Committee of Parliament.

xiii.ensure compliance with the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) and the Public Procurement
(Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) and approve procurement within the levels of authority as
determined in that Act.

xiv. submit annually to the Council, a statement of the financial requirements, which in the Vice-
Chancellor’s opinion are necessary for the effective conduct of the business of the University,
for internal approval, and management of budgets and resources, within the estimates
approved by the Council.

xv. responsible for financial authorization, whether or not directly approved by him or her.

xvi.responsible for any breaches and/or violations of the relevant rules and provisions regard-
ing the proper management of the University’s finances, he or she permits to happen either
willfully or otherwise under Section 102 of Act 921.

xvii. as Principal Spending Officer of the University he is responsible under section 7 (1) & (2) of
the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921) to,
a. ensure the regularity and proper use of money appropriated in that covered entity;
b. authorise commitments for the covered entity within a ceiling set by the Minister
under section 25; and
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c. manage the resources received, held or disposed of by or on account of the University.
d. establish an effective system of risk management, internal control and internal audit
in respect of the resources and transactions of the University.

xviii. as Principal Spending Officer of the University, he is responsible under section 80 (1) of Act
921, to prepare and submit to the Auditor-General and Controller and Accountant-General,
the accounts and information set out in the Schedule to Act 921.

xix. asa Principal Spending Officer of the University, he is responsible under section 85(1) of the
Act 921 to submit to the Minister of finance and Auditor-General on annual basis.

a. areporton the status of implementation of recommendations made by the Auditor-
General in respect of the University); and

b. areporton the status of implementation of recommendations made by Parliament
in respect of the University).

xx. the Vice-Chancellor shall immediately be notified of any matter which involves, or is thought
to involve, irregularities concerning, inter alia, cash or property of the University. The Vice-
Chancellor shall take such steps as he or she considers necessary by way of investigation and
report.

xxi.the Vice-Chancellor shall be assisted by members of Senior Management in the management
and administration of the affairs of the University and shall refer matters concerning the
general administration or management of the University to a meeting of Senior Management
for deliberation and decision.

xxii. a meeting of Senior Management shall be chaired by the Vice-Chancellor and shall be com-
posed of the Pro-Vice-Chancellors, Provosts, Registrar, Director of Finance Directorate, Legal
Counsel, Director of Internal Audit Directorate, Director of Human Resource & Organisational
Development Directorate and Chief Risk Officer. The Vice-Chancellor may invite any other
officer(s) from time to time to be in attendance.

xxiii.a meeting of Senior Management shall be held at least twice a month.

2.3 Committee Structure

The University Council has ultimate responsibility for the University’s finances. Its principal com-
mittees dealing with financial matters are set out below. These committees are accountable to the
University Council.

2.3.1 Finance and General Purposes Committee

To administer the finances and property of the University in accordance with its remit.

i. Insodoing, the Committee will advise the Council on:
the financial health and solvency of the University.

a
b. the safeguarding of the University’s assets.

]

the financial strategy.

o

the medium term financial forecast and the annual budget.
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e. financial issues arising from the annual financial statements.

f. the establishment and dissolution of subsidiary and joint venture companies and trusts
of the University upon the advice of the Legal Counsel.

g. the business plan of, and annual block grant to, the Students’ Union.

h. receive reports from the Resource Allocation Committee for Academic Purposes on recur-
rent estimates of the University.

i. and the formulation of Finance and resource objectives in the operational activities of
the University.

j. maintaining a continuous review of the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy, on
the advice of the Directors of Finance and Internal Audit, and on advising the Council on
any additions or changes necessary.

k. disposal of assets must be in accordance with procedures agreed by the Finance and
General Purposes Committee and contained in the University’s detailed financial proce-
dures under the supervision of the Board of Survey.

. tomonitor and review the financial performance of all University Subsidiary Companies
and Trusts.

ii. The Committee also has delegated authority to:

monitor and evaluate the overall financial performance of the University.

&

ensure that the University remains within the annual financial plan approved by the
Council.
c. ensure that an effective framework for financial management is in place;

d. ensure that there are effective procedures in place for procurement and the approval of
contracts.

e. ensure that funds are applied in accordance with the laws of Ghana and the Universities’
regulations, or similar obligations from other funding bodies.

f. monitor and review the financial performance of the Students’ Representative Council
and the University’s subsidiary companies and trusts.

iii. To serve as the Budget Committee required by regulation 26 of L.I. 2378
iv. To ensure that the University adheres to all the requirements of Act 921 and L.I. 2378.

v. To deal with any other matters referred to it by the Council.

2.3.2 Resource Allocation Committee for Academic Purposes

i. Toreceive the recurrent estimates of programmes and academic development submitted by
Provosts, Deans and Directors.

ii. To consider such capital and recurrent estimates of the University and report on them to the
Finance and General Purposes Committee.

iii. To carry out any other functions as may be referred to it by the Finance and General Purposes
Committee.
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2.3.3. Investment Committee

1. Is responsible for developing the investment policy of the University and shall ensure that
the University’s investments are managed in accordance with the policy and the applicable
laws of Ghana.

ii. Allinvestment activities, be it short or long term, within the University will be in accordance
with the investment policy established by the Committee.

2.3.4. Physical Development and Municipal Services

i. To formulate Development Policies.

ii. To attend to detailed planning with architects and other professionals.

iii. To oversee the progress of major capital works being conducted within the University.

iv. To supervise other non-recurrent development projects of the University.

v. Toadvise on and supervise the expenditure of the University’s capital and development funds.

vi. Tobe responsible under the Finance and General Purposes Committee for the efficient man-
agement of the Estate, Grounds and Gardens and to ensure that the policies and decisions of
the Finance and General Purposes Committee are carried out.

vii. To recommend modifications of policy to the Finance and General Purposes Committee;
viii.To do any other acts and things as may be delegated to it.
ix. To recommend modifications of policy to the Finance and General Purposes Committee;

2.3.5. Strategy Committee
i. Provide overall strategic direction for the University in order to ensure the attainment of its
core objectives.

ii. Ensure coherence in the formulation and implementation of policies and programmes by the
various organs of the University, including the Council.

iii. Review the plans and programmes of the various organs of the University to ensure consis-
tency with the aims and objectives of the University.

2.3.6. Procurement and Tender Committee

i. Review procurement plans in order to ensure that they support the objectives and operations
of the University.

ii. Confirm the range of acceptable costs of items to be procured and match these with the avail-
able funds in the approved budget.

iii. Review the schedules for procurement and specifications and also ensure that the procure-
ment procedures to be followed are in strict conformity with the provisions of the Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by the Public Procurement (Amendment) Act,
2016 (Act 914).
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Ensure that the necessary concurrent approval is secured from the relevant Tender Review
Board, in terms of the applicable threshold in the Third Schedule to the Public Procurement
Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by the Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914)
prior to the award of contract.

Facilitate contract administration and ensure compliance with all reporting requirements
under the Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by the Public Procurement (Amendment)
Act, 2016 (Act 914).

Ensure that stores and equipment are disposed of in compliance with the Procurement Act,
2003 (Act 663) as amended by the Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) and
all other Acts and regulations applicable to the University.

2.3.7. Audit Committee

1.

i1

1il.

1v.

V.

Vil.

Receive and review the annual report of the Director of Internal Audit.

Ensure that internal auditing is carried out by the Directorate of Internal Audit in accordance
with the Internal Audit Agency Act, 2003 (Act 658) and all other Acts and regulations applicable
to the University.

Ensure that the internal financial control systems of the University are functioning efficiently
and effectively and that they meet the objectives of the University.

Ensure that the Vice-Chancellor pursues the implementation of matters in all audit reports
(internal and external) as well as financial matters that are raised in the reports of internal
monitoring units in the University.

Prepare annual statements showing the status of implementation of recommendation made
in all audit reports. Such reports shall show remedial action taken or proposed to be taken to
avoid or minimize the recurrence of undesirable features in the accounts and operations of
the University and the time frame for action to be completed.

Recommend to Council measures to improve the quality of the internal audit system of the
University.

Audit Committee shall perform its function base on the Guidelines for Effective Functioning
of the Audit Committees.

6272<2 Klere Yrzivwix} Wxe L Wytiverryexisr Wgliqi Qerekiqirx Gsqqmxii

1.

i1

1il.

1v.

V.

V.

To administer and to keep under review the University’s Superannuation Scheme.

To advise from time to time in what securities/investments, monies accumulated under the
Superannuation Scheme should be invested on the advice of the Investment Committee.

To ensure that the Superannuation Scheme funds are invested in approved securities/
investments.

To ensure that at the end of each accounting year, the administrator prepares a Statement of
financial performance and a Statement of Financial Position for that financial year.

To cause the Accounts to be audited annually; and

To ensure timely distribution of individual statements, etc.

2.3.9. The College Advisory Boards
The financial functions of the College’s Advisory Boards are:

1.

i1

To guide the College in developing strategies.
To receive proposals from the Management Committees of Schools.
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iii. Assistin fostering effective links between the College and external communities
iv. To advise on the relevance of the College in order to enhance its sustainability. In exercising

its functions, the College’s Advisory board shall act within the general policy of the University.
For the avoidance of doubt, all policy decisions of the College Council shall be in the form of
recommendations to the University Council.

2.3.10. The College Finance and Development Committee

1.

ii.

1il.

Iv.

vi.

To advise the College Academic Committee and the College Advisory Board on the financial,
academic and other aspects of the development of the College.

To formulate and review policies and establish criteria with a view to recommend to the
College Academic Committee the order of priorities in the College’s academic development
and to keep the policies under constant review.

To exercise control over the property and expenditure of the College subject to the directions
of the College Advisory Board.

To scrutinize the annual estimate of expenditure submitted by Schools, Institutes and the
Units in the College and to moderate where necessary for presentation to the College Advisory
Board.

To consider all requests for authorization of expenditure in excess of approved annual esti-
mates and to make recommendations thereon to the College Advisory Board.

To consider such matters of financial nature as may be referred by other committees of the
College Advisory Board.

6282 S givw Lxl Wtignep dirergnep Viwtsrwifmpmxnaw

2.4.1. The Director of Finance

The day to day financial administration of the University is managed by the Director of Finance,
who shall be responsible for the financial business of the University under the authority of the
Vice-Chancellor (the Principal Spending Officer). The Director of Finance shall also undertake
such other business as may prescribe by the Council. The Director of Finance shall ensure that
Provosts, Deans, Directors in acting as Budget Holders, are notified of their responsibilities within
these Financial Regulations and Governance Policy and shall review and propose amendments
to the Regulations as appropriate.

The specific responsibilities of the Director of Finance are described throughout these Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy and include the following?:

ii.

1il.

1v.

preparing annual capital and revenue financial plans;

calling for and receiving moneys due to the University and making on behalf of the University
the authorized payments;

ensuring that throughout the University, accurate books of accounts and records of the prop-
erty of the University are kept in a manner and form required by Council;

preparing accounts and management information, monitoring and controlling of income
and expenditure against financial plans and all financial operations;

2 There is a need to highlight that the responsibility extends to all units within the University and that the lines of reporting of all
Finance officers is through to the Director of Finance.
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preparing the University’s annual accounts and other financial statements and accounts
which the University is required to submit to other authorities;

ensuring that the University maintains satisfactory financial systems;
providing professional advice on all matters relating to financial policies and procedures;

liaising with internal and external auditors in order to achieve efficient processes and effec-
tive internal control.

2.4.2. Director of Internal Audit

1.

il.

iil.

1v.

V.

Vii.

The Director of Internal Audit shall:

assure Management regarding the establishment and continuous operation of efficient, and
effective financial control systems within the University;

have the responsibility to ensure that Risk Management policies are complied with and to
ensure that regular review of the processes are maintained by management;

conduct periodic management audit and submit reports to the Vice-Chancellor and the
Council;

liaise with External Auditors and ensure that appropriate action is taken on reported audit
findings;

submit periodic audit reports on the activities of the Units to the Vice-Chancellor and Council;
and

generally, be responsible for ensuring that the University complies with the Internal Audit
Agency Act, 2003 (Act 658) and Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921) and its
Regulation.

2.4.3. Pro-Vice-Chancellors, Provosts, Deans and Directors

Pro-Vice-Chancellors, Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible to the Vice-Chancellor
for the financial management in the areas and for the activities they administer, where appli-
cable. They are advised by the Director of Finance through the Finance Officers appointed to
their units in executing their financial duties. The Director of Finance will also supervise the
implementation of the approved financial systems operating within the Units, including the
form in which accounts and financial records are kept.

Pro-Vice-Chancellors, Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining clear lines of responsibility within their Units for all financial matters, if any.
Where resources are delegated to other officers, these officers are accountable to their Pro-Vice-
Chancellors, Provosts, Deans and Directors who retain overall oversight and responsibility
for the results of their budget.

Pro-Vice-Chancellors, Provosts, Deans and Directors shall provide the Director of Finance
with such information as may be required to enable the:

i. Implementation of financial planning and budget implementation;

ii. Compilation of the University’s financial statements;
Implementation of audit and financial reviews, recommendations, projects and value
for money studies.
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2.4.4. The Legal Counsel

The Legal Counsel shall in accordance with the Statutes of the University be responsible for the
management of all legal documentation involving financial, commercial or other matters of the
University, including but not limited to contracts, agreements, deeds, leases, letters of credit,
guarantees or any other legal document with financial or other implications for the University.
In the management of the financial and other matters of the University, the Legal Counsel shall
ensure and be responsible for the following:

i

i1

111

1v.

Vi.

vil.

Vil

IX.

xI1.

Xii.

xiii.
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Prepare, review and advise on all contractual agreements, cooperation agreements, part-
nerships, joint venture agreements, deeds, letters of credit, guarantees or any other legal
document affecting or relating to the University or in respect of which any financial or other
matters of the University are considered;

Streamline all communication between the University and its internal and external clients to
conform to legal and regulatory processes, and ultimately, help achieve an efficient internal
contract management process.

Advise on the legal implications of all financial, commercial, memorandum of understand-
ing, cooperation, partnership, consultancy or other contracts or business of the University.

Ensure regulatory compliance by the University of all financial or other matters

Draft and negotiate contracts and transactions on behalf of the University with all third
parties and other partners of the University.

Manage legal risk relating to financial, commercial, contractual and other transactions or
projects involving, concerning or affecting the University.

Review and advise on policy and other implications of this Policy and all other policies of
the University.

Review activities of the University to determine and ensure compliance with applicable law.
Provide legal advice on all University related matters.

Advise and certify in writing the need for the engagement of external legal counsels to
represent or assist the Legal Counsel in any matter, advise or represent the University in
any transaction or dispute resolution, before any external legal counsel may be engaged by
executing an engagement letter in accordance with the Signatory Mandate.

Certify that all agreements, transactions and projects of the University conforms with the
regulations of the University and the laws of Ghana by issuing and signing an opinion,
certificate of compliance or legal risk assessment certificate before same shall be signed or
executed by any University Officer in accordance with the Signatory mandate.

Establish for the University, any subsidiary company or trusts or cause the dissolution of
any such company or trusts in accordance with the relevant laws of Ghana and subject to the
prior approval of the Finance and General Purposes Committee (Regulation 2.3 (a)(i) bullet
numbered 6 of the University of Ghana Financial Regulation and Governance).

Attend all meetings of companies, commercial or other ventures or entities in which the
University has an interest either by way of shares, debenture, joint venture, partnerships or
affiliated companies including subsidiaries and trusts to ensure compliance with the rules of
the University and act as Company Secretary in accordance with the Companies Act, 2019
(Act 992) for subsidiary companies.
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1.

Council shall appoint a Chief Risk Officer (CRO) who shall report administratively to the

Vice-Chancellor, and functionally to the Finance and General Purposes Committee.

ii. The CRO shall report, regularly, to the Finance and General Purposes Committee on risk

iil.

management and treatment.

Comply with the risk management requirements of the University of Ghana Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy, IPSAS and other applicable regulatory requirements.

Risk management policy

The Council has overall responsibility for ensuring that there is, a Risk Management Strategy/
Policy and a common approach to the management of risks throughout the University. This
policy will be established through the development, implementation and embedding within the
University, a formal and structured risk management process.

The University acknowledges the risks inherent in its business and is committed to managing
those risks. The Council has assigned accountability for this to the Vice-Chancellor.

A. Policy Statement

There shall be a risk management policy, and its purpose is to ensure that:

“The University of Ghana provides a comprehensive Risk Management Programme that enables
risk management and internal controls to be established to mitigate risks that pose significant
threats to the achievement of its objectives and financial health. The programme will maximise
potential opportunities and minimise the adverse effects of risk on our internal and external
stakeholders and protect the University of Ghana’s brand”.

B. Guidelines

To achieve effective risk management, the following shall be undertaken:

1.

2.

Establishment of a Risk Management Committee chaired by the Vice-Chancellor.

The Council shall appoint a Chief Risk Officer (CRO) who shall report administratively to
the Vice-Chancellor, and functionally to the Finance and General Purposes Committee.

Establishment of a Risk Management Committee at the College-level, to be chaired by the
Provost.

Adoption of common terminologies in relation to the definition of risk and risk management.

Identify, develop and maintain a risk register and risk action plans to ensure risks are
properly managed.

Establishment of a University-wide criteria for the measurement of risk, linking the threat
arising with their potential impact and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Documentation of appropriate risk management strategies that account for the require-
ments of operations, seeking to minimise the impact of disruptive events and activate a
rapid and effective response capability.

Decision on an acceptable level of risk.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.
18.
19.

Ensuring of an effective level of day-to-day risk management matters, as well as Vice-
Chancellor and Heads of Unit’s support to, and governance over the risk management
programme.

Setting and monitoring of key performance objectives to manage the risk management
programme.

Conducting of detailed, regular reviews of each Unit to identify significant risk associated
with the achievement of key objectives and other relevant areas.

Development of risk management and contingency plans for all significant risks, assigning
risk owners, who will ensure the remediation of these risks.

Continuous improvement of the risk management programme in line with industry best
practices.

Conducting of quarterly reviews on the implementation of risk management processes.

The CRO shall report regularly to the Finance and General Purposes Committee on risk
management and treatment.

Complying with the risk management requirements of the University of Ghana Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy, IPSAS and other applicable regulatory requirements.

Complying with ISO 31000:2018 — Risk management requirements.
The CRO shall submit an annual report on risk to the Audit Committee

Identifying and managing of legal and regulatory risks associated with the financial affairs
and management of the University.

In line with this, a Risk Management Committee shall be set up to ensure that there are appropriate
controls for managing the key risk areas. The risk areas covering financial management, which have
been identified as requiring adequate monitoring and assessment include:

Funding Financial/ Commercial

i. Potential future change in Government i. 1zspzirk Arergiep wavexik}
funding policy; ii. lzspjzirk higirwvepwih Arergiep gsrivs)

ii. Infrastructure funding requiring iii. Over-extension of resources resulting from
gsqqugirw erh Arergiep irtyxw jysq increased activity, both teaching and research
the Government and the University; iv. Investments

iii. Relationship with the National Health v. Monitoring of fraud issues
Insurance in respect of funding for vi. Compliance with legal and governance
patients at the University Hospital; requirements

iv. Timely Parliamentary approval of fees.  vii. Compliance with debt covenants

viii. Compliance with procurement laws
ix. Fiscal Discipline

Property and related items Human resources
i. Crime i. Attract and retain employees
ii. Maintenance backlog (Including ii. Labour relations
student residential facilities iii. Health and safety
iii. Service breakdown — electricity, water, iv. Funding of ex-gratia
iv. Insurance adequacy v. Jyrhirk sjwxeJ Fiexl gswx
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Student and related issues Information technology
i. Collection of student fees i. Disaster recovery and losses due to changes to
i. lrwy3gnirx wxyhirx Isymrk the IT environment
iii. Financial aid ii. Overdependence on individuals, both internal
iv. Electricity cost and external

iii. Cyber security

Budget Holders must ensure that any agreements negotiated within their specified areas of
operation with external bodies with legal, financial or commercial liabilities or implications for
the University, have gone through the appropriate processes and executed in accordance with
the Transaction and Signatory Matrix.

1. All Employees

All employees shall, in accordance with the policy decisions of the Council, manage and admin-
ister the affairs of the University in their various capacities in strict adherence to these Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy. In so doing:

i. All employees have a general responsibility for the security of the University’s property, for
avoiding loss and for due efficacy, efficiency and economy in the use of resources.

ii. They must ensure that they operate at all times within the scope of authority which has been
delegated to them and in accordance with these Regulations.

iii. They shall make available promptly any relevant records or information to the Director of
Finance, or his/her authorized representative, in connection with the implementation of the
University’s financial policies, regulations and the system of financial control.

They shall provide the Director of Finance with such financial and other information as they
may deem necessary, from time to time, to carry out his duties.

C. Code of Conduct

The University is committed to the highest standards of openness, integrity and accountability.
It seeks to conduct its affairs in a responsible manner, having regard to the principles established
by the Committee on Standards in Public Life (formerly known as the Nolan Committee) which
employees at all levels are expected to observe. (This is included as Appendix I to these Regulations).

In addition, members of the Council, Statutory Officers and those employees with the ability
to commit the University to a significant level of expenditure are required by Council Standing
Orders, the University’s Procurement Policy and Transaction Procedure and Signatory Mandate
to disclose interests in the University’s register of interests maintained by the Registrar. They
will also be responsible for ensuring that entries in the register relating to them are kept up to
date regularly and promptly.

In addition, University employees with shareholdings in spin-off businesses are required to make

declarations of any such holdings. In particular, no person shall be a signatory to a University
contract where he/ she also have an interest in the activities of the other party.
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D. Receiving gifts or hospitality

In accordance with sections 240 to 245 of the Criminal Offences Act, 1960 (Act 29) and section 96 (1)
(e) of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921) it is an offence for employees to accept
any gift or consideration as an inducement or reward for doing, or refraining from doing, anything
in an official capacity or showing favour or disfavour to any person in an official capacity. The Vice-
Chancellor shall upon the advice or recommendation of the Legal Counsel, and in consultation with
the Finance Director and Internal Auditor approve the receipt or giving of any gifts or hospitality by
the University. The guiding principles to be followed by all employees shall be as follows:

i. theconductofindividuals should not create suspicion of any conflict between their official
duty and their private interest;

ii. ii.the action of individuals acting in an official capacity should not give the impression (to
any member of the public, to any organisation with whom they deal or to their colleagues)
that they have been (or may have been) influenced by a benefit to show favour or disfavour
to any person or organisation.

Except with the written approval of the Legal Counsel under the authority of the Vice-Chancellor,
employees should not accept any gifts, rewards or hospitality (or have them given to members of their
families) from any organisation or individual with whom they have contact in the course of their work
that would cause them to reach a position whereby they might be, or might be deemed by others to
have been, influenced in making a business decision as a consequence of accepting such hospitality.
Guidance on acceptable hospitality and corrupt practices in general are contained in the detailed
financial procedures manual and the Anti-Corruption Policy contained in these Regulations.

2.5 Organization and Functional Responsibilities of the Finance Directorate

The objective of the Finance function of the University of Ghana is to maintain a fiscally sound organi-
zation that provides efficient and effective financial management services to the University. It also seeks
to protect the assets of the University and to provide assurance to all stakeholders that the University’s
funds are managed prudently and in accordance with the objectives for which these are raised.

a. Organization

The Organization of the University’s Finance Directorate is set out below with the details highlighted
in Appendix II. The Directorate is headed by the Director of Finance and he is assisted by three Deputy
Directors and Finance Officers for the Colleges.

The Finance Directorate shall comprise four sections, namely:
i. Management Accounting and Payroll;
ii. Financial Accounting and Treasury Management;
iii. Research and Academic Project Management; and
iv. College Financial Administration.
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Director
of Finance

User Support

Secretariat Coordination

Research & College

Financial
Project Fipanéal,
Manaéement Administration

Accounting &
reasury Manageme

Management
Accounting &

Payroll

The Directorate will be supported by:
« User Support Coordination: the development of training and management of the logistics
within the ITS system.
« Secretariat: personnel in charge of records & archives, secretaries, drivers, messengers and
cleaners.

i. Management Accounting and Payroll Section

This section will under the authority and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor develop the
co-ordination of the university-wide budget and reporting system and will ensure that the cost con-
trol mechanisms available in the University Software (ITS) system are managed. The section under
the Logistics Directorate is responsible for logistics in the supply chain (i.e. stores management). The
responsibilities are under the authority and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor include:

a. Budgets: Preparation and administration of the University’s Annual Operating Budgets, for
both the Recurrent and Capital Expenditure, including the implementation of Budgetary
Controls. Pursuant to under Section 4 (2)b) (b) the Budget of the University shall be submitted
to the Minister for onward submission to the Parliament for approvalto ensurecompliance of
the University with the provisions of the Act 921 and other related enactments.

b. Management Accounting: Preparation of cost control mechanisms shall be undertaken
throughout the University; carrying out evaluations of the activities of the University to ensure
that internal controls applicable to both financial and programme areas provide reasonable
assurance to management.

c. Performance Reports: Ensuring the preparation and submission of management reports to
internal constituent units and external bodies like the Ministry of Finance, National Council
for Tertiary Education, Ministry of Education, VCGs, etc. as set out in the Public Financial
Management Act, 2016 (Act 921).
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d. Stores Management: Overseeing the administration for each location (i.e. maintenance, gen-
eral, electrical, etc.) as well as the institution of regular stores verification and reconciliation
with the general ledger.

e. Payroll Management and Reconciliations: Management of the link with Human Resources in
the ITS module, management of Superannuation (including the payment of Pensions) as well
as processing of Insurance payments for cars and assets.

ii. Financial Accounting and Treasury Management Section

This section will under the authority and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor oversee all
matters pertaining to the recording and reporting of information and transactions through the General
Ledger and ensuring the integrity of the information through robust financial accounting policies
using the highest levels of internal control mechanisms. Their responsibilities under the authority
and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor include:

a.Treasury Management: The development of Cash flow and Cash forecast schedules; cashiering
operations including receiving and disbursing funds and banking transactions; preparation
and submission of cash transcripts; subvention claims and collection of state funding.

b. Bank Reconciliations: Confirmation of bank balances and preparation of monthly bank
reconciliation statements;

c.General Ledger Reconciliations: reconciliation of all general ledger figures and reporting on
monthly, actual figures.

d. Financial Accounting: The preparation of Annual Financial Statements (including the devel-
opment of accounting policies required to comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
and appropriate International Accounting Standards).

e. Trade and other Payables: Reconciliation of Supplier Account statements and payment of
accounts when due;

f. Trade and other Receivables:
i. Staff and Other Receivables: Collection of money due the University and ensuring that
approved policies and procedures regarding debt are followed to ensure ability to make
collections.
ii. Students Accounts Receivable: The management of the Students’ Accounts.

g. Provision of Oversight for all the accounting functions undertaken at all units with limited
financial and operational autonomy.

h. Non-Current Assets Control: Providing oversight for the management of expenditures on
physical development and equipment.

iii. Research and Project Management Section

The University has a new and growing emphasis on research, and to ensure proper oversight, this sec-
tion is to ensure that appropriate governance and accounting is in place for all projects using funders’
money throughout the University. It will also give expert advice on the methods and information
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required for proposals and by being involved from the outset is able to closely monitor funders’
requirements and give assurances for compliance with conditions. In conjunction with the Office of
Research, Innovation and Development (ORID) and under the authority and with the prior approval
of the Vice-Chancellor, it will also ensure that correct levels of income and benefits are generated for
the promotion of research throughout the University.

The section will with the authority of the Vice-Chancellor also perform the necessary training to ensure
prompt reaction to researchers’ requirements through the system. The core functions will include:

a. Budget Preparation and Fund Raising
b. Disbursement of Research and Project Funds

c. Research and Project Report preparation and dissemination.

iv. College Financial Administration
The College financial administration encompasses the financial management of College of Basic
and Applied Sciences, College of Health Sciences, College of Humanities and College of Education
and is under the responsibility of the Vice-Chancellor.

The Director of Finance under the authority and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor
will provide oversight for all the approved accounting/finance functions undertaken at these
Colleges. The Director of Finance will also be the co-ordinating point for ensuring consistency
with policies and reports preparation to facilitate easy consolidation and reporting to Council
and other Committees.

3.0 CATEGORIES OF REGULATIONS & POLICIES

3.1 Organization of the Regulations & Policies

The Financial Regulations and Governance Policy and related policies are made up of eleven
(11) active subject areas, each of which contains (or will in the future contain) a group of related
policies. For example, all Policies related to Procurement can be found in section 1500.

Policy statements are sequenced by section and identified by a four-digit numeric code. The first
two digits identify the subject area, while the third and fourth digits indicate the specific policy
within the subject area, e.g., policy number 1502 identifies the second policy of subject area 15,
PROCURING GOODS & SERVICES.

Each policy statement is presented in a standardized format. The first section identifies the policy
number and policy title. The next section of each page indicates the subject area, responsible
office, the office or group having the authority to approve changes to the policy, issue date, and
revision date. This is followed by the actual policy information.

The responsible office has the responsibility to develop, promulgate, monitor and revise the
applicable policy. When additional guidance or interpretation of a specific policy is required,
that office should be consulted. The Office of the Director of Finance should be consulted when
an issue that is not addressed by the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy and related
policies arises.
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3.2 Detailed Regulations & Policies

1000 Budgetary Management & Control

1100 Accounting Policies

1200 Reporting Requirements

1300 Treasury Management

1400 Income

1500 Procurement of Goods, Works and Services
1600 Expenditures & Disbursements

1700 Management of Non-Current Assets

1800 Financial Reporting

1900 Audit Requirements

2000 Other Matters

3.2.1 BUDGETARY MANAGEMENT & CONTROL

SECTION NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
1000 POLICY NO BUDGETARY MANAGEMENT & CONTROL
1001 Budget Preparation 20
1002 Capital Programmes 23
1003 Other Major Business Developments 25
1004 Budgetary Control 26

POLICY No. 1001

BUDGET PREPARATION
Subject Area Budgetary Management & Control
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv Deputy Director of Finance
(Management Accounting & Payroll)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To detail out the processes and procedures involved in the University’s budgetary prepa-
ration and approval.
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TSPIG]

Introduction

The University of Ghana has adopted a budgetary control framework for ensuring financial integrity
and control. In basic terms, the Council approves, on the basis of a three-year rolling financial plan
an annual plan of both targeted recurrent income and expenditure and potential capital expendi-
ture, relating to development investment and other capital acquisitions. This adoption is done in
conformity with and is determined with reference to the University Strategic Plan and subsequent
Development and Unit plans and targets of financial results for the University over the current and
subsequent years. Forecasts are made of potential income and related expenditure to ensure that
the net results fall within the parameters set by the Council.

Budget Objectives

The Council will, from time to time, set budget objectives in line with the Strategic Plan of the
University and in accordance with the provisions of Act 921, and other related enactments. These
will help the Director of Finance in preparing more detailed financial plans for the University.

Resource Allocation

Resources are allocated annually by the Council on the basis of the above objectives and on the rec-
ommendations of the Resource Allocation Committee for Academic Purposes through the Finance
& General Purposes Committee. Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for the economic,
effective and efficient use of resources allocated to them.

Budget Committees

The University’s Finance & General Purposes Committee shall be responsible for the:
» review and formulation of the strategic plans;

» review of the University’s revenue collection activities;

» co-ordination and consolidation of the budget;

» monitoring and evaluation of budget performance; and

» report to the Council on matters relating to the budget.

The relevant Boards and Committees of the Colleges shall perform the above services in the col-
leges. The University shall also set up Budget Committees for the Central Administration who will
contribute inputs to the University’s budget preparation.

Budget Guidelines

The various Units in the University will prepare their budgets in line with the Budget Guidelines
issued by the Director of Finance. Prior to the preparation of the budgets, briefings shall be orga-
nized to discuss issues relating to the budget.
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The budget guidelines shall cover:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.

Vi.
Vii.

Vii

IX.

Bu

Bu
1.

2.

3.

4.

Re

Pag

The form of budgetary documents and statements
GrewmAgexisr sj Fyhkixev} xerwegxsrw
Information to be submitted in support of budgetary proposals by heads of Units.
Costing of activities
Procedures involved in the preparation, submission and implementation of the budget
Income & Expenditure Ceilings for each Unit.
Expected outputs in terms of documentation and reports that must accompany the draft
estimates of each establishment.
i. [svo tjerw erh gewl as{ jsvigeww? erh

Deadlines for the submission of the estimates.

dget Preparation

Each year, in advance of the financial year to which they refer, the Provosts, Deans and Directors
will propose income and expenditure and capital budgets. The Finance and General Purposes
Committee will determine the priorities for expenditure taking into account available funds and
the strategic priorities of the University. The Director of Finance will prepare the budgets, both rev-
enue and capital, on this basis for consideration by the Finance and General Purposes Committee
before submission to the Council. These budgets should also include monthly cash flow forecasts
for the year and a projected year-end statement of financial position.

dget Approval

Prior to the submission of the Budget of the University to the Minister of Finance, the University
Council upon the recommendations of the Finance and General Purposes Committee shall pre-ap-
prove the Budget of the University.

The Budget of the University shall, ultimately be approved by the Parliament of Ghana upon sub-
mission, by the Minister of Finance pursuant Section 4 (2)b) (b) of Act 921.

The Director of Finance, must ensure that the approved budgets are communicated to Provosts,
Deans and Directors, as soon as possible, following their approval by the Council.

The Director of Finance shall submit the approved budget to the GTEC by August 1** of each finan-
cial year.

vised Budgets

During the year, the Director of Finance is responsible for submitting revised budgets to the Finance
and General Purposes Committee for consideration and submission to the Minister of Finance for
approval by the Parliament of Ghana and thereafter communicating the revised budgetary position
to the Provosts, Deans and Directors.
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POLICY No. 1002
CAPITAL PROGRAMMES
Subject Area Budgetary Management & Control
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Director of Finance/ Director — Physical Development & Municipal
Services
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee/ Physical Development
& Municipal Services Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish the process for obtaining approval for capital programmes, and to define
project leadership roles during the project development and implementation in the University.

TSPIG

Introduction

1. The capital programmes include all expenditure on land, buildings, equipment, and furniture and
associated costs, whether or not they are funded from capital grants, to be capitalized for inclusion
in the University’s financial statements.

Capital Programme Approval

2. The University’s capital programme will be approved by the Council, on the recommendations
from the Physical Development and Municipal Services Committee (for the architectural drawings
in line with the University’s Master Plan on land development) and the Finance and General Purposes
Committee (for the cost and funding of the projects in terms of its sustainability).

3. Where the University’s capital programme, involves agreement or transaction with a financial
commitment that binds the Government for more than one financial year or that results in a con-
tingent liability, the University shall seek the approval of the Minister of Finance, or the financial
commitment or contingent liability which is authorised by Parliament in accordance with article
181 of the Constitution under section 33(1) of Act 921.

Capital Programme Development

4. The Directors of Finance and Physical Development and Municipal Services shall under the author-
ity and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor, propose the establishment of procedures for
the inclusion of capital projects in the capital programme for approval by the Council. These will
set out the information that is required for each proposed project as well as the financial criteria
that they are required to meet.

5. The Director of Finance shall under and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor also pro-

pose the establishment of procedures for the approval of the Council for significant variations to
approved projects.
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6. The Council shall conduct a formal appraisal exercise of all major capital expenditures including
non-building projects, equipment etc., to conform to best practice and obtain the approval of
Minister of Finance or authorised by the Parliament in accordance with article 181 of the Constitution
under section 33(1) of Act 921.

In considering these major capital programmes, the University must satisfy itself that:

i1

111

1v.

Vi.

Vil.

Vil

the project is consistent with the strategic objectives of the University, including, for build-
ing work, the University’s estate strategy. (It is possible to envisage the need to support a project
notwithstanding its non-compliance with the institutional strategic plans. However, in such cases, a
decision by Finance and General Purposes Committee would be required and recorded, as to the reasons
why such a course of action was taken);

the project is fully costed (including VAT and any other taxes), to enable the production of a
financial evaluation of the project (including an assessment of the impact, if relevant, on revenue
accounts, including the capitalization policy as recommended by the Director of Finance) concerned
and its potential impact on University accounts;

the project has been subject to an approved investment appraisal analysis;

the project conforms to relevant planning legislation including the requirement for planning
permission and listed building consent;

consideration has been given to any associated tax implications and the options to address
such matters;

any restrictions or requirements that will result from the use of external funding have been
taken into account;

a cash flow analysis has been produced; and

the project conforms to best practice on tendering and procurement and complies with Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663), The Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914)
and all other relevant legislation.

The University will:

1.

consider, where appropriate, methods by which projects might be funded; forward, with appro-
priate recommendations, cases to Physical Development & Municipal Services Committee
and thence Finance & General Purposes Committee for approval; and monitor and report on
projects previously approved.

7. Where projects are externally funded and financial investment assessments have already been
undertaken, the University may be able to “fast-track” such cases nonetheless, these projects must
meet the criteria with regard to the institutional plans.

8. The Vice-Chancellor, Legal Counsel, Director of Finance and the Director of Physical Development
& Municipal Services must be contacted at an early stage in the process, so that the issues covered
in the paragraphs above may be addressed.
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Capital Programmes Implementation

9.

The University will follow Procurement Policy 1502 in the Capital Programmes procurement process.

10. Upon the completion of a capital expenditure project, a final report must be submitted to the Physical

11.

12.

Development & Municipal Services Committee and Finance & General Purposes Committee regard-
ing an analysis of actual expenditure against budget.

The Director of Finance will also establish procedures for providing regular statements concern-
ing capital expenditure to the Physical Development & Municipal Services and Finance & General
Purposes Committees for monitoring purposes.

Following the completion of any capital project approved as a business case, a final report should
be submitted to the Finance & General Purposes Committee,. The final report shouldinclude an
analysis of actual expenditure against budget and reconciling funding arrangements, where a
variance, as well as other issues affecting completion of the project have occurred. Where appli-
cable, a post-project evaluation report may also be produced (where such an evaluation has taken
place) and submitted to the Physical Development & Municipal Services and Finance & General
Purposes Committees.

POLICY No. 1003

OTHER MAJOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

Subject Area Budgetary Management & Control

Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March, 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To provide for the processes establishing other Major Business Developments in the
University.

TSPIG]

1.

2.

3.

Any proposed establishment of a company or joint venture arrangement or any new business pro-
posal, which will require an investment in land, buildings, resources or employees’ time beyond
existing budgets, should be presented as a business case to the Finance & General Purposes
Committee for approval.

The Director of Finance will under the authority and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor
propose the establishment of procedures for these major business developments to enable them to
be considered for approval by the appropriate committee. These will set out the information that
is required for each proposed development as well as the financial criteria that they are required
to meet.

The proposals should be supported by a business plan for three (3) years which sets out:

i. A demonstration of the proposal’s consistency with the Strategic Plan approved by the
University Council.

ii. Details of the market need and the assumptions of the level of business available.
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iii. Details of the business and what product or service will be delivered.

iv. An outline plan for promoting the business to the identified market and achieving planned
levels of business.

v. Details of the employees required to deliver, promote and manage the business, together with
any re-skilling or recruitment issues.

vi. Details of any premises and other resources required.

vii. A financial evaluation of the proposal together with its impact on revenue and profit, plus
advice on the impact of possible alternative plans and sensitivity analyses in respect of key
assumptions.

viii. Contingency plans for managing adverse sensitivities.
ix. Consideration of taxation and other legislative or regulatory issues.

X. A three-year financial forecast for the proposal, including a monthly cash flow forecast and
details of the impact on the University cash flow forecast for the financial years in question.

POLICY No. 1004
BUDGETARY CONTROL
Subject Area Budgetary Management & Control
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Management Accounting &
Payroll)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To detail out the mechanisms for ensuring budgetary controls in the University.

TSPIGP

1.

The Director of Finance shall keep the Vice-Chancellor, Finance & General Purposes Committee
and Council informed of the financial consequences of changes in policy, pay awards, and other
events and trends affecting budgets and shall advise on the financial and economic aspects of
future plans and projects.

The control of income and expenditure within an approved budget is the responsibility of the des-
ignated Provost, Dean or Director who must ensure that the day-to-day monitoring is undertaken
effectively. These Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for managing their budgets such
that income targets are achieved, and expenditure limits are not exceeded. They will be assisted
in this duty by management information provided by the Director of Finance.

The Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for the overall financial management across
their Units, including the control of approved income and expenditure, budgetary control and
monitoring.

Any departures from approved budgetary targets must be reported immediately to the Director
of Finance and the Finance & General Purposes Committee by the Provost, Dean or Director and,
if necessary, corrective action taken.
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The Director of Finance, will under the authority and with prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor,
propose the establishment and maintenance of a system of budgetary control, which incorporates
the reporting of, and, investigation into variances from budget. All employees involved in initiating
or authorizing financial transactions previously approved by Vice-Chancellor shall comply with
these budgetary control procedures.

The Director of Finance will advise the Director of Human Resources on such training as may be
required by the Provost, Dean or Director and their Officers to enable them to operate the proce-
dures relating to budgetary control.

The Provosts, Deans, Directors and their Officers are assisted in their duties by management
information provided under arrangements approved by the Director of Finance. The types of
management information available to the different levels of management, together with the peri-
ods within which they can be expected shall be designed by the Director of Finance subject to th
pre-approval of the Vice-Chancellor.

The Director of Finance, under the authority and with the prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor is
responsible for supplying Budgetary Reports (Tables 1-4) on all aspects of the University’s finances
to the Vice-Chancellor and the Finance & General Purposes Committee on a basis determined by
them. The report shall outline the Income and Expenditure of the University for the financial year
to date, compared with the corresponding Approved Budget and showing a forecast of anticipated
year-end values, which is updated quarterly.

Changes proposed to the approved budget will be considered by the Finance & General Purposes
Committee which will make proposals to the Council unless they fall within delegated approval
arrangements.

Provosts, Deans and Directors may not, (in general), authorize payment to be made out of funds ear-
marked for specific activities for purposes other than those activities. Provosts, Deans, and Directors
shall, however, have authority to re-allocate amounts between approved heads of income and
expenditure in accordance with virement rules specified in the University’s budgeting procedures.

Virement Rules:

i. Within each Establishment, virement of up to 15% of the budget from which it is sought, is
permitted with the written approval of the Vice-Chancellor.

ii. Virement between budgets held by difterent units in the University is permitted up to 15% of
the budget from which virement is sought,with the written approval of the Vice-Chancellor.

iii. The Director of Finance is responsible for submitting requests for virement of resources above
15% to the Finance and General Purposes Committee for consideration before submission to
the Vice-Chancellor in consultation with the Council.

iv. The Principal Spending Officer of the University may request the Minister to execute a
virement in respect of an amount of money allocated to the University in accordance with
Section 32 of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016.

v. In addition to the above, virement of funds allocated to the University should be done in
accordance with the requirements as set out in Section 32 of the Public Financial Management
Act, 2016 (Act 921) and Regulation 27 and 28 of L.I 2378

vi. All agreements for virement should be reviewed by the Legal Counsel and notified to the
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Director of Finance or his/ her nominated representative for action in approved budgets.
All reporting of variances will be by comparison of actual income or expenditure against the
approved budget.

vii. No balances will be permitted to be carried forward to the next financial year unless income
has been received for a specific purpose which has not yet been fulfilled (in which case an
appropriate credit balance will be created).

viii. All other surplus income will be credited to the University’s statement of financial perfor-
mance Reserve and will be available for expenditure only if approved as part of the budget
setting or virement process. Funds specifically earmarked within the University’s Income
and Expenditure Reserve may be approved for expenditure by the Vice- Chancellor if there
is capacity within the approved budget to do so.

3.2.2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SECTION NO. DESCRIPTION PAGE

1100 POLICY NO ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1101 General Accounting Policies 28
1102 Feww sj tviwirxexisr sj Arergiep wxexi qi rw 29
1103 WikriAgerx eggsyrark iyhkqirnw erh iwangexiw 31
1104 Financial Statements — Presentation & Disclosure 32
1105 Accounting Policies: Receipts & Incomes 33
1106 Accounting Policies: Expenditure 35
1107 Accounting Policies: Non-Current Assets 37
1108 Accounting Policies: Investment in Subsidiaries/Associ- |43

ate, Leases, Inventories & Provisions, Assets

POLICY No. 1101
GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies for accounting for the funds used and for the preparation
of the financial statements? for the University of Ghana.

TSPIG

1. The Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices adopted
in preparing and presenting financial statements of the University. The Accounting Policies clarify

3 The financial statements shall cover all transactions and events of the Units that utilize budgetary allocations from the Univer-
sity’s Funds.
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how the relevant accounting standards apply to individual transactions and balances.

The Council is responsible for accounting for the University’s financial activity in accordance with
the Accrual based International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

The accounting policies on which the financial statements of the University are produced should
be in accordance with applicable accounting standards and consistent with the requirements to
present a true and fair view.

The constraints that the University should take into account in judging the appropriateness of
accounting policies to its particular circumstances are:
i. theneed tobalance the four objectives (relevance, faithful representation, comparability and
understandability); and
ii. theneed tobalance the cost of providing information with the likely benefit of such informa-
tion to users of the financial statements.

The Accounting policies shall be applied consistently over the years.

The University should regularly review its accounting policies to ensure that they remain the most
appropriate to its particular circumstances. Where this is judged not to be the case, a new policy
should be adopted giving due weight to the impact a change would have on comparability between
periods.

No changes shall be made to the accounting policies except by the authority of the Director of
Finance with approval from the Finance and General Purposes Committee and the Council.

POLICY No. 1102

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies for accounting for the funds used and the basis for the
preparation of the financial statements for the University of Ghana.

TSPIG]

Basis of accounting and preparation

The financial statements will be prepared in accordance with accrual basis in line with International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

2. The financial statements will be prepared under the historical cost convention, except where stated

otherwise.
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Statement of Compliance

3.

The consolidated annual financial statements of the University and its subsidiaries will be prepared
in accordance with accrual basis in line with IPSAS.

Basis of Consolidation

4.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the University* and
its subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the University acquires effective control, up to date that such
effective control ceases. For this purpose, subsidiaries are entities that the University is exposed,
or has rights, to variable benefits from its involvement with those entities (subsidiaries) and has
the ability to affect the nature or amount of those benefits through its power over those entities
(subsidiaries).

Segment Information and Statement of changes in net assets/equity

5. ‘Segmental Reporting’ requires the disclosure of income, segment result and segment net assets
by class of business and geographical segment where material other segments exist. A segment
is a distinguishable activity or group of activities of the University for which it is appropriate to
separately report financial information for the purpose of (a) evaluating the University’s past
performance in achieving its objectives, and (b) making decisions about the future allocation of
resources.

6. Theoperating businesses which are managed separately but fall under the oversight of the University
of Ghana executive leadership and their treatment in the financial statements include:

a. Endowment Funds Income: Income from specific endowments, comprising investment income
and realized profits arising from the sale of investments, is recognized in the Statement of
financial performance as designated for specific purposes in the period when it accrues. The
University may agree to utilize a portion of this income and to re-invest the un-utilized portion
in the underlying endowment funds in order to grow the capital base. Funds made available
to operations which cannot be utilized due to a specific event not having occurred, are also
capitalized. The utilization of these funds for operational purposes, and the capitalization of all
un-utilized funds are effected by transfer within the Statement of Changes in Fund Balances.

b. Specifically funded activities restricted: The Specifically funded activities restricted consist
mainly of research activity. Here, decision making rights over income earned and related
expenses rest with researchers. The Office of Research, Innovation and Development Board
(ORID) retains an oversight role with regard to ensuring that expenditure is in accordance
with the mandate received from funders and the University policies.

c. Unrestricted University controlled funds: This segment predominantly represents the teach-
ing component of the University’s funds. Decision-making rights relating to income earned
in this segment rests with the Council.

POLICY No. 1103
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwnfpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance
(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012

4 The University covers all Units for which the University Council has jurisdiction.
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Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies for accounting for the funds used and the significant
accounting judgments and estimates used for the preparation of the financial statements for the
University of Ghana.

POLICY

The preparation of the University’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of incomes, expenses, assets and liabil-
ities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require material adjustments
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the University’s accounting policies, management will make the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

All investments, with the exception of specific investments which are held-to-maturity, are considered
to be available-for-sale investments as the intention is to grow the value of the investment portfolios
over a long-term horizon.

Estimations

Where estimation techniques are required to enable the accounting policies adopted to be applied,
the University should select the estimation techniques that enable its financial statements to give a
true and fair view which are consistent with the requirements of the accounting standards adopted,
1.e. Accrual basis IPSAS.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
Statement of Financial Position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

i. Impairment: The University assesses whether there are any indications of impairment for all assets
at each reporting date. Where an asset is impaired, an impairment loss shall be recognized in the
statement of financial performance. An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recov-
erable amount.

ii. Depreciation/ Amortisation: At the end of each financial year, management reviews the assets to assess
whether the estimated useful lives and estimated residual values applied to each asset are appropriate.

iii. Gratuity provision for employees: The University pays a gratuity on retirement, retrenchment or death
under special circumstances. In order to estimate the probability of incurring this liability, management
makes assumptions in respect of the number of employees who will reach the age of retirement within
the year at the University. In addition, to arrive at a fair value for the liability, the University needs
to make assumptions regarding both expected future salary increases and a suitable discount rate.

iv. Student fees receivables: At the end of the year, management makes an estimation of the amount of
total outstanding student fee debt. In addition, management estimates the amounts that it expects to
recover from the outstanding balances. A provision for impairment is raised based on these estimates.
v. Where other balances require estimation, management of the University will apply estimation
techniques that are consistent with accrual basis IPSAS.
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POLICY No. 1104

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION & DISCLOSURE

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies for accounting for the financial statements presentation,
and disclosure for the University of Ghana.

POLICY

Financial Statements

1.

3.

The financial statements should show a true and fair view or present fairly the financial position
of the University and its financial performance for each reporting period. This is achieved by the
application of the appropriate accounting standards. The University may depart from these stan-
dards under rare circumstances in which it concludes that compliance with those standards would
be so misleading and will conflict with the objective of the financial statements. The nature, reason
and financial impact of the departure should be explained in the financial statements.

The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with accrual based IPSAS. The Accounts
submitted by the University shall be in accordance with the policies stated in these Regulations.

The Financial Statements for the University of Ghana for each reporting period shall include:

« Consolidated Statement of Financial Position;

« Consolidated Statement of Financial Performance;

« Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets;

« Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows;

« Notesto the financial statements comprising the summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

« Appropriation Account

« Statement of Performance (Actual versus Forecast)

Prior Period Errors

4.

The correction of errors that relate to prior periods requires the restatement of the comparative
amount for prior period(s) presented during which the error occurred; or if the error occurred before
the earliest prior period presented, a restatement of the opening balances of assets, liabilities and
net assets/equity for the earliest prior period presented. Prior period errors are omissions from
and misstatement in the University’s financial statements for one or more prior periods arising
from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that; was available when financial state-
ments for those periods were authorized for issue; and could reasonably be expected to have been
obtained and taken into account in the preparation and presentation of those financial statements.
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Reporting Currency

5. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedi, which is the University’s func-
tional and presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the currency
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign Currency translation

6. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the currency
exchange rate ruling at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the
statement of financial performance in the year in which they arise.

7. Any gain or loss on a non-monetary asset item will be treated in the financial statement in accor-
dance with the applicable accrual based IPSAS.

8. When a gain or loss on a non- monetary item is recognized directly in other income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss shall be recognized directly in other income. Conversely, when a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in the statement of financial perfor-
mance, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized directly in the income
and expenditure statement.

Non-Financial Reporting
9. Non-Financial Reporting is reporting wholly or partly on information not contained in the financial
statements. The University may report on such information.

POLICY No. 1105
EGGSYRXIRK TSPIGHIW> VIG HITXW ERHIRGSQIW

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies for accounting for the receipts and related incomes in
the preparation of the financial statements for the University of Ghana.

POLICY

Recognition of Revenue

1. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the item of revenue will flow to the University, and the amount of revenue can be reliably mea-
sured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts, rebates, and value added taxes or duty.

2. The university shall classify its revenues as Revenue from Exchange transactions in accordance
with IPSAS 9 or Revenue from Non-exchange transactions in accordance with IPSAS 23.

a. Revenue from exchange transactions are transactions in which the University receives assets or
services or has liabilities extinguished and give approximately equal value to another entity in
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exchange. The University’s revenue from exchange transactions mainly comprise:
i. Academic and Residential Facility user fees;
ii. Government appropriations (Emolument Subvention));
iii. Interest, dividends and other income;
iv. Sale of goods;
v. Royalties; and
vi. Other revenues from exchange transactions.

b. Revenue from non-exchange transactions are transactions in which the University receives assets
or services or has liabilities extinguished and provides no equal value or consideration directly in
return. The university’s revenue from non-exchange transactions mainly comprise:

1. Government appropriations

ii. Research grants;

iii. Bursaries and financial aid; and

iv. Other revenues from non-exchange transactions.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from exchange transactions

3. Revenue received from exchange transactions are recognized in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the financial period in which it accrues to the University.

4. Rendering of services: Revenue from rendering of services is recognized to the extent the service
has been provided (i.e. in accordance with the stage of completion at the reporting date), and the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Where the outcome of the transaction cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that expenses incurred are eligible to
be recovered.

5. Academic and Residential Facility User fees charged are applicable to one academic year and
are recognized when teaching and learning services are rendered by reference to the stage of
completion.

Kszivrqirx ettvstwexisrw> wyfwihniw erh kverxw

6. Government appropriations and grants for general purposes are recognized as revenue from
exchange or non-exchange transactions depending on the nature in the financial year in which
they accrue to the University. Government subvention and grant may include;

i. Emolument subvention;

ii. administrative subvention;

iii. investment subvention;

iv. book and research allowance; and
v. GETFund

Government subsidies and grants for specific research purposes are recognized as revenue
from non-exchange transaction in the financial period in which they accrue to the University
and in accordance with the relevant grants and agreements. Such subsidies and grants are
presented separately as revenue on the face of the Statement of financial performance.

Government subsidies and grants relating to specific expenses are not offset against the
expense but are included in the disclosure for Government appropriations — subsidies and

grants.
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7. Sale of goods: Revenue from sale of goods are recognized when goods are sold and delivered to
the customer.

8. InterestIncome is recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective rate of interest. Thus,
interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

9. Royalties are recognized when earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements
or contracts.

10. Dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance
when an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction is recognized as an asset or a reduction
in liability.

Research grants; Award and Memorial funds; Bursaries and financial Aid relate to amounts received
from individuals and organizations purposely to support the University’s research, scholarship schemes
and awards and for specific purposes mandated by the University.

Research Grant is recognized as revenue to the extent of related eligible expenditure incurred during
the financial reporting period.

Bursaries and Financial Aid is recognized as revenue to the extent of related eligible expenditure
incurred during the financial reporting period.

POLICY No. 1106
EGGSYRXIRK TSPIGHTIW> INTIRHIXYV

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwrfpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies for accounting for expenditure in the preparation of the
financial statements for the University of Ghana.

POLICY

Recognition of Expenditure

Expenditures are decreased in economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period
in the form of outflows or consumption of assets or incurrences of liabilities that result in decreases
in net assets/equity, other than those relating to distribution to owners. Expenditure is recognized
when incurred.

The University recognizes expenditure when goods or services from suppliers are delivered to the
University and its Units. Expenditure is also recognized when an obligation or the impairment of an
asset has occurred.
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The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before expenditure is recognized:
Employer contribution to retirement plan: Employer contributions to the University Superannuation
(Retirement) Fund are recognized Statement of financial performance in the year in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qual-
ifying asset form part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense.

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Development costs — Development costs are capitalized to the extent that they meet the requirement
of IPSAS 31— Intangible Assets.

Depreciation/ Amortisation is recognized as an expense in the statement of financial performance
as the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of assets over their useful life. Depreciation of
tangible and amortization of intangible assets are charged based on when the asset was made available
for use, i.e. assets are depreciated on a pro-rata basis based on the number of days it has been in use
in each financial year.

Impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of financial performance as the loss in
the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset beyond its depreciation charges.

An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. University of Ghana shall assess at each

reporting date whether there are any indications that its assets are impaired

Library books are written off in the year in which they are acquired.

POLICY No. 1107
EGGSYRXIRK TSPIGHTIW> RSRIGYVVIRX EWW I XW

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for the control of assets owned by the University and to set out
and explain the policies for accounting for Non- current Assets in the preparation of the financial
statements for the University of Ghana.

POLICY

1. The University’s non-current assets can be classified into;
a. Property, plant and equipment
b. Heritage assets
c. Investment property
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Service concession assets
Biological assets
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investment in associates

s e A

This policy applies to:
Property, Plant and Equipment - Land, buildings, furniture and equipment used in the operations of
the University (Section 1107.1).

Investment Property - Land, buildings, and equipment of the University not used in the operations but
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation is classified as an Investment Property (Section 1107.2).

Service Concession Arrangements — They are those assets that are acquired by the University under
service concession arrangements (Section 1107.3).

Biological Assets - Biological assets are living plants or animals.

Intangible assets — They are the University’s identifiable non-monetary asset with physical substance
(Section 1107.5).

1107.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

2. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recognized at cost. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises the purchase price (including taxes and excluding discounts and
rebates) and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to operate as intended by management.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired through non-exchange transactions (e,g.
donations), the cost shall be their fair value at the date of the acquisition.

3. Consistent with the definition of assets, the following policies have been proposed for asset
capitalization.

Asset Capitalization Policy

Land Cost to be capitalized includes all costs connected with acquisition and costs
incurred in preparing the land for its ultimate use. These include but are not
limited to the cost of purchase, appraisals, professional services, and title

insurance.
Land Improvements to be capitalized include the cost of landscape, surface parking
Improvements isswl erh syxhssv tyfung vigviexsrey Aiphw lezirk e gswx sj KLG940444 erh

above. All costs of land improvements associated with newly constructed
buildings will be capitalized.

Buildings Cost to be capitalized includes all costs related to acquisition or construction
of GHC 50,000 and above. Acquisition cost includes but is not limited to
the cost of purchase, professional services, appraisals and title insurance.
Construction cost includes but is not limited to the cost of professional
services, materials, labour, and site preparation.
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Infrastructure Cost to be capitalized includes underground utility and tunnels or any other
external, stationary asset that is not part of a building’s construction costs or
the costs of land improvements. The costs should be GHC50,000 and above
and have an expected life beyond the year it is placed in service. Examples of
Infrastructure are — sewage tunnels, electrical vaults, campus lighting, sports
grounds, entertainment parks, etc.

Asset Capitalization Policy
Building Fynhirk virszexisrw xs i getmep~ih evi wikriAgerx exivexisrw sv wxvygxyve)
Renovations changes that:

cost GHC50,000 and above

meet one or more of the following conditions:

i. The project extends the useful life of the building beyond what was originally
scheduled.

ii. The project substantially changes the use or purpose of the original space.

iii.. The project expands the total square footage of the building.

Renovation costs which do not meet either of these criteria is treated
ew qgeirxirergi i|tirhmyvi erh glekih xs xli wxexigirx sj Arergiej
performance. The book value of a renovated building will be reduced by
the cost of the components being replaced, if such costs can be easily
ascertained. If the book value of the asset being renovated is unknown, there
{m Fi rs gswxvihygasr sj x1i A|ih ewwix

Planning Costs Capital project planning costs associated with the planned construction,
virszexisri sv tyvglewi sj e wtigiAg fymhirk {m Fi getwep~ih ir ehzergi sj
the capital project being approved to the extent that the cost is GHC50,000
and above Planning costs include but are not limited to feasibility studies,
preliminary drawings, and initial cost estimates. Previously capitalized
verrirk gsww L Fi Lvxir sxs i|tirwior xli tivishxmw gpievxli wtigiAg
project will not move forward in the approval process.

Demolition of X1i fsso zepyi sjxhi Fyphork Lmp £1 Lvxir sLL{Iir e Fyphirkwhigspwl ih?

Buildings If the land is maintained, it will be measured at the fair value at the date of
demolition.

Purchased Purchased equipment or item to be capitalized is an article of non-expendable

Equipment or item | tangible property with a useful life of more than one year and at a cost of
GHC5,000 or more per unit.

Constructed For equipment constructed at the University, the acquisition cost includes
Equipment costs similar to those for purchased equipment as well as the costs incurred
for materials and recharge centre services used in the course of construction.
University labour expense, other than that embodied in a recharge centre
charge, is not included in the acquisition cost.

Software Operating software included in the price of the hardware will be capitalized.
When purchased separately, software will be capitalized if the cost is
GHC10,000 and above. Internally developed software with material and
labour costs in excess of GHC10,000 will also be capitalized.

Donated Assets Land and buildings received as a gift will be capitalized at the fair market or
appraised value at the date of the gift. Equipment received as a gift having a
fair market or appraised value of GHC50,000 or more will be capitalized.

Sales or Disposals | The book value of land, buildings, and equipment will be removed from the
of Capitalized accounting system when sold or disposed of.
Assets

4. Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment shall be stated at cost less accu-
mulated depreciation and any provision for impairment except for land and buildings which shall

Page | 38



University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy _

be carried at their fair value

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the University
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Maintenance and repairs costs of items of property, plant and equipment, which do not meet the
recognition criteria, are charged to the statement of financial performance as expenses.

5. Freehold Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. Non-current Assets are
depreciated on a straight - line basis estimated to write each asset down to its estimated residual

value over the estimated useful lives of the assets:

a. The following table displays the rates of depreciation to be applied to each category of assets.

Asset Rate of Depreciation (%)
Land (leasehold) Over the terms of the lease
Buildings 2
Other landed properties 2-10
Furniture & Fittings 25
Machinery & Equipment 25
ICT Equipment 33.3
Vehicles 20
Intangible assets 33.3

b. Assetsin the course of construction (Work in progress) are accounted for at cost, based on the
value of architect’s certificates and other direct costs incurred to the end of the year. They are
not depreciated until they are brought into use.

c. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment are charged based on when the asset is available
for use, i.e. assets are depreciated on a pro-rata basis based on the number of days it has been
in use in each financial year.

6. The asset’s residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
Statement of Financial Position date. An item of asset is de-recognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is charged to the Statement of financial performance in the year
the asset is de-recognized.

1107.2 Investment Property

7. Investment Property shall include land or a building - or part of a building — or both held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, rather than for:
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a. Usein the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes; or
b. Salein the ordinary course of the University’s operations.

8. Investment property is measured initially at its cost. For investment property acquired through a
non-exchange transaction, its cost shall be measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

9. Investment property is subsequently measured at fair value. The fair value of an investment
property should reflect market conditions as at the reporting date. Gains or loss arising from the
change in the fair value of an investment property shall be recognized in the statement of financial
performance in the year it arises.

10. Disposals: An investment property is derecognized when disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use, and no future economic benefit or service potential
are expected from its disposal. Gains or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an investment
property (the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is recognized
in the statement of financial performance in the period of the disposal or retirement of the asset.

11. Transfers: Investment property may be transferred to or from property, plant and equipment and

inventory based on the change in the use of the investment property.

1107.3 Service Concession Arrangements

Service Concession Assets

1. Service Concession arrangement is a binding arrangement between a grantor and an operator
(concessionaire) in which:

a. The operator uses service concession asset to provide public service on behalf of the grantor
for a specified period of time; and

b. The operator is compensated for its services over the period of the service concession
arrangement.

2. This policy applies where the University is the grantor under the service concession arrangement.
Service Concession Assets are asset(s) used by the operator (concessionaire) to provide public services
in a service concession arrangement. The asset(s) could either be provided by the operator (conces-

sionaire) or the University (grantor), and it could be an existing asset of the University (grantor).

3. The University (grantor) recognizes an asset provided by the operator (concessionaire) or an
upgrade to the University’s (grantor) existing asset(s) if;

1. The University (grantor) controls or regulates what services the operator (concessionaire)
must provide with the asset, to whom it must provide the service and at what price; and

ii. The University (grantor) controls any significant residual interest in the asset at the end of

the term of the service concession arrangement, either through ownership or any beneficial
entitlement.
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4. The University (grantor) measures its service concession assets initially at its fair value except
when reclassified from its existing assets.

5. Where existing asset(s) of the University (grantor) meets the recognition criteria above, the
University (grantor) reclassifies its existing assets as a service concession asset(s) and account
for it as Property, Plant and Equipment or as Intangible Assets as appropriate.

6. Subsequent to initial recognition or reclassification, the University accounts for its service con-
cession assets as a separate class of assets as either Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) or as
Intangible Assets as appropriate.

Service Concession Liabilities

7. Where the University (grantor) recognizes a service concession asset, it also recognizes a liability.
The University measures the service concession liability at the same amount as the service conces-
sion asset and adjusted by any other consideration from the University (grantor) or the operator
(concessionaire).

8. University (grantor) does not recognize a liability when its existing asset(s) is reclassified as a service
concession asset(s) except where the operator (concessionaire) provides additional consideration.

9. The settlement of liabilities by the University (grantor) may either be by:

a. The Financial Liability Model: or
b. Grant of a right to the operator Model

The Financial Liability Model is a service concession arrangement where the University has an
unconditional obligation to pay cash or other financial assets to the operator (concessionaire) for the
construction, development, acquisition or upgrade of a service concession asset. Under this model,
The University accounts for the liability in accordance with sections 7 and 8 above.

Under the financial liability model, the University accounts and allocates the payments to the operator
(concessionaire), and accounts for the payment as a reduction in the liability recognized as a finance
charge for services provided by the operator (concessionaire).

Grant of a right to the Operator Model - The University classifies its liability under this model where it
does not have an unconditional obligation to pay cash or another financial asset to the operator (con-
cessionaire) for the construction, development, acquisition or upgrade of a service concession asset
and grants the operator (concessionaire) the right to earn revenue from third party users or another
revenue generating asset.

Under this model, the University accounts for the liability recognized as the unearned portion of the
revenue from the exchange of the assets between the University and the operator (concessionaire)
and recognizes revenue each year to reduce the liability recognized.

1107.4 Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce

Biological assets are living plants or animals. Biological assets of the University are used mainly for
research and educational purposes and are accounted for as property, plant and equipment or as
inventory depending on whether they are bearer or consumable assets. Bearer biological assets are
those assets that are used continuously for more than one year. Consumable biological assets are those
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assets that are held for harvest as agricultural produce.

Bearer biological assets are initially measured at their accumulated cost until maturity. Upon maturity,
bearer biological assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any pro-
vision for impairment. Bearer biological assets are depreciated over their productive or economic lives.

Consumable biological assets are held as inventory and measured at the lower of cost and net real-
izable value. The cost of consumable biological assets comprise the total cost incurred on the asset
until maturity. Agricultural produce from biological assets are also classified and treated as inventory.

1107.5 Intangible assets

The University recognizes an asset as an intangible asset when it is identifiable (i.e. separable or arises
from a binding agreement); the University has control over the asset and when the asset is expected
to generate future economic benefit or service potential to the university.

Intangible assets arising from research are not recognized as an asset but expensed in the period that
they relate to. Research expenditure is recognized as an expense.

Intangible assets arising from development are recognized as assets only if all the following can be
demonstrated:
1. Thereis atechnical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so the asset will be available
for use or sale;
ii. The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
iii. The ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
iv. How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;
v. The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the develop-
ment to use or sell the intangible asset; and
vi. The ability to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a separately acquired intangible asset
comprise the purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes excluding
trade discounts and rebates.

Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated amortization and accu-
mulated impairment losses.

Iqtenvqirx sj rsriArergiep ewwixw

12. The University assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that its assets (Cash-
Generating Assets and Non-Cash Generating Assets) may be impaired. If any such indication exists
the University shall make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
The University shall test its intangible assets with indefinite useful life for impairment annually
by comparing the carrying amounts with their recoverable amount.

13. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired, and it is written down to its recoverable amount.

14. Reversal of animpairmentloss: An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
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decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. Where this is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.

15. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognized in the Statement of financial performance unless the asset is carried at the revalued
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

16. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

POLICY No. 1108

EGGSYRXIRK TSPIGHIW IRZITWXQ IRX IR WY FWIHNIEVITWIEWWSGIEXT( PIEWIW) IRZ I RXS-
RY & PROVISIONS ASSETS

Subject Area Accounting Policies
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To set out and explain the policies on accounting for Investments in Subsidiaries/ Associates,
Leases, Inventory and Provisions in the preparation of the financial statements for the University of
Ghana.

POLICY

Investment in Subsidiaries/Associates

The University’s investment in subsidiaries are accounted using consolidation method in accordance
with the applicable IPSAS.

For this purpose, subsidiaries are entities that the University is exposed, or has rights, to variable
benefits from its involvement with those entities (subsidiaries) and has the ability to affect the nature
or amount of those benefits through its power over those entities (subsidiaries). Thus, those entities
over which the University, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obtain the benefits from its activities.

The consolidated financial statements shall comprise the financial statements of the University and
its subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the University
acquires effective control, up to date that such effective control ceases.

The University shall prepare consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for
similar transactions and events of its subsidiaries. The financial statements of the University and its
subsidiaries used in preparing the consolidated financial statements shall be prepared as at the same
reporting date. Where the reporting date of the University and its subsidiaries differ, the financial
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statements of the subsidiaries shall be adjusted to the reporting date of the University.

1.

The University of Ghana’s investment in its associate companies or joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. The investment in an associate company or joint venture
is classified as a non- current asset.

a. Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is initially recognized at cost and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the University’s share of the surplus
or deficit of the associate after the date of acquisition. The University’s share of the surplus
or deficit is recognized in the Statement of financial performance.

b. Ifthe University’s share of deficit of an associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate,
the University will discontinue recognizing its share of further deficits.

c. After the University’s interest is reduced to zero, additional losses will be provided for, and a
liability recognized only to the extent that the University has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

d. After application of the equity method, including recognizing the associate’s losses, the
University will determine whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment
loss with respect to the University’s net investment in the associate.

e. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the University
will recognize its share of any changes and disclose this, when applicable.

f. The University will indicate if the reporting dates of the associates and the University are
identical and the associate’s accounting policies conform to those used by the University for
like - transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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Endowment asset investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position at market value.

Inventories

2. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

3. Costincludes all direct expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their current state under
normal operating conditions. The cost of inventories (that are similar or interchangeable in nature)
are calculated using the weighted average cost formula.

4. Netrealizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

5. Damaged and obsolete inventories are written off. Provision for inventory losses during the year
is charged to the Statement of financial performance.

Provisions

6. Provisions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

7. The amount recognized as provision should be the best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the obligation at the Statement of Financial Position date. The best estimate should be deter-
mined by the judgment of the University’s management and should take account of:

« Past experience of similar transactions;

« Opinions of independent experts (where appropriate);
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« Uncertainties caused by weighting all possible outcomes (i.e. expected value);
« Appropriate policies.

Where the University expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reim-
bursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement
of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

Leases

9.

10.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease as defined in these Regulations

is based on the relationship created between the parties and the substance of the arrangement at

inception date. A re-assessment is made after theinception of the lease only if one of the following

applies:

a. Thereis achange in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. Arenewal option is exercised, or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

c. Thereisachangein the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the

change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a) (c) or (d) and at the date

of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

University as a lessee

11.

12.

13.

Finance Leases (which transfer to the University substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item) are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property
or, iflower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to the Statement
of financial performance.

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the University will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of financial performance
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

University as a lessor

Where the University does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
as the lease is classified as Operating Leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an Operating
Lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are earned.

3.2.3 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

SECTION NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
1200 |POLICY NO REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
1201 General Reporting Requirements 46
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1202 Statement of Financial Position 48

1203 Statement of Financial Performance 51

POLICY No. 1201
GENERAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Subject Area Reporting Requirements
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To summarise the main reporting requirements prescribed by the Statutes and Laws of
the University of Ghana.

POLICY

Responsibilities
1. Itistheresponsibility of the Director of Finance to prepare the financial statements of the University.

The financial statements shall cover all transactions and events of the University that utilize bud-
getary allocations from the University’s Funds.

Reporting Period

2. The financial year of the University shall extend from the first day of January until the thirty-first
day of December. The annual financial statements shall be prepared and submitted within two
months after the end of the financial year to the Auditor-General and the Controller and Accountant-
General. Where any recommendation has be made on the financial affairs of the University, a
report on the status of implementation of the recommendations made by the Auditor-General
and a report on the status of implementation of recommendations made by Parliament shall be
submitted to the Minister of Finance and the Auditor-General on an annual basis.

Reporting Currency

3. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedi, which is the University’s
functional and presentation currency.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

4. The policies used in the preparation of the accounts should be IPSAS and in accordance with the
Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921) and L.I 2378. The policies used for the preparation
of the accounts shall be disclosed in the notes to the accounts as well as any significant departures
from the policies and the reasons thereof.

General Presentation and Disclosure

5. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with accrual basis International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) and in compliance with policies stated in these Regulations.
The Director of Finance shall also identify any significant departures and the reasons for the
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departures from provisions in the Regulations.

Financial Statements

6. The financial statements for the University shall include:

i. a Statement of Financial Position showing the assets and liabilities at the end of the year;
ii. a Statement of Financial Performance for the year;

iii. Statement of Changes in Net Assets/ Equity at the end of the year;

iv. a Cash Flow Statement for the year;

v. Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes that form part of the accounts which shall include
particulars of the extent to which the performance criteria specified in the budget estimate in
relation to the provision of the University’s output were satisfied;

vi. Statement of appropriation;

POLICY No. 1202

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Subject Area Reporting Requirements
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To summarize the main reporting requirements prescribed by the Statutes and Regulations
of the University of Ghana.

POLICY

1.

The Statement of Financial Position presents the University’s financial position at a specific point
in time. The adopted format provides how detailed sub-classifications are to be presented and what
information is to be disclosed on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes in
addition to the minimum requirements.

The following broad items, as a minimum, have to be presented on the face of the Statement of
Financial Position:
1. Assets
ii. Liabilities
111. Net Assets
iv. Financing which is made up of:
a. Accumulated Fund
b. Deferred Capital Grants
c. General Reserve Fund
d. Endowment Funds
e. Restricted funds designated for specific activities
1. Special Research Funds
2. Research and Awards Fund

f. Other Funds
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Assets

3. Assets are resources controlled by the University as a result of past events and from which future
economic benefits or service potential are expected to flow to the University.

4. Assets are recognized when they are procured instead of when payment is made except for cash
transactions where the two may occur at the same time. Therefore, the transactions and events
are recorded in the accounting records and recognized in the financial statements of the periods
to which they relate.

Current/non-current distinction

5. Current and non-current assets should be presented as separate classifications on the face of the
Statement of Financial Position, unless presentation based on liquidity provides information that
is reliable and more relevant.

6. An assetis classified as current if it is expected to be:
a. realized, sold or consumed in the University’s normal operating cycle;
b. primarily held for the purpose of being traded;
c. realized within 12 months after the end of the reporting period;
d. orcash and cash equivalent (unless restrictions apply).

7. Classification of Assets
The following classifications shall be adopted under Assets:

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Non-current deposit
Intangible assets

Quoted securities

Investment in Subsidiary

Due from related parties
Investment in associates
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Current Assets

Inventories

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Investments

Cash and cash equivalent

Liabilities
8. Liabilities are present obligations of the University arising from past events, the settlement of

which is expected to result in an outflow from the university resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential.

In some cases, it is not clear whether there is a present obligation. In these cases, a past event is
deemed to give rise to a present obligation if, taking account of all available evidence, it is more
likely than not, that a present obligation exists at the reporting date.
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9. The amount of work required to recognize liabilities depends on the extent to which the University
already has information available on those liabilities. General steps in the recognition of liabilities
include:

- compiling a list of all types of liabilities incurred by the University;

« determining the categories of liabilities that will be used in the chart of accounts and the finan-
cial statements;

« preparing accounting policies for each category;

« assessing the accuracy and completeness of existing information on each category;

« compiling accurate opening balances for each category (identification, application of the defi-
nition of a liability, and measurement); and

. establishing systems to support the ongoing requirements of accrual accounting.

Current/non-current distinction

10. Current and non-current liabilities should be presented as separate classifications on the face of
the Statement of Financial Position, unless presentation based on liquidity provides information
that is reliable and more relevant.

Aliability is classified as current if:

i. itisexpected to be settled in the University’s normal operating cycle;

ii. itis primarily held for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting date;
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11. The following classifications shall be adopted under Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Restricted funds
a. Special Research Funds
b. Bursaries and financial aid
c. Awards and memorial funds
iii. Deferred Income Liability
iv. Employee benefit obligation

Current liabilities

i. Bankoverdraft

ii. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
iii. Borrowings

iv. Employee benefit obligation

Equity
12. Equity is the difference between the total value of all assets and the total value of all liabilities. The
Composition of equity is:
i. Accumulated Fund (Surplus/Deficit)
ii. Deferred Capital Grants
iii. General Reserve Fund
iv. Endowment Funds
a. Permanent

5 The university does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the state-
ment of financial position date (even if the original term was for a period of longer than 12 months and an agreement to
refinance is completed after the statement of financial position date).
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b. Expendable
v. Other Funds
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13. Asurplus/ (deficit) is the residual amount that remains after expenses arising from ordinary activ-
ities have been deducted from income arising from ordinary activities. This net surplus/ (deficit)
is accumulated over subsequent reporting periods. All items of income and expense recognized
in a period should be included in the determination of the net surplus or deficit for the period.

Other Funds or Reserves

14. Other Funds or Reserves relate to the University Capital Reserve which arises from the Revaluation
of Non-Current Assets and Other Reserves.

Events after Reporting Date

15. These are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. Two types of events can be
identified; Adjustable and Non-Adjustable

1. Adjustable Events: Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting
date. These are adjusting events after the reporting date. The adjustment shall be made in
the Accumulated Fund after the balance brought forward.

ii. Non-Adjustable Events: Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting
date and do not require any adjustment.

Comparatives

16. The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of financial performance and the Statement of
Cash Flows shall have the comparative figures for the previous period. Comparative information
should be included in narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant to an understanding
of the current period’s financial statements.

17. In some cases, narrative information provided in the financial statements for the previous period (s)
continues to be relevant in the current period. For example, details of a legal dispute, the outcome
of which was uncertain at the last reporting date and is yet to be resolved, are disclosed in the
current period. Users benefit from knowing that the uncertainty existed at the last reporting date,
and the steps that have been taken during the period to resolve the uncertainty.

POLICY No. 1203
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Subject Area Reporting Requirements
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To summarize the main reporting requirements prescribed by the Statutes and Regulations
of the University of Ghana.
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POLICY

1. The Statement of financial performance presents the University’s financial performance over a
specific period of time. The adopted format provides how detailed sub-classifications are to be
presented and what information is to be disclosed on the face of the Statement of financial per-
formance or in the notes, in addition to the minimum requirements.

2. The Statement of financial performance should present the following amounts for the reporting
period:

1. total income of the University showing separately a sub-classification using a classification
basis appropriate to the University’s operations as required by IPSAS; and

ii. total expenditure of the University showing separately a sub-classification using a classification
basis appropriate to the University’s operations.

3. The Income and Expenditure for each Unit and sub-classification shall be reported gross in the
University’s Statement of financial performance.

4. The Income and Expenditure may be reported only when they arise from transactions which the
University administers on behalf of other parties and which are recognized in the Statement of

financial performance.

3.2.4 TREASURY MANAGEMENT

SECTION NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
1300 POLICY NO TREASURY MANAGEMENT
1301 General Treasury Policies 52
1302 Signatories to Bank Accounts 54
1303 Separately Administered Bank Accounts 55
1304 Cash Management 56
1305 Cash Collection and Deposit 57

POLICY No. 1301
GENERAL TREASURY POLICIES

Subject Area Treasury Measurement
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish responsibility for the efficient operations of the University’s Treasury
relationships.
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Policy

1.

Pursuant to section 33(1) of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921), the University
shall not enter into any agreement with a financial commitment that binds the Government for
more than one financial year or that results in a contingent liability except where the financial
commitment or the contingent liability

1. is with the prior written approval of the Minister, and

2. authorised by Parliament in accordance with article 181 of the Constitution of Ghana,
1992.

The Council is responsible for approving a Treasury Policy Statement setting out a strategy and
policies for cash management, investments and borrowings. The Finance and General Purposes
Committee has a responsibility to ensure implementation, monitoring and review of such policies.

All executive decisions concerning borrowing, investment or financing (within policy parameters)
shall be the responsibility of the Vice-Chancellor and shall be delegated to the Director of Finance
who will prepare procedures including an appropriate reporting system. All borrowing shall be
undertaken in the name of the University. In addition to the above, all investments and borrowings
will be conducted as set out in the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921).

The Vice-Chancellor may propose or commit to invest in a project only after expert assessment
has been completed and the justification for the investment project and efficiency is established in
accordance with Section 33(5) of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921). The method
for the preparation, evaluation and execution of investment projects under section 33 of the Public
Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921), shall made in accordance with the financial regulation
set by the Minister.

Pursuant to Regulation 16 of the Public Financial Management Regulation, 2019, L.1.2378, (L.1.2378),
the Multi-year expenditure ceiling of the University to be issued shall cover recurrent and capital
expenditures of the University regardless of the funding source for medium-term and the multi-
year ceiling shall take into account the baseline of forecast for the compensation of employees and
the forecast for the payments of arrears under Regulation 17 and 18 of the L.I1.2378.

1. The Director of Finance will report to the Finance and General Purposes Committee
on the activities of the Treasury operations and on the exercise of treasury powers
delegated to him/her.

2. The Vice-Chancellor is responsible for approving the appointment of the University’s
bankers and other professional advisors on the recommendation of the Finance and
General Purposes Committee after all the due diligence have been performed.

3. The Vice-Chancellor of the University shall before the closure of a bank account under
his or her control, in writing, obtain the approval of the Controller and Accountant
General for the closure of the bank account in accordance with section 51(8) of the Public
Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921).

4. The Director of Finance with the written authorization of the Vice-Chancellor and the
written approval of the Controller and Accountant General may open or close bank
accounts with the University’s bankers. All requests to the University’s bankers to open
or close a bank account shall be in writing and signed by both the Director of Finance and
one other individual authorized to sign cheques. All such requests must be supported
with the written approvals of the Vice-Chancellor and the Controller and Accountant
General.
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The Director of Finance shall inform the Finance and General Purposes Committee
whenever an account has been opened or closed.

All bank accounts shall be in the name of the University or one of its subsidiaries.

In the case of a subsidiary company, the Regulations of the company shall prescribe
responsibility for the company’s bank accounts.

A summary of all bank accounts and trust arrangements with banks must be reported
annually to the Director of Finance by the Treasury Office for review.

The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that University bank accounts are
regularly reconciled (at the least monthly), and that there are adequate procedures
to ensure security over cheques and any other means of transferring funds.

All approval and/or delegation of duties relating to any financial matter by the Vice-
Chancellor shall be done in writing to the designated delegate.

POLICY No. 1302

SIGNATORIES TO BANK ACCOUNTS

Subject Area Treasury Management

Viwtsrwifpi

SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance
(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)

Approval

The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To define and outline University policy with respect to the establishment and manage-
ment of bank accounts.

POLICY

10.1 Details of bank mandates and authorized signatories and limits shall be provided for in
the procedures which are available internally to the Finance Directorate, a copy of which
shall at all times be deposited with the Vice-Chancellor. Details of bank mandates and
authorized signatories shall be approved by the Finance & General Purposes Committee
and the Council.

10.2 Officers responsible for committing, certifying, or authorizing the receipt/ disbursement
of funds shall judiciously and honestly carry out their duties in the best interest of the
University. For this and other control reasons, two signatures are required on all cheques
drawn on the University of Ghana-controlled bank accounts.

10.3 All cheques drawn on behalf of the University must be signed in the form approved by
the Finance & General Purposes Committee. The number of authorized signatories that

ex1

st in the University must be kept to a minimum. Provosts, Deans and Directors must

conduct a regular review of the number of signatories that are required to permit the
optimal financial management in their Departments. A review must be undertaken at
least once a year by the Director of Finance to ensure that only current members of the

Un

iversity are included.

10.4 Provosts, Deans and Directors must inform the Director of Finance whenever an autho-
rized signatory ceases to be a member of the University.
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1i.

ii.
1v.

10.5 All requests for the creation of authorized signatories must be in the prescribed format.
A copy of the relevant form may be obtained from the Finance Directorate.

10.6 In accepting the role of an authorized signatory the individuals concerned must famil-
iarize themselves with the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy and ensure
compliance thereto.

10.7 The use in the Financial Regulations and Governance Policy of the term “authorized
signatory” shall encompass electronic as well as written signatures. The term “electronic
signature” means data in electronic form which are attached to or logically associated with
other electronic data and which serve as a method of authentication. Electronic signatures
must only be used in such circumstances and for such transactions as have been approved
in advance by the Director of Finance.

10.8 All such electronic signatures shall take such form and technical specification as required
by the Director of Finance. In all cases, electronic signatures must be:

uniquely linked to the signatory,

capable of identifying the signatory,

applied using means that the signatory can maintain under his or her sole control,

linked to the data to which it relates in such a manner that any subsequent change of the
data is detectable;

Employees are reminded that the misuse of electronic signatures, including using the signa-
ture of another person, is forbidden with regard to electronic signatures as it is for written
signatures. In both cases, misuse shall lead to disciplinary action and a report to the Police.

Itis forbidden for a member of staff to apply another person’s signature, whether written or
electronic, even if this is done at their request. In such cases, both persons are at fault and
may face disciplinary and / or criminal sanctions.

Details of authorized persons and their limits shall be provided for in the University’s detailed
financial procedures manual.

POLICY No. 1303

SEPARATELY ADMINISTERED BANK ACCOUNTS

Subject Area Treasury Management

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to define and outline University policy with respect to the
establishment and management of separately administered bank accounts.

POLICY

1. Asamatter of efficiency and control it is the practice of the Finance Directorate to maintain as few
bank accounts as possible. There may, however, be circumstances which require the establishment
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of separate bank accounts for a Unit’s use. An example would be an off-campus facility that does
not have convenient access to the University Accounts Payable Department.

2. Separately administered bank accounts must be established through the Finance Directorate.

3. Allaccounts and authorized signatories must be authorized by the Finance and General Purposes
Committee. On an annual basis, a report of accounts and signatories should be presented by the
Director of Finance to the Finance and General Purposes Committee.

4. All accounts must have authorized signatories including representatives from the Finance
Directorate.

5. Separately administered bank accounts are to be used only for their intended purpose.

6. The custodian of the fund is responsible for (a) the fund’s safeguarding and security, and (b) per-
formance of reconciliations as frequently as possible (the frequency should not exceed one month)
which must be submitted to the Deputy Director of Finance (FATM) for review and approval.

7. The Director of Finance will report to the Finance & General Purposes Committee quarterly on
the activities of the Treasury management operation and the exercise of Treasury management

8. powers delegated to him/ her. The Director of Finance will also submit an annual report to the
Finance & General Purposes Committee.

POLICY No. 1304

CASH MANAGEMENT
Subject Area Treasury Management
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval Investment Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish policy guidelines which address the management and investment of University
of Ghana funds.

POLICY

1.

The Council may through the Director of Finance, acting under the authority of the Vice-Chancellor
invest the funds of the University that are not required for immediate use as it considers appropriate.

The Director of Finance shall prepare and submit to the Finance and General Purposes Committee,
monthly cash flow forecasts of the University for the ensuing three months.

No investment shall be done in a government security and shall mature within a fiscal year.

The Investment Committee is responsible for developing policies, guidelines and monitoring the
University’s cash management system.

The Director of Finance shall under the authority of the Vice-Chancellor be responsible for the
University’s investment activities carried out in accordance with the policy established by the
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Investment Committee.

6. The Budget Officer will be responsible for providing input on long term strategic cash needs and
the effect on the operating budget.

7. Afterreceiving the approved budget, the Budget Officer prepares quarterly cash forecast (plans) indi-
cating the timing of the cash requirements. These cash plans are approved by the Vice-Chancellor.
Any excess funds would then be invested in approved investments.

8. Cashneeded to meet daily working capital requirements will be invested in Call Accounts whereas
cash not needed for daily working capital requirements will be invested in Short Term Securities.

9. The Investment Office will report on the performance of the Investments at each meeting of the
Investment Committee.

POLICY No. 1305
CASH COLLECTION AND DEPOSIT
Subject Area Treasury Management
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance
(Financial Accounting & Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish sound internal control practices to safeguard cash receipts and deposits
against theft or loss.

POLICY

Cash

1.

The term cash includes currency, cheques and money orders and direct deposit to the bank.

All monies received within Units from whatever source must be recorded on a daily basis together
with the form in which they were received. Receipts must be given where money is paid using
official receipt stationery.

Endorsement

3.

All cheques must be strictly endorsed by the University immediately upon receipt. The endorsement
must include “For Deposit Only to University of Ghana”.

Frequency of Deposit

4.

To safeguard cash and to ensure the timely and proper posting of accounts, cash receipts from the
Units must be deposited intact on the day of receipt at the bank or for deposit in the University
Cash Office. If this is not possible (e.g., the cash receipts were received after the Cashier’s Office
has closed for the day), the cash receipts from the Units must be safely secured overnight and
deposited on the next business day, or deposited in the after hours depository available in the Bank.
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Place of Deposit

5. Cash must be deposited with the University Cash Office or at designated Banks within the time
specified in (4) above.

Safekeeping of Cash

6. Cash must be physically protected through the use of vaults, locked cash drawers, cash registers,
locked metal boxes, etc. Each establishment is responsible for making whatever provisions are nec-
essary to properly safeguard cash receipts prior to deposit with the University Cash Office/ Bank.

Separation of Duties

7. Accountability for the handling of cash must be assigned to a specific individual(s), and there
must be a clear separation of duties between the individual(s) receiving cash and the individual(s)
responsible for maintaining the accounting records.

Reconciliation

8. The Cash Office must acknowledge each deposit with a written receipt and each Unit must reconcile
cash received and deposited to the University Financial Accounting System on a monthly basis.

Compliance

9. Each Provost, Dean or Director is responsible for complying with this policy and for developing
detailed written operating procedures. The Cash Office is available for consultation and review of
departmental procedures.

Private Use of Balances

10. All sums received must be paid in and accounted for in full, and must not be used to meet miscella-
neous expenses or be paid into the petty cash float. Personal or other cheques must not be cashed
out of money received on behalf of the University.

3.2.5 INCOME

SECTION NO DESCRIPTION PAGE

1400 POLICY NO |INCOME
1401 General Provisions 58
1402 Student Fees & Other Charges 60
1403 Research Grants & Contracts 62
1404 Other Income — Generating Activities 63

POLICY No. 1401
INCOME - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subject Area Income

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised
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PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in income mobilization and
generation and the revenue accounting roles and responsibilities in the University.

POLICY

The Income or Funds of the University includes:

a. subventions from the Government of Ghana;
b. monies that accrue to the University in the performance of its functions consisting of:
1. fees paid by students duly registered by the University;
ii. fees, charges and dues in respect of services by or through the University;
iii. proceeds from the sale of publications of the University;
iv. grants, subscriptions, rents and royalties;
c. interest from investments;
endowments, donations and gifts; and
e. monies from any other source approved by the Council.

Maximization of Income

2.

The Director of Finance under the authority of the Vice-Chancellor is responsible for ensuring that
appropriate procedures are in operation to enable the University to receive all income to which it
is entitled. All receipt forms, invoices or other official documents in use and electronic collection
systems must have the prior approval of the Director of Finance.

Levels of charges for contract research, services rendered, goods supplied, and rents and lettings
are approved by the Finance & General Purposes Committee. Proposals to amend charges relating
to leases, share of income in joint arrangements and similar related transactions should be sent
through the Director of Finance to the Finance and General Purposes Committee for approval by
the Council taking into account the University’s academic policies and needs. The approval of fees
and charges shall include any installment and credit arrangements.

The Director of Finance is responsible for the prompt collection, security and banking of all income
received.

The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that all grants approved as part of the
National Budget through the Ghana Tertiary Education Commission are received and appro-
priately recorded in the University’s accounts. He/ she is also responsible for ensuring that all
claims for funds are made by the due date.

Receipt of Cash, cheques and other negotiable instruments

6.

It is the responsibility of all employees to ensure that income due to the University is maximized
by the efficient application of agreed procedures for the identification, collection and banking
of such income. In particular, this requires the prompt notification to the Director of Finance of
sums due so that collection can be initiated.

All monies (cash, cheques and other negotiable instruments) received within each establish-
ment from whatever source must be recorded by them on a daily basis together with the form in
which they were received, .

All monies received must be paid to the appropriate Cash Office promptly, and in accordance
with a timetable prescribed by the Director of Finance.
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9. All sums received must be paid in and accounted for in full and must not be used to meet mis-
cellaneous expenses or be paid into the petty cash float. Personal or other cheques must not be
cashed out of money received on behalf of the University.

Collection of Debts

10. The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that appropriate procedures are in operation
so that:

i. debtors invoices are raised promptly on official invoice stationery, in respect of all income
due to the University;

ii. invoices are prepared with care, recorded in the ledger, show the correct amount due and are
credited to the appropriate income account;

iii. any credits granted are valid, properly authorized and fully recorded;

iv. VAT is correctly charged where appropriate, and accounted for;

v. monies received are posted to the correct debtors account;

vi. swift and effective action is taken in collecting overdue debts, in accordance with the protocols
noted in the Financial Procedures; and

vii. outstanding debts are monitored and reports prepared for management.

11. The Finance and General Purposes Committee shall subject to the pre-approval of the Vice-
Chancellor develop a credit policy for the University with the Director of Finance implementing
the credit arrangements. Any subsequent changes to standard credit terms must be submitted
to the Finance & General Purposes Committee for approval.

12. Requests to write off debts must be referred in writing to the Director of Finance for submis-
sion to the Finance & General Purposes Committee for the consideration and approval of the
Council. The University shall not waive any debt without the prior approval of Parliament.

POLICY No. 1402
STUDENT FEES & OTHER CHARGES

Subject Area Income

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in the collection and accounting
for student fees and other charges in the University.

POLICY

1. The University should recognize fees and charges when the rights to consideration exist and con-
tractual performance has taken place.

2. The University shall have a policy of full cost recovery in the determination of fees and charges
including charges due for admission, registration, accommodation, programmes of study, exam-
inations, and conferment of degrees and otherwise with Parliamentary approval
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3.

The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that all student fees due to the University are
received. University Statutes require that Students shall pay such fees representing charges due for
admission, registration, tuition, accommodation, programmes of study, examinations, conferment

of degrees and otherwise, including payment of money owed to the University in respect of loans,
books or other equipment or materials at such times, and in such manner, as may be fixed from
time to time by the Council.

No person shall be registered as a student of the University until:

i. Fees have been paid in full, or arrangements have been made which are acceptable to the
University for the payment of such fees for the current academic year by instalments.
Unless otherwise sanctioned by the Council, a student shall cease to be a registered student
if arrangements for payment by instalments are not fulfilled;

ii. Ifapplicable, all other fees and sums due to the University incurred in the previous academic
year have been discharged in full.

No student may be admitted to any assessment unless he or she has paid such fees as may have
been prescribed by the Council for the purposes of assessment. The Vice-Chancellor shall have the
power to direct that the assessment result for any student who has not paid in full all fees, loans,
charges or other sums due to the University shall not be published, nor submitted to the Council
for confirmation, until all such debts have been paid in full.

The procedures for collecting academic and residential facility fees and other charges must be
approved by the Finance and General Purposes Committee on the advice of the Director of Finance.
The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that all student fees due to the University are
received.

Any student who has a course related debt owing to the University shall not receive the certificate
for any degree, diploma or other qualification awarded by the University until the outstanding debt
has been cleared in full. Such student shall be prevented from re-enrolling at the University and
from using any of the University’s facilities unless appropriate arrangements have been made to
repay their outstanding debts. Any exceptions shall be subject to the approval by the Vice Chancellor.

Accounting for bursaries and scholarships

8.

10.

11.

12.

A bursary or scholarship is a payment made to a student from the University’s funds. These pay-
ments are made to students dependent on certain criteria, such as the financial position of the
student. Such criteria are determined through the University’s internal policies or may be deter-
mined by regulatory bodies.

It is expected that bursaries and scholarships will be accounted for gross as expenditure. This
reflects the nature of the transactions, which will be a payment of funds by the University.

Where bursaries or scholarships are paid from endowment funds, reference should be made to
the accounting and disclosure requirements set out in policy no. 2001.

Bursaries paid from funds of third parties, where the University is acting in an Agency capacity,
should be accounted in accordance with the guidance provided under ‘Agency Arrangements/
Other Funds’.

Enrolled students who leave before matriculation shall suffer retention of 30% of the academic
year’s fee.
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POLICY No. 1403

RESEARCH GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

Subject Area Income
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance

(Research & Projects Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To define the responsibilities for the fiscal management of grants and contracts awarded
to the University.

POLICY

1.

Research can be defined as an original investigation, undertaken to gain new knowledge and
understanding, which may be directed towards a specific aim or objective. It can use existing
knowledge in experimental development to produce new or substantially improved materials,
devices, products and processes including design and construction. It excludes routine testing
and analysis of materials, components and processes.

Where approaches are made to outside bodies for support for research projects or where con-
tracts are to be undertaken on behalf of such bodies, it is the responsibility of Provosts, Deans
and Directors to:
i. ensurethatafinancial appraisalis conducted before any agreement or other transaction
to be undertaken is agreed upon; and
ii. obtain a set of grant terms and conditions from each organization providing funding
to enable the appropriate monitoring of compliance.
iii. ensure that all agreements and transaction documents are reviewed and managed by
the Legal Counsel for purposes of identifying any legal risk or potential liability.

The Office of Research, Innovation and Development (ORID) is responsible for ensuring that every
formal application for a grant is examined and shall also ensure that there is adequate provision
of resources to meet all commitments.

The Director of Finance should ensure that the full cost of research contracts is established. The
research agreement must be in line with the University’s policy with regard to indirect costs and
other expenses and should also take account of different procedures for the pricing of research
projects depending on the nature of the funding body. Where there is a conflict between University
policy and the procedures of the funding body, the agreement must be approved by the Vice-
Chancellor prior to the execution of the agreement.

Research grants and contracts shall be accepted on behalf of the University by the Chair of the
University’s Research, Innovation and Development Management Board.

Full costs, both direct and indirect, will be charged to research activity whether or not the funding
arrangements permit full recovery. The Director of Finance shall develop the basis for charging
rates for all utilities, space and other indirect costs to research activities. (The budget for every research
project must have an overhead charge).
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Actual recovery of research overheads compared to a full cost basis will be reported to the ORID.

Each grant or contract shall have a named supervisor or grant holder and shall be assigned to a
specific Unit. The named supervisor shall sign an indemnity agreement with the University where
all benefits under the grant or contract are personal to the supervisor and the University is not in
the position to control or prevent any potential liability to be incurred by the supervisor which is
likely to have financial implications.

The Director of Finance shall maintain all financial records relating to research grants and contracts.

Common to the regulations of all agencies is the fundamental requirement that a particular grant or
contract may only be charged for costs related to that project. Co-mingling of charges for research
contracts or other restricted sources is not allowed.

If a Unit’s research activities are entirely funded by a single grant or contract, there are no cost
allocation issues. It is often the case, however, that a research laboratory is funded by multiple
sources. Accordingly, it is necessary to ensure that expenditures, whether they are related to per-
sonnel, equipment, supplies or other categories, are properly allocated to the various grants and
contracts.

Many grant awarding bodies and contracting organizations stipulate conditions under which their
funding is given. In addition, there are often procedures to be followed regarding the submission
of interim or final reports or the provision of other relevant information. Failure to respond to
these conditions often means that the University will suffer a significant financial penalty. It is
the responsibility of the named supervisor or grant holder to ensure that conditions of funding
are met. Any loss to the University resulting from a failure to meet the conditions of funding is the
responsibility of the designated Provost, Dean or Director and will be charged against the Unit.

Control of salary and non-salary expenditure will be contained within the Unit. The Provost, Dean
or Director may delegate day to day control of the account to a supervisor or a grant holder, but
any overspend or under recovery of overheads is to be their clear responsibility with any loss being
a charge on the Unit’s funds.

Any proposal which involves additional payments to employees should be supported by a schedule
of names and values and must be approved by the appropriate Provost, Dean or Director. In the
case of a Provost, Dean or Director, such payments should be approved by the Vice-Chancellor or
his/her nominee.

POLICY No. 1404

OTHER INCOME-GENERATING ACTIVITY

Subject Area Income

Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in the collection and accounting
for other income generating activities in the University.
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TSPIG]D

Private Consultancies and Other Paid Work

1. Unless otherwise stated in an employee’s contract, outside consultancies or other paid work may
not be accepted without the prior approval of the Vice Chancellor in writing.

2. Applications for permission to undertake work as a purely private activity must be submitted to
the Vice Chancellor, and will include the following information:

i. the name of the employee(s) concerned,

ii. the title of the project and a brief description of the work involved,

iii. the proposed start date and duration of the work,

iv. full details of any University resources required (for the calculation of the full economic cost),
and

v. an undertaking that the work will not interfere with the teaching and normal University
duties of the employees concerned.

3. Individual consultancy work not undertaken privately should be supported and administered by
the Office of Research, Innovation and Development following procedures which will be approved
by the Vice-Chancellor.

Wlsvx gsywiw) Werh{ngl tvskveqqiw erh sxhivwivzigiw virhivih

4. Inthis context, a short course is any course, which does not form part of the award bearing teaching
load of the Unit. A Sandwich programme is a programme that is spread over two (2) long-vacation
periods, representing two (2) modules.

5. Any employee wishing to run a short course must have the permission of their Provost, Dean or
Director. The course organizer will be responsible to the Provost, Dean or Director for the day to
day management of the course.

6. The term other services rendered includes testing and analysis of materials, components, processes
and other laboratory services or the use of existing facilities in order to gain additional information.

7. Short courses, sandwich programmes and services rendered should normally be priced to recover
full economic costs.

8. Allowances and other costs associated with short courses and sandwich programmes shall be based
on the approved schedule of fees and allowances.

TvsAxefipx} erh vigsziv} sj szivliehw

9. All other income generating activities must at least break even, when analyzed on a full economic
costing basis, unless it is intended that a new course is to be launched as a loss leader. If that is
the case, the reason for it must be specified and agreed to by the Provost, Dean or Director and
the Director of Finance.

10. Other income generating activities organized by employees must be costed and agreed with the
Provost, Dean or Director before any commitments are made. Provision must be made for charging
both direct and indirect costs in accordance with the University’s costing and pricing policy, in
particular for the recovery of overheads.

11. Any unplanned deficits incurred on the other income-generating activities will be charged to the
Unit’s funds.
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12. Distribution of profits on other income-generating activity between central funds of the University
and individual Units will be in accordance with the policy approved by the Business and Executive
Committee of the Academic Board.

Partnership activities

13. All partnership activities shall be initiated, developed and monitored in line with the partnership
framework approved by the Council. The recommended criteria for what constitutes a University
partnership include:

. positive impact on the student experience for significant numbers of students;
« contribution to the achievement of University level strategy;

«  University-wide impact;

« designated lead contact for partnership; and

« value for money.

14. A partnership analysis shall be maintained for all existing and new partnerships by the partnership
manager, with support from a central partnerships officer or business development manager.

15. Alist of all University partnerships shall be maintained by the Registrar’s Office.

Self-Financing Units

All employee support services (educational and health support units) shall be self- financing.

3.2.6 PROCUREMENT OF GOODS, WORKS & SERVICES

SECTION No. DESCRIPTION PAGE
1500 |POLICY |PROCUREMENT OF GOODS, WORKS & SERVICES
NO
1501 Requisition for Goods, Works & Services 65
1502 Procuring Goods, Works & Services 67
1503 Receiving Goods, Works & Services 72
1504 Inventory Management 73

POLICY No. 1501
REQUISITION FOR GOODS, WORKS & SERVICES

Subject Area Procurement of Goods, Works & Services
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv X1 Girwvep Qexiviegw SIgiv

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in achieving economy, effi-
ciency, transparency, accountability and value for money in the procurement of goods, services and
works in the University.
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POLICY

Requisition for Goods

The requisitioning of goods and services shall be in accordance with the University’s Procurement
Manual and Public Procurement Act, 2016 and regulations. There are two categories of goods rec-
ognized within the University of Ghana:
i. Category ‘A’ Goods: Covering goods which are usually stocked by the Stores, e.g. Stationery
which have high rate of usage within the University.
ii. Category ‘B’ Goods: Covering those that are seldom stocked by the Stores due to low rate of
usage or those that do not have repetitive usage within the University.
iii. Category ‘C’ Goods: Covering goods which by their nature cannot be stocked by the Stores
but have repetitive usage within the University and may be obtained from limited sources eg.
certain drugs or laboratory supplies like enzymes.

The Requisition for Category ‘A’ goods are prepared by the Central Materials Officer anytime
inventory reaches a predetermined re-order level. The Requests are forwarded to the Director
of Logistics for review and recommendation for approval. The Director of Logistics Director of
Logistics recommends the requisition for approval after ensuring that:

i. thereis proper justification for the request from the user Unit;

ii. there are not sufficient goods already in store to meet the request;

iil. the acquisition of the requested quantity of such goods shall not lead to over-inventorying;

iv. the goods requested are included in the Unit’s Annual Procurement Plan.

The Requisition shall be scrutinized by the Director of Finance to ensure that it is within the
available balance (net of the commitments already made) for the relevant budget item. The
Logistics Directorate shall proceed to use the appropriate procedure in compliance with the Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by Act 914.

The Requisitions for Category ‘B’ and ‘C’ goods are prepared and submitted by Heads of the User
Unit (example: Head of Estates Department or Director). Each of these requests shall have a strate-
gic plan. The Requests are forwarded to the Director of Logistics through the appropriate Material
Officer for Review and Recommendation for Approval. The Director of Logistics recommends the
requisition for approval after ensuring that:

i. there is proper justification for the request from the user department;

ii. the acquisition of the requested quantity of such goods shall not lead to over-inventorying;

iii. the goods requested are included in the Unit’s Annual Procurement Plan.

The Requisition shall be scrutinized by the Director of Finance to ensure that it is within the
available balance (net of the commitments already made) for the relevant budget item. The
Logistics Directorate shall proceed to use the appropriate procedure in compliance with the Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by Act 914 to procure the goods. Further with Category
C’ goods, the Logistics Directorate must adopt a Framework form of Contract to ensure that goods
are delivered as and when required and within the shortest possible time as may be agreed with
the user unit.

Requisition for Services

6. The Requisitions for Services are prepared and submitted by Heads of the Units.

7. The Requests shall be forwarded to the Director of Logistics for review and recommendation for

approval. The Director of Logistics recommends the requisition for approval after ensuring that:
1. there is proper justification for the request from the user Unit;
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ii. the services requested are included in the Unit’s Annual Procurement Plan.

8. The Requisition shall be scrutinized by the Director of Finance to ensure that it is within the
available balance (net of the commitments already made) for the relevant budget item. The
Logistics Directorate shall proceed to use the appropriate procedure in compliance with the Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by Act 914 to procure the service.

Requisition for Works or Construction

9. Works (Construction) form part of the University’s Investment Expenditure category. Requisition
for Works is activity-based as per the approved budget. Each Works requisition shall be linked to
its strategic plan.

10. The Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services for whom these activities were bud-
geted prepares and submit the requisition for works. The Requests are forwarded to the Director
of Logistics for Review and Recommendation for Approval. The Director of Logistics recommends
the requisition for approval after ensuring that:

i. there is proper justification for the request from the user division;
ii. the works requested are included in the Unit’s Annual Procurement Plan

11. The Requisition shall be scrutinized by the Director of Finance to ensure that it is within the
available balance (net of the commitments already made) for the relevant budget item. The
Logistics Directorate shall proceed to use the appropriate procedure in compliance with the Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by Act 914.

POLICY No. 1502
PROCURING GOODS & SERVICES
Subject Area Procurement of Goods, Works & Services
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Logistics
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in achieving economy, effi-
ciency, transparency, accountability and value for money in the procurement of goods, services and
works in the University.

POLICY

Procurement Process

All orders must comply with the University policies on purchasing and tendering and in addition to
Public Procurement Act 2003 (Act 663) as amended by Act 914 and the regulation.

Goods and Services
1. Orders produced from the University’s finance system (electronic ordering) must be used for the
purchase of all goods and services, except those made using petty cash.

2. Potential new suppliers must be registered with the University before they can be accepted as
approved suppliers.

3. Issuance and receipt of tenders is by the Logistics Directorate, who will also be involved in the
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evaluation of bids and formal contracts award.

Works and Construction Contracts

4.

Works and Construction Contracts shall be administered by the Physical Development and
Municipal Services.

Proposals will normally be initiated by the Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services
in respect of planned replacements, general improvement schemes, space planning or in response
to requests from a Unit.

Adherence to cost limits approved by the Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services
Committee will be monitored and reported by the Director who will report any actual or anticipated
variances, together with the reasons, to Finance and General Purposes Committee.

Consultants may be appointed if the project is too large or too specialized for Physical Development
and Municipal Services. Consultants will normally be selected from amongst those listed in the
University’s framework agreement and appointed subject to tendering procedures.

Proposals for capital projects shall be presented in the form of a Business Case including an invest-
ment appraisal where appropriate.

The achievement of value for money will be an objective in the letting of all contracts. No contract
will be placed for a period beyond which a budget has been approved unless it is specifically approved
in writing by the Director of Finance.

10. Thresholds for Procurement Methods
As shall be approved by the Vice-Chancellor, below is the threshold for procurement methods.

Procurement Method/ Advertisement Contract Value Threshold
1 International Competitive Tender

a. Goods Above GHC10,000,000.00

b. Works Above GHC15,000,000.00

c. Technical Services Above GHC5 000,000.00

National Competitive Tender

a. Goods

Qsvi xler KLES440444044 yt xs KLESA444044444

b. Works

Qsvi xler KLEB441444244 vt xs KLESI444044444

c. Technical Services

Qsvi xler KLEY40444244 yt xs KLEJN4440444)44

3 Price Quotation

Goods

Up to GHC100,000.00

Works

Up to GHC200,000.00

Technical Services

Up to GHC50,000.00

Restricted Tendering

Subject to Approval by the Board

Single source procurement and
selection

Subject to Approval by the Board
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6 CONSULTANCY SERVICES-NO THRESHOLD LIMITS
Quality Based Selection Refer to Public Procurement Authority Manual for procedures
Quality and Cost Based Selection | Refer to Public Procurement Authority Manual for procedures
Gsrwypxerxw UyepAgexisr Refer to Public Procurement Authority Manual for procedures
Fixed Budget Selection Refer to Public Procurement Authority Manual for procedures
Least Cost Selection Refer to Public Procurement Authority Manual for procedures
Individual Consultant Refer to Public Procurement Authority Manual for procedures
Single Source Subject to Public Procurement Authority Approval
RPF> Mandatory expression of interest for all except single source
15 [ Entities may advertise internationally if the required skills may not be available locally
16 | Qerhexsv} TviuyepAgexisr
A Goods Above
GHC10,000,000.00
B Works Above
GHC15,000,000.00
C Technical Services Above GHC5 million

Vspiw erh Viwtsrwifipmaniw nr xEi Tvsgyviqgirx tvsgiww wlep Fi ew jsps{w

No.

OFFICIAL

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1

The Vice-Chancellor

i. Ensures that the Logistics Directorate uses the laid down proce-
hyviw xs eglrizi 1 figamziriww) xerwtevirg} erh zepyi jsv qsri}ir
all procurement of goods, services and works in the University.

Logistics Director-
ate

ii. Plan, control and implement procurement in order to assist in the
management of the University’s funds by preparing procurement plans
and by comparing actual performances against budget and present-
ing the results to the Procurement Committee.

iii. Ensure that the procedures stipulated in the Public Procurement
Act, 2003 (Act 663), Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act
914) and in these regulations are adhered to and that the University
gets full value for money in all procurements.

iv. Control the methods of purchases within the University in order to
ensure that purchases are made at the most economical prices.

v. Keep an up -to —date library of suppliers’ technical and price cata-
logues and ensure that market intelligence is maintained and passed
on to management.

Director of Logistics

i. Shall be responsible for all procurement activities of the University in
accordance with the provisions of the Public Procurement Act, 2003
(Act 663), Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914).
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Tender Committee

i. Ensure that at every stage of the procurement activity, procedures
in the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663), Public Procurement
(Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) have been followed;

ii. Exercise sound judgment in making procurement decisions; and

iii. Refer to the appropriate Tender Review Board for approval, any
procurement above its approval threshold, taking into consideration
the fact that approval above the University Committee is a one-stop
only approval;

iv. Review procurement plans in order to ensure that they support the
objectives and operations of the University.

2 GsrAvq xli verki sj eggitxefpi gsww sj xiqw xs Fi tvsgyvih erh
match these with available funds in the approved budget.

z2 Vizii{ xhi wglihypiw sj tvsgyviqirx erh wtigiAgexsrw erh ews
ensure that the procurement procedures to be followed are in strict
conformity with the provisions of the Public Procurement Act, 2003
(Act 663), Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) ;

vii. Facilitate contract administration and ensure compliance with all
reporting requirements under the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act
663), Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914);and

viii. Ensure that stores and equipment are disposed of in compliance
with the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663), Public Procurement
(Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) .

Tender Evaluation
Panel

i. Evaluates tenders in accordance with predetermined and published
evaluation criteria, and assists the Tender Committee in its work.

Tender Review
Boards

Review Board/
Central Tender
Review
Committee)

(Ministerial Tender

ii. In particular to any procurement under consideration,
review the activities at each step of the procurement cycle
leading to the selection of the lowest evaluated bid, best
sJivw F} xIi Yrziwn} ar svhiv xs irwyvi gsqgtpergi
with the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663), Public
Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) and its
operating instructions and guidelines;

iii. Give concurrent approval or otherwise to enable the
University to continue with the procurement process;

iv. Furnish the Public Procurement Authority with reports
in the prescribed format;

v. Participate in public procurement fora; and

vi. Review decisions of University Tender Committee in
respect of a complaint

Composition of the Entity Tender Committee under the Public Procurement (Amendment)

Act, 2016 (Act 914)

Item

Head of Subvented®
Agencies and Govern-
ment Departments

Teaching Hospitals | Tertiary Institutions

Chairperson

Chief Executive/Head of

Chief Executive Vice-Chancellor/Dean/

Agency or Department

Principal/Rector or Equivalent

Members

Head of Finance

Head of Finance

Registrar

Attorney from the Attor-

ri} Kirivejw S3gi

Attorney from the
Attorney General’s
Sgi

Head of Finance

Page | 69



_ University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy

3 Heads of Department
or Division, including user
departments

3 Heads of Depart-
ment or Division,
including user de-
partment

Lawyer appointed by Council

3 Heads of Departments includ-
ing user departments

2 members of Profes-
sional Bodies

A representative
from the private
sector

1 member of a Professional Body

A representative of sector
Ministry

2 members of Pro-
fessional Bodies

Tmember appointed by National
Council for Tertiary Education

others

others

Total Mem- |9 9 9

bership

Secretary Director of Logistics Director of Logistics | Director of Logistics Directorate
Directorate Directorate

Quorum Chairperson and 4 Chairperson and 4 | Chairperson and 4 others

6 Subvented Agencies and Government Departments include Ghana Education Service, Ghana Health Services, Ghana Police
Service, Ghana Prisons Service, Ghana Immigration Service, Ghana National Fire Service, Ghana Revenue Authority and Local
Government Service.

Tenders and Quotations Approval Thresholds

Provosts, Deans and Directors and delegated designated managers must comply with the University’s
tendering procedures which are applicable as below. Threshold under Tenders and Quotations shall
be with the approval of the Vice-Chancellor.

Authority

Goods

Works

Services

GHC

GHC

GHC

Head of Entity

Up to 100,000

Up to 150,000

Up to 100,000

Committee

Entity Tender

100,000 - 800,000

150,000 -1,500,000

100,000 -800,000

Central Tender
Review Board

Above 800,000

Above 1,500,000

Above 800,000

POLICY No. 1503

RECEIVING OF GOODS & SERVICES

Subject Area

Procurement of Goods, Works & Services

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv

X1 Girwe) Qexiview SAgiv

Approval

The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued

28" March 2012

Revised
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PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in achieving economy, effi-
ciency, transparency, accountability and value for money in the procurement of goods, services and
works in the University.

POLICY

Receipt of Goods

1. Goods supplied shall be delivered to the University’s designated Stores. The store where the goods
are to be delivered must be clearly specified on the Purchase Order or Contract. The supplier’s
Waybill or Delivery Note and VAT Invoice shall accompany all goods delivered.

2. Onarrival of goods at the stores, goods are verified against the specifications on the Purchase Order
to ensure that the correct items have been delivered in the required quantities. The Director of
Logistics shall constitute the Inspection Team, which shall include Storekeeper, Internal Auditor,
User Department Representative or External Expert and Security Officer. The size of the team will
depend on the complexity and value of the items supplied.

3. When the goods are found to be satisfactory, the Waybill or Delivery Note and Invoice is stamped
and signed by the Leader of the Inspection Team and the Storekeeper to confirm that:
i.  Goods actually received are in accordance with the Waybill or Delivery Note.
ii. Goods on the Waybill or Delivery Note agree with the Specification on the Purchase Order or
Contract.
iii. Goods delivered are neither defective nor sub-standard.
iv. Goods are delivered on schedule.

The Storekeeper shall also sign copies of the Waybill or Delivery Note to confirm receipt of Goods.

4. Where goods are found to be unsatisfactory in terms of being defective, improperly specified,
variation in prices compared to the Purchase Order, the Inspection Team shall reject the order
immediately without accepting the items into the store.

5. Where quantity of goods delivered is short of the quantity specified on the Purchase Order or
contract, the Inspection Team may accept partial delivery if:

i. The Purchase Order or Contract made room for partial delivery.

ii. If the team is convinced that the supplier is committed to delivering the difference in an
acceptable period, which will not adversely, affect the University business.

iii. The partial acceptance shall not result in the disgruntlement of unsuccessful bidders.

6. Inthe case of goods being found to be unsatisfactory or quantity delivered is short of the quantity
ordered; the Inspection Team shall submit a report as such to the Director of Logistics.

7. When goods are delivered after the agreed scheduled date and time, Provosts, Deans and Directors
in consultation with the Director of Logistics shall decide as to whether it amounts to a significant
breach of contract and therefore may decide to:

i. Accept the item with a warning letter to the supplier.
ii. Reject the items outright.
iii. Apply the delayed delivery clause of the contract.
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Receipt of Works and Services

8. Works and Services shall be delivered to the Director of Physical Development and Municipal
Services or the User Unit, respectively. The Works or Services shall be certified by any of the above
entities or a designated Expert Organization appointed by the Director of Logistics in consultation
with the Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services or User Unit.

9. When receiving imported goods, the Director of Logistics may contact the Ghana Revenue Authority
and Ministers of Education & Finance and Economic Planning for Import Duty exemptions. It s,
however, the responsibility of the Suppliers to deliver the goods to the specified destination such
as the Store of the University.

POLICY No. 1504
INVENTORY MANAGEMENT
Subject Area Procurement of Goods, Works & Services
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv X1 Girwe) Qexiviepw SIgiv
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To provide a general guide on the procedures to be followed in achieving economy, effi-
ciency, transparency, accountability and value for money in the custody, control, issue and disposal
of stores in the University.

POLICY

1. Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for establishing adequate arrangements for the
custody and control of stores within their Unit and for ensuring that such stores are adequately
protected against loss and misuse. The systems used for stores accounting in the Units must have
the approval of the Director of Finance.

2. Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for ensuring that annual inspections and inventory
checks are carried out. Stores of a hazardous nature must be subject to appropriate security and
health and safety checks.

3. Those Provosts, Deans and Directors whose inventory/inventories require valuation in the finan-
cial statements must ensure that the inventory-taking procedures in place have the approval of
the Director of Logistics.

4. Inventory-taking must take place at least once a year and where continuous inventory records are
not maintained this must be on 31st December each year. In practice this place on Provosts, Deans
and Directors a requirement to produce for the Director of Finance inventory figure for the cost
of inventory held at 31st December each year.

5. Theinventory figure must be produced by carrying out a full inventory count by a nominated officer,
or by maintaining continuous inventory records which have been undertaken on a cyclical basis.
Such counts will be subject to audit checks. The Director of Finance must approve any method
other than that outlined above, of valuing inventory.

6. Inventory must be reconciled to the University financial records.
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Inventory write-off

7.

Awrite-off should be made at the end of each financial year to recognise excessive loss in the value
of inventory held through obsolescence, damage, expired shelf life, or lack of historic and future
expected usage.

Disposal of Inventories

8.

10.

11.

12.

If an item of inventory is still usable but no longer required by the holding Unit, then it should
be offered to other similar Units before disposal takes place. Other alternatives such as charity
donations should be considered prior to disposal.

A Board of Survey with authorization from the Vice-Chancellor and a written approval from the
Minister shall have the responsibility for the disposal of written off and unusable items of inven-
tory.

Once disposal has been agreed, the item should be removed from the physical inventory location
and counted to compare with the quantity held on the inventory management system, and any
adjustments to the quantity accounted for.

The inventory item should then be disposed of in accordance with the laid down procedures, includ-
ing the procedures for disposing of hazardous substances and chemicals.

For future reference and auditing purposes the Central Materials Officer and Provosts, Deans and
Directors should retain documentation of all types of disposal of inventories.

7262; INTIRHIXYVIW ERH HIWFYVWIQIRXW
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POLICY No. 1601

GENERAL AUTHORITY LEVELS

Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised
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PURPOSE: To assign responsibility and the procedures to be followed in the disbursement of funds
in the University.

POLICY

1.

The Director of Finance, under the authority and pre-approval of the Vice-Chancellor, is responsible
for making payments to suppliers of goods and services to the University.

Authorities

2.

The Provost, Dean or Director is ultimately responsible for purchases within his/ her Unit in
accordance with the procurement process and subject to the approval of the Vice-Chancellor.
Disbursement authority may be delegated to named individuals within the Unit.

The Director of Finance shall maintain a register of authorized signatories. Provosts, Deans and
Directors must supply the Director of Finance with specimen signatures of those authorized to
certify invoices for payment. Any changes to the authorities to sign must be notified to the Director
of Finance immediately.

Under the approved procedures, central control shall be exercised over the creation of requisitioners
and authorizers and their respective financial limits within any electronic requisitioning system.

The Director of Finance must be notified immediately of any changes to the authorities to commit
expenditure.

The Provosts, Deans and Directors are not authorized to commit the University to expenditure
without first reserving sufficient funds to meet the purchase cost and obtaining prior written
approval of the Vice-Chancellor.

Authorization for payments shall only be made in accordance with the limits set out in the table
below. The exercise of these mandates hereunder shall be made in accordance with the Public
Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by Act 914 and the Regulations. Any expenditure
beyond the limits set forth hereunder shall be subject to prior approval of the University Council.
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POLICY NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
1602 PAYMENT CERTIFICATION
1602.1 |lrxivrep te}qirw gsrivgensr 79
1602.2 | I|xivrep te}qirx gsrivgexisr 79

POLICY No. 1602.1
PAYMENT CERTIFICATION
Subject Area Irxivrep Te}qirx GsrAvgexisr
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines governing the validation of internal payments.

TSPIGT

1.

2.

Payment Vouchers being processed should have the appropriate authorization /approval
Ensure that supporting documents agree with amount requested.
Ensure the accuracy of the figures on the face of the invoice.

Cost centers and accounts codes quoted on the payment voucher will be verified to ensure they are accurate
and appropriate.

Ensure that salary payments made to staff agree with the primary payroll report.

Ensure that payroll related payments to third parties agree with the primary payroll report.

POLICY No. 1602.2

PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Subject Area I |xivrep Te}qirx GsrAvgexisr

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To validate information provided by external entities for payment.

TSPIGT

1.

Payment Vouchers being processed should have the appropriate authorization/approval

2. Allinvoices submitted by external entities for processing should have the telephone number, postal address and

e-mail address of the supplier.
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3.

All invoices received from external entities should be checked to ensure that the price quoted and the
source of the invoice are accurate.

All invoices should be properly pre-audited as evidence of goods received.
Ensure that all transactions should meet value for money criteria.

Ensure that supporting documents agree with amount requested.
Ensure the accuracy of the figures on the face of the invoice.

Account codes and cost center codes quoted on payment vouchers will be verified to ensure they are
accurate and appropriate.

In accordance with Public Financial Management Regulations, 2019 (LI 2378), all invoices submitted
for payment should be Value Added Tax (VAT) invoices.

10. Ensure that statutory requirement for withholding tax are complied with.

POLICY No. 1603

METHODS OF PAYMENT

Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To assign responsibility and the procedures to be followed in the disbursement of funds in
the University.

POLICY

1.

2.

The Director of Finance is responsible for deciding the most appropriate method of payments.

All payments for supplier’s invoices, staff-reimbursements and salaries will normally be made by com-
puter cheques or direct bank transfer to suppliers/ employees account.

Under no circumstances should payments be made by cash/ open cheques, except with the approval of
the Finance Director.

In exceptional circumstances, the Director of Finance with the approval of the Vice-Chancellor will
prepare cheques manually for urgent payments.
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POLICY No. 1604
PAYMENT OF INVOICES

Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To assign responsibility and the procedures to be followed in the disbursement of funds in
the University.

POLICY

1. The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that the university has an approved appropriate
method of payment for categories of invoice. Payments to suppliers will normally be made by computer
cheques or bank transfer to supplier’s account. In exceptional circumstances, the Director of Finance
will prepare cheques manually for urgent payments.

2. Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for ensuring that expenditure within their Units does
not exceed approved budget available.

3. Suppliers should be instructed by the designated manager to submit invoices for goods or services to
the Finance Directorate, Accounts Payable Section. Care must be taken by the designated Provosts,
Deans and Directors to ensure that discounts receivable are obtained.

4. Payments will only be made by the Director of Finance against invoices that have been matched to
Purchase Orders, and Stores Received Advice authorized and entered by the appropriate Provost, Dean
or Director or their designated officer.

5. Certification of an invoice or receipting of an electronic order will ensure that:

i. the goods have been received, examined and approved with regard to quality and quantity, or that
services rendered or work done is satisfactory;

ii. where appropriate, it is matched to the order;

iii. invoice details (quantity, price discount) are correct;

iv. the invoice is arithmetically correct;

v. the invoice has not previously been passed for payment;

vi. where appropriate, an entry has been made on a store’s or inventory record; and

vil. an appropriate financial code is quoted, which must be one of the financial codes included in the
designated manager’s areas of responsibility and must correspond with the types of goods or service
described on the invoice.

6. When a copy of an account or statement has to be used as an expenditure voucher, then it must have
an additional certification that checks have been carried out to ensure that the transactions has not
been duplicated. The document should be marked clearly “Copy invoice for payment”.
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POLICY No. 1605

EMPLOYEE RE-IMBURSEMENTS AND CASH ADVANCES

Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To assign responsibility and the procedures to be followed in the disbursement of funds
in the University.

POLICY

1.

The University’s purchasing and payments procedures are in place to enable the majority of goods
and services to be procured through the creditor payments system without employees having to
incur any personal expense. However, on some occasions, employees may incur expenses, most
often in relation to travel, and are entitled to reimbursement.

2. Where such expenditure by employees is planned, with the pre-approval of the Vice-Chancellor, the
Director of Finance and the relevant Provost, Dean or Director may jointly approve cash advances
to employees who are going to incur expenditure on the University’s behalf.

3. Within one week of completion of the travel or project to which the advance relates, a final account
must be prepared to demonstrate how the advance was disbursed and any unspent balance repaid.

4. Under no circumstances will a second advance be approved when the final account for an earlier
advance to an individual is still outstanding, except with the approval of the Finance Director.

5. The advances should be in the name of the person making the request. Such advances must go
through the internal payment certification and must be made against a budget.

6. Unaccounted advances shall be charged against employee salaries.

POLICY No. 1606
TRAVEL, SUBSISTENCE AND OTHER ALLOWANCES
Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To assign responsibility and the procedures to be followed in the disbursement of funds
in the University.
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POLICY

Introduction

1. Allclaims for payment of subsistence allowances, travelling and incidental expenses shall be com-
pleted on an approved claim form and will be in accordance with the University of Ghana Travel
and Subsistence Policy.

Eps{ergiw jsv Qigfiw sjxli Gsyrgm

2. Payment of approved allowances for members of the Council will be initiated by the Secretary to
Council and approved by the Vice-Chancellor. Claims for meeting attendance will be based on
standard amounts for each individual, but only reasonable expenses can be reimbursed.

Claims by Employees

3. Claims by employees must be authorized by their Provost, Dean or Director. The certification shall
be taken to mean that:
i. journeys were authorized;
ii. the expenses were properly and necessarily incurred;
iii. the allowances are properly payable by the University;
iv. consideration has been given to value for money in choosing the mode of transport.

4. Travel and subsistence reimbursement claims must be made on University approved claim forms
or other forms or means approved by the Director of Finance. Rates of reimbursement are set by
the Finance & General Purposes Committee and notified to Units in the University by the Finance
Directorate.

Overseas travel

5. All arrangements for overseas travel must be in accordance with the University of Ghana
International Travel Policy. Any approvals required must be obtained in advance of committing
the University to those arrangements or confirmation of any travel bookings.

6. Where spouses, partners or other persons unconnected with the University intend to participate
in a trip, this must be clearly identified in advance. In these circumstances, the University will not
arrange or pay for the travel but will reimburse the individual for the business portion of the cost.

Local Travel and Subsistence
7. The following conditions apply to travel and subsistence expenses:

a. Only actual expenditure incurred on University business will be reimbursed, in accordance
with the rates set by the Finance and General Purposes Committee.

b. Supporting vouchers for the cost of accommodation, food and other items of expenditure
must be produced.

c. Where a claim is made for use of an employee’s vehicle the vehicle must be adequately insured.

d. Subsistence expenses will only be paid where the employee is required to be away from their
normal place of work.

e. Employees cannot be reimbursed for the cost of travel between home and normal place of
work other than in exceptional circumstances and the Provost, Dean or Director gives prior
written consent.
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f. Expense claims for employees’ own mobile telephone calls and rental costs are not normally
reimbursable.

g. Noone shall authorize reimbursement of his or her expenses. Claims should, whenever possi-
ble, be approved by an employee senior to the claimant. Where it is impractical for such senior
officers to authorize claims, the Provost, Dean or Director may authorize in writing appropriate
alternative arrangements.

h. Advances may be granted at the discretion of the Provost, Dean or Director of and up to the
estimated cost of one month’s subsistence. The Director of Finance may give prior written
consent for advances longer than one month’s subsistence if operationally required.

i. Requests for advances must be made on University of Ghana Accountable Imprest forms giving
details of dates and places to be visited and a breakdown of the advance required. Claimants
must submit full documentation promptly.

j. Accounting for the claims against advances must be completed within one week of the return
from the trip.

Entertainment Expenditure

8. The following conditions apply to entertainment:

a. Entertainment expenditure must be an appropriate use of University money. A schedule must
be included with the claim, giving details of those entertained, their Department and the pur-
pose of the entertainment. Expense claims for entertaining must be supported by vouchers
and authorized by the Provost, Dean or Director (except where the Provost, Dean or Director
is the claimant, when suitable alternative arrangements for authorization must be made).

b. Those authorizing and submitting claims for payment for entertaining must be made aware
that this action is a declaration that the cost was incurred wholly, necessarily and exclusively
for University purposes.

POLICY No. 1607

PETTY CASH
Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements
Viwtsrwnrfpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To assign responsibility and the procedures to be followed in the disbursement of funds
in the University.

POLICY

1. Whereasingleitem is for less than a defined minimum amount® it should be paid from petty cash
if possible and must be supported by receipts or vouchers where available.

2. The Director of Finance shall make available to Units such imprests as he/she considers necessary

for the disbursement of petty cash expenses. However, it is important, for security purposes that
8 The Director of Finance in consultation with senior management shall indicate the petty cash float and the level of expenses
to be paid out of petty cash at the beginning of each year.
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petty cash floats are kept to a minimum.

3. Theemployee granted a float is personally responsible for its safe keeping. The petty cash box must
be kept locked in a secure place in compliance with the requirements of the University’s insurers
when not in use and will be subject to periodic checks by the Provosts, Deans or Directors or offi-
cers nominated by them’.

4. Requisitions for reimbursements must be brought to the Director of Finance, together with appro-
priate receipts or vouchers, before the total amount held has been expended, in order to retain a
working balance pending receipt of the amount claimed.

5. Attheend of the financial year a certificate of the balances held should be completed by the employee
responsible for the float and counter signed by the Provost, Dean or Director. A copy shall be for-
warded to the Director of Finance when fully completed.

Other payments

6. Payments for maintenance and other items to students on behalf of sponsoring organizations
shall be made on the authority of the Director of Finance, supported by detailed claims approved
by the Provost, Director or Dean.

POLICY No. 1608
SALARY PAYMENTS
Subject Area Expenditures & Disbursements
Viwtsrwrfpi S3giv The Director of Finance
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To present the processes and procedures to be followed in accounting for and controlling
the payment of employee salaries in the University.

POLICY

Remuneration policy

1. All University employees will be appointed to the salary scales approved by the Fair Wages and
Salaries Commission and Council in accordance with appropriate conditions of service.

2. The Council will determine what other benefits, such as housing, allowances, cars, medical, other
benefits, are to be made available, and the employees to whom they are to be available.

3. Salaries and other benefits for Senior Management will be determined by the Council.

Appointment of employees

4. All contracts of service shall be concluded in accordance with the University’s approved Human
Resources practices and procedures and all offers of employment with the University shall be made
in writing by the Council/ Vice-Chancellor.

7 In most cases, this exercise would be undertaken by the Internal Auditors. Page | 83
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5.

Provosts, Deans and Directors shall ensure that the Director of Finance and the Director of Human
Resources and Organisational Development are provided promptly with all information they may
require in connection with the appointment, resignation or dismissal of employees.

All new employees can only be paid when full bank details and pension scheme information have
been supplied to the payroll office.

For all new employees, Provosts, Deans and Directors or other authorized persons shall ensure that
the person is legally eligible to work in Ghana. The Payroll Section will not add a non-Ghanaian
citizen to the payroll unless it is clear that any necessary work permit has been obtained or that the
immigration status of the person concerned does not require the University to seek permission
for the specific employment proposed.

Salaries and Wages

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Director of Finance is responsible for all payments of salaries and wages to all employees
including payments for overtime or services rendered. All timesheets and other pay documents,
including those relating to fees payable to external examiners, visiting lecturers or researchers,
will be on a form prescribed or approved by the Director of Finance.

The Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development will be responsible for keeping
the Director of Finance informed of all matters relating to Human Resources for payroll purposes.
In particular, these include:
i. appointments, resignations, dismissals, supervisions, secondments and transfers;
ii. absences from duty for sickness or other reason, apart from approved leave;
iii. changesin remuneration other than normal increments and pay awards;
iv. voluntary payroll deductions;
v. information necessary to maintain records of service for post-employment benefit (superan-
nuation/ social security), income tax and national health insurance.

All casual and part-time employees must be included on the payroll.

The Director of Finance shall be responsible for keeping all records relating to payroll including
those of a statutory nature.

Salaries shall be paid in accordance with the published pay days. Any changes in the published pay
days shall be communicated by way of circulars.

No deduction shall be made from the salaries of any employee, except for statutory deductions,
disciplinary awards and voluntary deductions authorised by the Director of Human Resources
and Organisational Development upon administrative instructions issued by the Provost, Dean
or Director.

All payments must be made in accordance with the University’s detailed payroll and financial
procedures and in compliance with Internal Revenue regulations.

Payroll Taxes

15.

The Director of Finance is responsible for ensuring that required tax forms are properly completed
and submitted, and that all required taxes are withheld and paid. Such Taxes are remitted to the
Revenue Agencies monthly.

Review of Payroll

16.

Upon production of all payroll reports, the Director of Finance reviews the payroll prior to the trans-
fer of payments to the banks. The Director of Finance should sign the Salary Voucher, indicating
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approval of the payroll.

Distribution of Payroll
17. No salary payments shall be made except directly through bank account of the employee, unless
otherwise authorized by the Director of Finance.

Audit of Payroll Data

18. Itis the policy of the University of Ghana to conduct regular audit of payroll data, the purpose of
which is to determine the integrity of the University’s payroll records, including regular salary,
deductions and net payments to employees.

19. The payroll data shall be reviewed by the Ghana Audit Service and the Internal Audit on a monthly
basis for the release of government subvention.

University of Ghana Superannuation Scheme

20. The University Council is responsible for undertaking the role of employer in relation to appropriate
pension arrangements for employees.

21. The Director of Finance is responsible for day to day superannuation matters, including:
i. administering eligibility to pension arrangements;
ii. preparing the annual return to various superannuation schemes; and

iii. paying contributions to the authorized superannuation schemes.

3.2.8 MANAGEMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

POLICY No. 1700
MANAGEMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Subject Area Management of non-current Assets
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Management Accounting &
Payroll)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for the control of assets owned by the University.

POLICY

1. The purposes of the controls are to protect the non-current assets, to preserve the life expectancy, to
avoid unnecessary duplication of assets and to provide a guide for the future replacement of assets.

2. The purchase, lease or rent of land, buildings or fixed plant can only be undertaken with authority
from the Finance & General Purposes Committee.

3. Units must notify the Director of PDMSD and Fixed Asset Accountant of all gifts of machinery,
equipment, vehicles and intangibles that have been received.

4. All property owned by the University, including property purchased through sponsored programs,
are subject to University policy.

Non-Current Asset Register
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5. The Director of Finance is responsible for maintaining the University’s register of capital assets.
Provosts, Deans and Directors shall provide the Director of Finance with any information he or
she may need to maintain the register.

Safeguarding assets

6. Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for the care, custody and security of the buildings,
inventory, stores, furniture, cash, etc. under their control. They will consult the Director of Physical
Development and Municipal Services in any case where security is thought to be defective or where
it is considered that special security arrangements may be needed.

7. Assets owned by the University or under the custody of the University shall, so far as is practical,
be effectively marked to identify them as University property. The University approved marking
shall be applied.

8. Use of University property at an off-campus location must be approved by the Provost, Dean or
Director.

9. Provost, Deans and Directors shall ensure that all instances of theft and/or losses of University
assets are reported promptly to the Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services and
Fixed Asset Accountant on the form prescribed in the detailed financial procedures manual.

Insurance

10. The Director of Finance is responsible for procuring all types of insurance cover as determined by
Finance and General Purposes Committee, including obtaining quotes, negotiating claims and
maintaining the necessary records.

Physical Inventory of Assets

11. The Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services and Director of Logistics are respon-
sible for ensuring that physical inventories of assets are performed on regular basis. Individual
departments are responsible for conducting physical inventories of Assets under the supervision
of the Logistics Director and the Fixed Asset Accountant at least twice a year.

Personal use

12. Assets owned or leased by the University shall not be subject to personal use without proper
authorization.

Letting of University property
13. The letting of University property will be subject to approved arrangements and with the involve-
ment of the Director of Physical Development and Municipal Services and the Legal Counsel.

14. Arrangements whereby employees occupy University property under their terms and conditions
of employment are additionally subject to the approval of the Staft Housing Committees.

Asset disposal

15. Disposal of assets must be in accordance with procedures agreed by the Finance and General
Purposes Committee and contained in the University’s detailed financial procedures manual under
the supervision of the Board of Survey.

16. Disposal of land and buildings must only take place with the authorization of the Vice-Chancellor
on the delegated authority from the Minister of Finance.

All other assets
17. Provosts, Deans and Directors are responsible for establishing adequate arrangements for the
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custody and control of all other assets owned by the University, whether tangible or intangible,
including electronic data.

3.2.9 FINANCIAL REPORTING

SECTION NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
1800 POLICY NO FINANCIAL REPORTING
1801 Monthly Closing/ Reporting 89
1802 Annual Closings/ Financial Statements 91
1803 Management Information System 92
1804 Reporting to Outside Agencies 95

POLICY No. 1801
MONTHLY CLOSINGS/ REPORTING

Subject Area Financial Reporting

Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To establish policies and procedures governing the monthly closing of the financial records
and accounts of the University and reporting of the University’s financial position and transactions.

POLICY

1. The Financial Accounting Unit is responsible for:
i. Establishing monthly accounting closing schedules and coordinating the data input
requirements;
ii. Preparingand distributing to the Director of Finance monthly statements from the Financial
Accounting System.

2. All Units will comply with the closing schedules as established.

3. The Units shall pass the relevant entries onto the Financial Accounting System on daily basis.

4. Each Unitisresponsible for reviewing the monthly account transaction reports to ensure the accu-
racy, completeness and validity of each transaction. Errors or questions arising from this review
must be immediately reported to the Financial Accounting Unit for investigation and correction
as required.
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5. The Head of Financial Accounting Unit shall undertake the following:
i. Review journals to ensure appropriateness and accuracy of recording.
ii. Ensure batch control information has been accurately recorded.
iii. Authorize and forward journals for processing.
iv. Postjournals.
6. Allassets and liability accounts in the ledger shall be supported by and agreed with lists of specific
individual items. Thus the following shall be supported at the end:

Item Supporting Documentation

Cash at bank i. abank reconciliation statement

Cash i. abalance on the petty cash book itself supported by a
gewl vigsrgmexsr wexigirx erh e gewl givaAgexi?

ii. Gewl givwAgexi tvshygih jysq e gewl gsyrxyrhivxli
observation of auditors.

Inventory i. alist of control totals from the stores ledger cards, which in
turn would have been agreed to individual inventory items
as part of the stores ledger section’ monthly procedures.

i. lrzirxsv} giveAgexi tvshygih jysq er irzirxsv} gsyrx
under the observation of auditors.

Student debtors i. alist of individual items.

Work-in-progress i. e pwx sjirhizihyep gsrxvegx givaAgexiwizepyexsr vitsviw

Non-Current Assets i. alisting under each category showing the prior period bal-
ance and individual movements in the month.

Liabilities i. list of balances on the liabilities ledgers

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities |i. as appropriate for the nature of the item.

and Contingent Assets

When all postings have been made and ledger balances are supported as required, a trial balance
is generated to ensure that the entries in the ledger have been correctly posted.

The Financial Accounting System and the related sub-systems are the source for preparation of
all required financial reports.

The Head of the Financial Accounting Unit shall ensure that:

i. Balances on the control accounts in the general ledger are in agreement with lists of balances
extracted from the supporting ledgers

ii. The balances on the various accounts appear reasonable in relation to corresponding balances
in the previous month and his knowledge of the transactions undertaken during the month.

iii. A Statement of financial performance with supporting schedules are prepared.

iv. A Statement of Financial Position with supporting schedules is prepared.

v. Statement of Cash flows with supporting schedules is prepared.

vi. Statement of Changes in Net Assets with supporting schedules is prepared.

10. The Head of the Financial Accounting Unit shall ensure that:

i. Allliabilities, grants and assets, so far as known, have their values;
ii. All revenue, payables, receivables and expenses properly incurred for the period have been
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taken into account;
iii. The accounts are prepared on a basis of International Public Sector Accounting Standards;
iv. All prior year and prior-period adjustments have been appropriately treated in the accounts.

The financial statements for the month signed by the Director of Finance, together with other relevant
schedules prepared for management are submitted to the Finance and General Purposes Committee
for consideration. The quarterly financial statements shall be submitted to the Council at each Council
meeting®.

POLICY No. 1802
ANNUAL CLOSINGS/FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subject Area Financial Reporting

Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Deputy Director of Finance (Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To establish policies governing the annual closing of the financial records and accounts
of the University and preparation of the University’s financial statements.

POLICY

1. The Director of Finance is responsible for:
i. Establishing and coordinating the annual financial closing and related audit with the Auditor
General;
ii. Establishing all closing schedules to ensure that the financial statements are completed by the
end of the third month after the year end; and
iii. Preparing the financial statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards.

2. The Annual Financial Statement includes:
i. A Statement of Financial Position at the end of the year;
ii. A Statement of financial performance for the year;
iii. Statement of changes in net assets/equity
iv. A Cash Flow Statement for the year;
v. Notes to give details of specified items in those accounts.

3. Mostoftheyearend accounting routines will be the same as those performed each month. However,
there are specific tasks to be completed at the end of the year which include:
i. Provisions for slow-moving or obsolete or deteriorated inventory;
ii. The certification of cash in the hands of officers;
iii. The provision for bad and doubtful debts;
iv. The assessment of prepayments and accruals.

The following additional matters are to be considered:

a. _Additional review of statement of financial position items;

8 |t is expected that departmental accounts would be extracted for submission to Provosts, Deans and Directors for their
review and necessary action.
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b. Notes on the accounts;

c. Compliance with relevant legislation;
d. External auditors;

e. Publication of accounts.

4. The financial statements shall be subject to annual audit by the external auditors as appointed by
the Auditor General.
5. The annual audited financial report will be submitted to the Finance and General Purposes
Committee for recommendation to the Council for approval.
POLICY No. 1803
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM
Subject Area Financial Reporting
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Deputy Director of Finance (Management Accounting &
Payroll)
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish the principal management information reports issued monthly to Management.

OBJECTIVES: To obtain a general view of the financial position of the University and of the results
achieved; for comparison with budgeted or planned figures and as a basis for more detailed investiga-
tion where necessary. It is also to provide managers with the information required to control activities
within their sphere of responsibility.

POLICY

1.

Monthly and quarterly reports must be issued by the 10" working day following the end of the
period which they relate.

2. Any other reports required by management must be issued on time. Reports on events must be
issued as soon as possible after the event to which they relate.

3. The Director of Finance will prepare a monthly review of the reports, summarizing the main vari-
ations from expected performance and examining the reasons for these variations. In the case of
significant variances, he will make recommendation for future action. On completion of the first
half-year’s results, and each period thereafter, the Director of Finance will assess the likely impact
of variations on the year end result.

4. The routine management reports are listed below:

MANAGEMENT REPORTS

Reports/ Originating | Frequency | Description of Report | Distribution
Department Department

Revenue

Section
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Daily Income Col- | Gewl S3gi Daily Provides detail collec- |[1. Gewl S3gi
lection Report tion analyzed into: 2. Deputy Director of
Income class Finance (FATM)
Collection areas 3. Director of Finance
Monthly Income Financial Monthly Summarizes details of Deputy Director of
Collection Report | Accounting daily Income Collection Finance (FATM)
Unit Report analyzed into: 2. Director of Finance
College, Faculty, Insti- | 3. Vice-Chancellor
tute, School or Depart- | 4. F&GP Committee
ment
Income class
Progress Report Financial Monthly Status report on In- 1. Director of Finance
on Income Collec- | Accounting come Collection show- [2. Vice-Chancellor
tion Unit ing: 3. F&GP Committee
Planned collection
Actual collection
Progress Report Financial Monthly Status report on In- 1. Director of Finance
on Statement of Accounting come Collection show- |2. Vice-Chancellor
arrears of Reve- Unit ing: 3. F&GP Committee
nue Planned collection
Actual collection
Stores
Monthly Stores Central Monthly Overall stores reconcil- | 1. Central Materials
Analysis Stores iation by location and SAgiv
code 2. Deputy Director of
Finance (MAP)
Summary of re- Central Monthly Overall stores reconcil- | 1. Central Materials
ceipt, issued and | Stores iation by location and Sgiv
inventory balanc- code 2. Deputy Director of
es Finance (MAP)
Movement of fuel | Central Monthly Overall reconciliation by | 1. Central Materials
and lubricants Stores fuel class SAgiv
2. Deputy Director of
Finance (MAP)
Budget
Expenditure Vari-
ance Reports
Consolidated Management | Quarterly Comparison of actual 1. Director of Finance
Income Statement | Accounts expenditure levels with | 2. Vice-Chancellor
(Table) fyhkixih Akyviw 3. F&GP Committee
Individual Depart- | Management | Quarterly Comparison of actual 1. Director of Finance
mental Results Accounts expenditure levels with | 2. Vice-Chancellor
(Table 2) fyhkixih Akyviw 3. Provosts, Deans &
Directors
Analysis by Category | Management |[Quarterly | Comparison of actual 1. Director of Finance
of Income & Expendi- | Accounts expenditure levels with 2. Vice-Chancellor
ture (Table 3) fyhkixih Akyviw 3. F&GP Committee
Gewl Jps{
Cash Flow Forecasts | Director of Fortnightly | Cash Analysis and Vice-Chancellor
Finance Projections
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Cash Flow Forecasts | Director of Quarterly [ Cash Analysis and Finance and General
Finance in advance | Projections Purposes Committee
Vice-Chancellor
The Minister of
Finance/GTEC
Expenditure Section
Bank Reconciliation Financial Monthly Reconcile bank 1. Chief Treasury
Statement Accounting balances with cash SAgiv
Unit book balances 2. Deputy Director of
Finance (FA&TM)
3. Director of Finance
Final Accounts
Quarterly Statement of | Financial Quarterly [ Income and Expendi- 1. Director of Finance
Income and Expendi- | Accounting ture and Statement of 2. Vice-Chancellor
ture Unit Financial Position 3. F&GP Committee
4. Minister of Finance/
GTEC
Works Section
Progress Report on Physical Monthly/ Reports on Projects 1. Director of Finance
Projects Development | Quarterly [ both in progress and 2. Director of Physi-
& Municipal completed during the cal Development &
Services Quarter. Municipal Services
3. Vice-Chancellor
4. F&GP Committee
5. Physical Develop-
ment & Municipal
Services Committee
Customized Reports
Student Debtors Management | Quarterly/ [Listing of student debt- [1. Director of Finance
Accounts Yearly ors by program 2. Vice-Chancellor
3. F&GP Committee
Aging Analysis of Management [ Quarterly/ |Listing of age of student [ 1. Director of Finance
Debtors Accounts Yearly debtors by program 2. Vice-Chancellor
3. F&GP Committee

POLICY No. 1804

REPORTING TO OUTSIDE AGENCIES

Subject Area

Financial Reporting

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv

The Director of Finance

Approval

The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued

28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To establish responsibility for providing various periodic financial reports required by

University and governmental agencies.
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POLICY

1. The Director of Finance is responsible for the timely preparation, and submission for approval by
the Vice-Chancellor of all required financial reports, including interim and final financial reports
required under grant and contract agreements.

2. The Financial Accounting System and related subsystems are the source for preparation of all
required financial reports.

3. Any financial information included in reports to any third party, either directly or by reference,
must be approved by the Vice Chancellor prior to distribution.

3.2.10 AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

SECTION NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
1900 POLICY NO AUDIT REQUIREMENTS
1901 General Provisions 95
1902 Internal Audit 96
1903 External Audit 97

POLICY No. 1901
EYHIX KIRIVEP TVSZIWISRW

Subject Area Audit Requirements

Viwtsrwnfpi S3giv Vice — Chancellor

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To establish responsibility for objectively assessing, evaluating and reporting on the ade-
quacy of the internal control system as a contribution to the correct, efficient and effective use of
resources.

POLICY

1. External and internal auditors shall have authority to:

1. access University premises at reasonable times;

ii. accessallassets, records, documents and correspondence relating to any financial and other
transactions of the University;

iii. require and receive such explanations as are necessary concerning any matter under
examination

iv. require any employee of the University to account for cash, stores or any other University
property under his or her control

v. access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors, when required.

2. All auditors should respect the confidentiality of information to which they have access in the
course of their work.
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3.

All the activities within the responsibility of Council, including University projects, partnerships
and joint ventures are included in the audit remit.

Whenever any matter arises which involves, or is thought to involve, irregularities or fraud con-
cerning cash, stores or other assets of the University or any other suspected irregularity in the
exercise of the activities of the University, the Provost, Dean or Director of the Units concerned
shall notify the Director of Finance and the Vice-Chancellor, who shall take such steps as they
consider necessary by way of investigation and involvement of the Director of Internal Audit and
the Legal Counsel. Action will be taken in accordance with the University’s Anti-Corruption Policy
under Section 2000 of these Regulations.

POLICY No. 1902

INTERNAL AUDIT

Subject Area Audit Requirements

Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Director of Audit

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee

Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To establish responsibility for objectively assessing, evaluating and reporting on the ade-
quacy of the internal control system as a contribution to the correct, efficient and effective use of
resources.

POLICY

The prime responsibility of the Internal Audit Unit is to provide the Council, the Vice-Chancellor
and the other managers of the University with assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system, including risk management and governance. It also seeks to ensure that
propriety, efficiency, economy and effectiveness are achieved in all areas of the University’s activity.

Responsibility for internal control remains fully with management. The Internal Audit Unit should
provide ‘reasonable assurance’ on the effectiveness of the internal controls being implemented to
provide guarantees against material errors, loss or fraud.

The Internal Audit Unit may also provide advice, especially before new or revised systems are to
be introduced, subject to the need to maintain their independence.

The Director of Internal Audit is required to report annually to the Audit Committee on the work of
the Unit and to give an opinion on the status and reliability of internal controls within the University.

In order to provide this opinion, the Director of Internal Audit will undertake a programme of

work agreed by the Audit Committee. The programme of work will have the following objectives:

i. toreview and appraise the soundness, adequacy and application of financial and other controls,
and to ascertain whether these are operated efficiently, effectively and economically;

ii. to ascertain the extent to which the system of control ensures compliance with established
policies, plans and procedures and any statutory requirements;

iii. toascertain the extent to which assets and funds are properly controlled and safeguarded from
losses of all kinds, including fraud and other offences;
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iv. to ascertain that financial and other information used by the management of the University
is reliable, timely and relevant for the purposes for which it is used;

v. todraw attention to uneconomical, ineffective or inefficient results flowing from management
decisions, practices or policies.

6. The Director of Internal Audit is responsible to the Vice-Chancellor on a day-to-day basis for pro-
viding a professional internal audit service.

7. To guarantee the independence of the Internal Audit Unit, the Director of Internal Audit will have
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and after receiving his/her advice, to the
Chairman of Council.

8. Allemployees will have access to the Director of Internal Audit to bring matters of concern to his/her
attention, especially in matters of fraud (actual or suspected) involving employees or contractors.
However, in normal circumstances, the reporting line should be through the employee’s Provost,
Dean or Director.

9. The Director of Internal Audit is to ensure that the University’s accounting procedures and inter-
nal control systems are audited and report submitted in accordance with the provisions of the
Internal Audit Agency Act, 2003 (Act 658) and standards, guidelines and instructions issued by
the Internal Audit Agency Board in line with the Act as well as section 83 of the Public Financial
Management Act, 2016 (Act 921).

10. The Director of Finance shall submit a report to every meeting of the Audit Committee show-
ing the progress which has been made in complying with outstanding agreed internal audit

recommendations.
POLICY No. 1903
INX1VREP EYHIX
Subject Area Audit Requirements
Viwtsrwnfpi S3giv Vice — Chancellor
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: To establish responsibility for objectively assessing, evaluating and reporting on the ade-
quacy of the internal control system as a contribution to the correct, efficient and effective use of
resources.

POLICY

1. TheAuditor Generalis responsible for the external audit of the accounts of the University of Ghana.

2. The primary role of external audit is to report on the University’s financial statements and to
carry out such examination of the statements and underlying records and control systems as are
necessary to reach their opinion on the statements and to report on the appropriate use of funds.

3. The External Auditors will audit the University’s books of account and report on the University’s
annual financial statements to the Finance & General Purposes Committee and the Council of the
University at the meetings which consider and approve these. They will in their report:

Page | 95



_ University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy

i. state whether in their opinion the financial statements show a true and fair view of the
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Cash
flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended in accordance with accrual
based International Public Sector Accounting Standards;

ii. state whether in all material aspects monies expended from whatever source, administered
by the University for specific purposes, have been properly applied to these purposes and if
appropriately managed in compliance with any relevant legislation.

iii. The External Auditors will attend and be heard at meetings of the Finance & General Purpose
Committee when the annual financial statements are being considered and approved. They will
also have the right to attend meetings of the Council when the annual financial statements are
considered. The University will ensure that the External Auditors receive proper notification
and the agenda for the meetings.

3.2.11 OTHER MATTERS

POLICY NO DESCRIPTION PAGE
2000 OTHER MATTERS
2001 Funds Held in Trust 98
2002 Maintenance of Accounting System 99
2003 Retention of Accounting Records 100

POLICY No. 2001

FUNDS HELD IN TRUST

Subject Area Other Matters

Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Director of Finance

Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012

Revised

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines governing the management of restricted funds in the University.

POLICY

1.

Gifts, Benefactions and Donations: The Director of Finance is responsible for maintaining financial
records in respect of gifts, benefactions and donations made to the University.

Student Welfare and Access Funds: The Director of Finance will prescribe the format for record-
ing the use of Student Welfare Funds. Records of Access Funds will be maintained according to
funding body requirements.

Trust/Endowment Funds: The Director of Finance is responsible for maintaining a record of the
requirements for each Endowment/ Trust Fund and for advising the Investment and the Finance
and General Purposes Committees on the control and investment of fund balances. The Finance
and General Purposes Committee is responsible for ensuring that all the University’s Endowment/
Trust Funds are operated within any relevant legislation and the specific requirements for each
Endowment.

Voluntary Funds: The Director of Finance shall be informed of any Fund that is not an official fund
of the University which is controlled wholly or in part by an employee in relation to his function in
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the University. The accounts of any such fund shall be audited by an independent external person
and shall be submitted with a certificate of audit to the appropriate body. The Director of Finance
shall be entitled to verify that this has been done.

POLICY No. 2002
MAINTENANCE OF ACCOUNTING SYSTEM
Subject Area Other Matters
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: Maintenance of the Financial Accounting System is necessary to ensure financial account-
ing and reporting integrity.

POLICY

1. The Financial Accounting Unit is responsible for the maintenance of the Financial Accounting
System.

2. All requests to create new accounts (funds) must be accompanied by proper documentation and
approved by the Director of Finance.

3. Accounts WIH be established in atp propriate fund grougs to reﬂect the nature of the revenues to be
generated and/or the purpose of the expenditures to be incurred

4. All changes to account attribute codes, and other account-specific information must be approved
by Director of Finance.

5. Units are required to notify the Financial Accounting Unit, on a timely basis, of the following:
i. Any organizational change affecting responsibility for account administration.

ii. Any accounts to be deleted, such as inactive unrestricted accounts or restricted gift accounts
for which the gift has been expended.

POLICY No. 2003
RETENTION OF ACCOUNTING RECORDS
Subject Area Other Matters
Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Director of Finance
Approval The Finance & General Purposes Committee
Originally Issued 28" March 2012
Revised

PURPOSE: Setting out a general framework for meeting the University’s obligations to review, retain,
and destroy University records consistent with laws, regulations, and internal University recordkeep-
ing objectives.
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1. Financial and related documents shall normally be retained in a secure and accessible manner. The
original records may be kept in an electronic format at the discretion of the Director of Finance.

2. Preservation of records shall be governed by:
i. The Limitation Decree, 1972 (NRCD 54) which makes it necessary to keep financial and account-
ing records until such time as claims by or against government are statute-barred; and
ii. ii. The Public Records and Archives Administration Act 1997, (Act 535), Income Tax Act 2015,
(Act 896), the Public Financial Management Act 2016, (Act 921), and its Regulations 2019 (LI
2378) The Income Tax Regulation, 2016 (LI 2244).

The University shall establish a repository or repositories to hold all financial and accounting records
that are no longer required for regular office references.

3.2. 12 ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

POLICY No. 2100
ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

Subject Area Other Matters
Viwtsrwifpi S3giv The Vice-Chancellor
Approval Council
1 Purpose

The University of Ghana Anti-Corruption Policy is a policy based on the National Anti-Corruption
Action Plan (NACAP) which is a ten-year Action Plan adopted on 3rd July 2014 as Ghana’s strategy
for addressing corruption in the society as stipulated under Article 35 (8) of the 1992 Constitution of
Ghana. NACAP is to be implemented by public, private and non-profit organizations and institutions.
Pursuant to the implementation of NACAP by public sector organizations and institutions specifically,
the Office of the President issued directives in March 2015 which provided among others that:

i. Allheads ofinstitutions and leadership at all levels should take responsibility for their areas
of oversight and ensure that measures are taken to combat corruption in their institutions
including the implementation of roles specifically assigned to their institutions under
NACAP.

ii. The Ministry of Finance should ensure that MDA’s, MMDA’s and all public sector institu-
tions budget for the implementation of specific programmes assigned to them under the
NACAP, and

iii. Ministers, Chief Executives and Heads of public sector institutions shall submit quar-
terly reports on the implementation of NACAP Monitoring and Evaluation Committee
(MONICOM) at the CHRAJ, with copies to the Office of the President.

The University of Ghana as a public institution is required to implement certain general and specific
roles assigned to it. CHRAJ, in collaboration with the NACAP Monitoring and Evaluation Committee
(MONICOM) is required to issue an Annual Work Plan guiding the University and other Implementation
Partners on the activities prioritized for each year.

The University is therefore required to submit a half-yearly report on the progress of implementation
of the assigned programme for each year.
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There is, therefore, the need for the creation of a Committee on Anti-corruption to see to the imple-
mentation of the policy

1.1 Objectives of the Policy

The objectives of this policy are to:
a. Prevent corruption at all levels within the university community
b. Create awareness and conscientize members of the university community on the offence
and effect of corruption on society
c. Prohibit and sanction conducts of corruption
d. Investigate allegations and reports of incidents of corruption in the University
6 SJirgi erh HiArmsrw

2.1 Offence

A person engages in misconduct if the person engages in an act of corruption under this Policy or
commits an offence that pertains to corruption under the laws of Ghana.

2.1.1. A person who commits a misconduct under this Policy shall be given a hearing before the appro-
priate Disciplinary Committee, and upon conviction is punishable under Paragraph 5.7 of this policy.

2.1.2. Notwithstanding clause 2.1.1 above, where the offence also falls under any national law including
the underlisted laws, the University shall have the right to deal with the culprit through its disciplinary
procedures aside reporting the matter to the Ghana Police Service for prosecution. The laws include

i. Criminal Offences Act, 1960 (Act 29)

ii. Financial Administration Act 2003 (Act 654)

iii. Internal Audit Agency Act, 2003 (Act 658)

iv. Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663)

v. Whistleblowers Act, 2006 (Act 720)

vi. Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2008 (Act 749)

vii. Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921)

2.2 Corruption

a. Corruption is the misuse of entrusted power for private gain. It includes but is not limited
to bribery, extortion, embezzlement, misappropriation, trading in influence, abuse of
office, abuse of power, illicit enrichment, laundering of proceeds of crime and concealment,
obstruction of justice, patronage, nepotism, and conflict of interest.

b. An Actof Corruption is any act that falls within the definition of corruption herein. It shall
also include an attempt to act in such a manner.

2.3 Bribery

a. Bribery refers to the act of offering, giving, promising, asking, agreeing, receiving, accept-
ing, or soliciting something of value or of an advantage so to induce or influence an action
or decision and forms part of Corruption.

b. Bribery also refers to an inducement, reward, or object/item of value offered to another
individual in order to gain commercial, contractual, regulatory, or personal advantage.

c. Briberyis not limited to the act of offering a bribe. It also refers to the receiving of a bribe.

d. Briberyisillegal. Employees must not engage in any form of bribery, whether it be directly,
passively (as described above), or through a third party (such as an agent or distributor).
They must not bribe a foreign public official anywhere in the world.

e. Employees must not accept bribes in any degree, and if they are uncertain about whether
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something is a bribe or a gift or act of hospitality, they must seek further advice from a
member of the Committee.

2.4 Gifts and Hospitality

The University accepts normal and appropriate gestures of hospitality and goodwill (whether given to/

received from third parties) so long as the giving or receiving of gifts meets the following requirements:

a. Itis not made with the intention of influencing the party to whom it is being given, to obtain, or
reward the retention of a business or a business advantage, or as an explicit or implicit exchange
for favours or benefits.

b.

Mo oA n

SR

k.

It is not made with the suggestion that a return favour is expected.

It is in compliance with local law.

It is given in the name of the company, not in an individual’s name.

It does not include cash or a cash equivalent (e.g. a voucher or gift certificate).

Itis of an appropriate type and value and given at an appropriate time, taking into account
the reason for the gift.

It is given/received openly, not secretly.

It is not selectively given to a key, influential person, clearly with the intention of directly
influencing them.

Itis not above a certain excessive value, as pre-determined by the University Council or the
Vice-Chancellor on behalf of Council.

Itis not offered to, or accepted from, a government official or representative or politician or
political party, without the prior approval of the University Council or the Vice-Chancellor
on behalf of Council.

Where it is inappropriate to decline the offer of a gift (i.e. when meeting with an individual
of a certain religion/culture who may take offence), the gift may be accepted so long as it is
declared to the Vice-Chancellor through the Anti-Corruption Committee Secretariat and
is recorded in the gift register.

2.5 Facilitation Payments and Kickbacks

a.

The University does not accept and will not make any form of facilitation payments of any
nature. We recognize that facilitation payments are a form of bribery that involves expe-
diting or facilitating the performance of a public official for a routine governmental action.
We recognize that they tend to be made by low-level officials with the intention of securing
or speeding up the performance of a certain duty or action.

The University does not allow kickbacks to be made or accepted. We recognize that kick-
backs are typically made in exchange for a business favour or advantage. The University
of Ghana recognizes that, despite our strict policy on facilitation payments and kickbacks,
employees may face a situation where avoiding a facilitation payment or kickback may put
their/their family’s personal security at risk. Under these circumstances, the following steps
must be taken:

i. Keep any amount to the minimum.

ii. Ask for a receipt, detailing the amount and reason for the payment.

iii. create a record concerning the payment.

iv. Report this incident to your immediate supervisor.

2.6 Political Contributions

The University will not make donations, whether in cash, kind, or by any other means, to support any
political party or candidate. We recognize this may be perceived as an attempt to gain an improper
business advantage and therefore a corrupt act.

Page | 100



University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy _

2.7 Charitable Contributions

a. The University accepts (and indeed encourages) the act of donating to charities — whether
through services, knowledge, time, or direct financial contributions (cash or otherwise) —
and agrees to disclose all charitable contributions it makes. Employees must be careful
to ensure that charitable contributions are not used to facilitate and conceal acts of
bribery.

b. The University will ensure that all charitable donations made are legal and ethical under
local laws and practices, and that donations are not offered/made without the approval of
the Vice-Chancellor.

2.8 Conflict of Interest

A person who is found to be in a situation in which that person is in a position to derive personal
benefit from actions or decisions made in his/her official capacity, including situations under
section 50 of the University of Ghana Statutes, 2011 as amended is in a situation of conflict of
interest and is guilty of corruption unless the affected individual could reasonably not have
known about the conflict.

2.9 Embezzlement and Misappropriation

2.10

2.11

212

A person who without lawful justification takes or withholds assets or funds belonging to the
University, for the purpose of appropriating same for his personal use, which assets or funds
are in the control of or have been entrusted to such person, either to be held or to be used for a
specific purpose engages in embezzlement and misappropriation and is guilty of Corruption.

Extortion

A person who under authority of his office, demands or obtains from any person, whether for
himself or any other person any money or valuable consideration which he knows that he is not
lawfully authorized to demand or obtain, or at a time at which he knows that he is not lawfully
authorized to demand or obtain the same engages in extortion and is guilty of Corruption.

Fraud

A person who intentionally deceives an authorized person or a person acting on behalf of the
University or another person to secure unfair or unlawful gain or deceives others by unjustifi-
ably claiming or causing others to credit that person with an achievement or accomplishment
or quality engages in fraud and is guilty of Corruption.

Money laundering

A person who knows or ought to have known that property is or forms part of the proceeds of
unlawful activity and the person
a. converts, conceals, disguises or transfers the property;
b. conceals or disguises the unlawful origin, disposition, movement or ownership of rights
with respect to the property; or
c. acquires, uses or takes possession of the property is engaging in Money Laundering
and is guilty of Corruption.

2.13 Aiding and Abetment

A person who knowingly, whether directly or indirectly, instigates, commands, counsels, procures,
solicits, or in any manner purposely aids, facilitates, encourages, or promotes, by his act or otherwise
for the purpose of aiding, facilitating, encouraging or promoting the commission of a corrupt act by
any other person engages in abetment and is also guilty of Corruption.
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214
a.

2.15
2.15.1

Corrupt Practices in Procurement

A person who engages in corrupt practices under section 93 of the Public Procurement Act, 2003
(Act 663) as amended by the Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914) is guilty of
corruption under this policy.

For the purpose of this policy, corrupt practice shall be any act of corruption engaged in at any
stage of a procurement procedure.

A person who commits acts mentioned in a and b above for the purpose of gaining a personal
benefit or reward is guilty of Corruption

Corruption by a Public Officer

Sections 239 -241, 244, 245 and 252 of Act 29 provide as follows:
Every public officer or juror who commits corruption, or wilful oppression, or extortion, in
respect of the duties of his office, shall be guilty of a misdemeanour.

Whoever corrupts any person in respect of any duties as a public officer or juror shall be guilty
of a misdemeanour.

A public officer, juror, or voter is guilty of corruption in respect of the duties of his office or vote,
if he directly or indirectly agrees or offers to permit his conduct as such officer, juror, or voter
to be influenced by the gift, promise, or prospect of any valuable consideration to be received by
him, or by any other person, from any person whomsoever.

A person is guilty of corrupting a public officer, juror, or voter in respect of the duties of his office
or in respect of his vote, if he endeavours directly or indirectly to influence the conduct of such
public officer, juror, or voter in respect of the duties of his office or in respect of his vote, by the
gift, promise, or prospect of any valuable consideration to be received by such public officer,
juror, or voter, or by another person, from any person whomsoever

If, after a person has done any act as a public officer, juror, or voter, he secretly accepts, or agrees
or offers secretly to accept for himself or for any other person, any valuable consideration on
account of such act, he shall be presumed, until the contrary is shown, to have been guilty of
corruption, within the meaning of this Chapter, in respect of that act before the doing thereof.

If, after a public officer, juror, or voter has done any act as such officer, juror, or voter, any other
person secretly agrees or offers to give to or procure for him or any other person any valuable
consideration on account of such act, the person so agreeing or offering shall be presumed, until
the contrary is shown, to have been guilty of having, before the doing of such act, corrupted such
public officer, juror, or voter, in respect of such an act.

Whoever accepts, or agrees or offers to accept any valuable consideration, under pretence or
colour of having unduly influenced, or of agreeing or being able to influence, any person in
respect of his functions as a public officer or juror, is guilty of a misdemeanour.

Whoever gives, or agrees or offers to give to any public officer any valuable consideration for the
grant to himself or to any other person of any benefit or advantage or for the exercise of influence
in favour of himself or any other person is guilty of a misdemeanour.”

3. Application and Scope

d.

This policy applies to all members of the University of Ghana community as defined in section
3 of the University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806) on all campuses.

The policy also applies to all persons who serve the University as its agents and are under the
control of the University in all its locations and affiliates.

Page | 102



C.

4.

University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy _

All third parties who deal with the University in one way or another but are not members or
agents of the University.

Implementation and Compliance Institution

The main institutions for the implementation and compliance of this policy are:
The University Council

The Vice-Chancellor

The Anti-Corruption Committee

a.
b.
C.

d.

Secretariat of the Anti-Corruption Committee

4.1 The University Council

The University Council will have the overall responsibility for ensuring that the University complies
with the Anti-Corruption Policy. It includes ensuring that:

a.

€.

The Anti-Corruption Policy is reflected in all other policies and contracts of the University.
The principles of the Anti-Corruption Policy should be referenced and put into specific action
in other University documents such as the University Statutes, Strategic Plan, Financial
Regulation, Student Handbooks, Conditions of Service, Code of Conduct and other policies
and regulations.

The Anti-Corruption Policy is made available to students and employees and should be
introduced at orientation programmes for both students and staff.

The Policy is made available on the University’s website, among others.

Measures are put in place to guarantee the creation and maintenance of an environment
that gives a clear indication to all persons that the University shall not tolerate or counte-
nance any form of corruption by any person and that acts of corruption will be punished.

An effective institutional framework on Anti-Corruption is established.

4.2 The Vice-Chancellor

The Vice-Chancellor, as Chief Disciplinary Officer of the University, is responsible for ensuring
compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy and shall specifically do the following:

1.

ii.

1i1.

Constitute the Anti-Corruption Committee established under this policy by appointing the
members.

Receive reports of findings and recommendations of the Anti-Corruption Committee and
ensure that the recommendations are acted upon promptly.

Send half-yearly reports on the progress of implementation of the assigned programme for
each year to the Chairman, MONICOM at CHRAJ with copies to the Office of the President
as shown in Schedule III to this Policy.

4.3 Anti-Corruption Committee

4.3.1 Membership

a.

The Committee shall be composed of five (5) members: a Chairperson and four (4) other
members and shall be appointed in accordance with Schedule I to the Policy.

The Chairperson shall be a person with relevant experience in corruption related cases and
principles.

There shall be gender parity in the composition of the Committee.
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d. Competent external individuals from other relevant institutions may be invited to serve on
the Committee as ex-officio members, or to act as expert advisers.

4.3.2. Responsibilities

The Committee shall address corruption issues relating to the University community by:
a. planning and implementing the University’s education and training programmes on
Corruption.

b. widely disseminating of this policy to the University community;

c. providing educational materials to promote compliance with the policy and familiarity with
local reporting procedures, and

d. training of other University personnel who may be responsible for responding to informal
reports of corruption.

e. conducting investigative hearings into specific complaints of corruption.

f. sending of reports on investigations to the Vice- Chancellor with recommendation of dis-
ciplinary action before the appropriate disciplinary Committee or otherwise.

g. Overseeing the implementation of the roles, both general and specific to the University out-
lined by the NACAP MONICOM in its annual reporting framework. (see www.chraj.gov.gh)

4.3.3. Leadership
a. The Vice-Chancellor shall appoint the members of the Committee.

b. The Chairperson shall be instrumental in convening meetings, initiating enquiry processes
and ensuring the integrity of all proceedings relating to investigation of grievances.

4.3.4. Qualities

All members of the Committee shall have;
i. good moral standing,
ii. high credibility,
iii. candour
iv. a good reputation.

4.3.5. Term of Office

Members of the Committee shall serve for a term of two years, after which they may be appointed
to serve a further two-year term only.

4.3.6. Review of Policy
This Policy shall be reviewed periodically.

4.3.7. Secretariat of the Anti-Corruption Committee

4.3.7.1. The Anti-Corruption Committee shall have a Secretariat which shall be serviced by the
Office of the Legal Counsel and headed by the Legal Counsel.

4.3.7.2. The Secretariat shall comprise of the Legal Counsel, a Legal Officer from the Office of the Legal
Counsel, a Secretary of a rank higher or equivalent to an Assistant Registrar and other officers that
may be appointed by the Vice-Chancellor on the advice of the Legal Counsel.

4.3.8. The Secretariat shall:
a. manage the affairs of the Committee
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organize meetings and Investigative hearings of the Committee

take the minutes of the meeting and record the hearings of the Committee

keep such records or minutes and decisions of the Committee

liaise between the Committee and CHRA] in the implementation of this Policy

be responsible for ensuring compliance with the Policy.

Prepare and submit a quarterly report to the Vice-Chancellor and the University Council
on the work of the Committee.

h. perform any other assignment or duty assigned by the Vice- Chancellor.

@ Mo oo o

5 Formal Reporting/Complaint Mechanism

5.1. Duty to Report

5.1.1 All members of the University Community or persons who operate within the University as
well as third parties, have a duty to report all acts of corruption by members of the University or
on the part of third parties in their relations with the University or any member of the University.

5.1.2 Any member of the University Community who believes that he or she has been a victim of
corruption or that another person is engaging in acts of corruption in violation of this Policy has
a duty to report the matter and utilize the procedures described under this Policy for redress. The
complainant shall not be reprimanded, retaliated against, or discriminated against in any way for
initiating an inquiry or complaint in good faith.

5.1.3 A person may make a report where that person has information or reasonable cause to believe
that a breach of this Policy, the University of Ghana Financial Regulations and Governance Policy,
2020, section 92 of the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 933) as amended, or any other law per-
taining to corruption has occurred in a way that;

a. there is or there is likely to be waste, loss, misappropriation or mismanagement of the
University’s resources, assets or income due to acts of corruption;

b. apersonisexploiting his/her position to gain advantage or an unfair benefit or that a person
is engaging in corruption as defined in this Policy

1. Procedure

1.1 A report shall be made in writing to the Anti-Corruption Committee through any of its members
or the secretariat by using the Form in Schedule II.

1.2 The report shall contain as far as practicable
i. the full name, address or Department of the complainant;

ii. the nature of the act of corruption in respect of which the report is made with particulars
or details;

iii. the person alleged to have committed the act of corruption;
iv. the time and place where the alleged act of corruption took place;

v. the fullname, address and description of a witness to the commission of the act of corruption
(if any);

vi. any available evidence

vii. whether the complainant is directly or indirectly connected to the person against whom a
complaint has been lodged.
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5.2. Protection of Complainant

a. TheAnti-Corruption Committee upon receipt of a complaint shall take all necessary measures
to ensure that the complainant is protected from abuse, victimization or discrimination if
the complainant is likely to face such abuse, victimization or discrimination.

b. The Committee shall report any complaint of abuse, victimization or discrimination to the
Vice-Chancellor and make recommendations.

5.3. Presumption of Innocence

A person against whom a complaint is lodged shall be presumed innocent of that charge unless and
until there is a final finding of culpability by the Committee or a stipulated admission to the charge
by that person.

5.4. Right to Representation

A complainant and a respondent in a corruption matter have the right to representation by a legal
counsel of their choice.

5.5. Investigations

5.5.1 All complaints and reports of acts of corruption shall be investigated by the Committee.

5.5.2 Where upon investigation of a complaint the Committee finds a breach of the policy but the
breach constitutes an offence under national Law, and the matter is already being investigated or
prosecuted by the police, Office of the Attorney-General and Minister for Justice or any other public
authority, the Committee may recommend that the relevant disciplinary Committee withhold
proceedings of the matter until a determination is made by a Court of competent jurisdiction or
by the particular authority.

5.5.3 Where a person is found guilty of any form of corruption by a court of competent jurisdiction,
it shall form prima facie evidence of misconduct on which basis the matter may be referred to
the relevant Disciplinary Committee for prosecution under Statute 43 of the University Statutes.

5.5.4 Notwithstanding 5.5.3 above, each case shall be considered on its own merit

5.5.5 The Committee shall submit a report on the investigations together with its recommendations
to the Vice-Chancellor.

6. Disciplinary Procedure and Sanctions

6.1 Where a person is alleged to have breached the Anti-Corruption Policy or committed an
offence under the policy, the culprit shall be referred to the appropriate Disciplinary Committee
for prosecution.

6.2 Notwithstanding clause 6.1 above, where the act of corruption falls under both this Policy and
a national law, nothing precludes the University from reporting the matter to the appropriate
authority for prosecution as well as referring the person to the appropriate disciplinary committee.

6.3 Where the matter involves a third party, or other member of the University who is neither a
senior member, staff or junior member;
a. Areport may be made to the appropriate authority for prosecution, or
b. The person may be invited to appear before the Committee for investigation of the matter
and make appropriate recommendations, which may include banning of the person (whether
natural or juristic) from any dealings with the University to the Vice-Chancellor.
6.4 A member of the university who is found guilty by the appropriate Disciplinary Committee
shall be sanctioned as follows:
a. Inthe case of a junior member, expulsion from the University.

b. Inthe case of a staff or senior member, termination of employment with the University.
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c. Where in the reasoned view of the relevant Disciplinary Committee, a person ought to be
reprimanded the Committee shall recommend it to the Vice-Chancellor.

7. Duty to Cooperate
Employees and students must cooperate with University investigations into corruption accusations

which are conducted by the Anti-Corruption Committee. Refusal to cooperate with an investigation
or to impede an investigation may result in disciplinary action.

8. Malicious or False Accusations

The University recognizes that malicious or false accusations could have a serious impact on the repu-
tation and integrity of individuals. As such, malicious or false accusations will be treated very seriously.
Anyone who is found to have made a deliberately malicious or false accusations against another person
shall be subject to formal disciplinary action under the appropriate university procedure.

9. Promotion of Anti-Corruption Policy
9.1 Dissemination of information on Anti-Corruption Policy

9.1.1. This Policy document shall be published and disseminated without charge to all mem-
bers of the University community. It shall be displayed at conspicuous places in all Colleges,
Schools, Departments, Institutes, Centers, lecture halls and other public areas as far as
possible. It shall also be made available to newly recruited staff of the University and newly
admitted students.

9.1.2. It shall be brought to the attention of third parties: contractors, suppliers, consultants
and all persons who deal with the University in any capacity.

9.1.3 It shall be the duty of all persons under clause 7 of this Policy to read the Policy and
comply with it.

9.2 Training and capacity development
All members of the Anti-Corruption Committee shall receive appropriate training about cor-
ruption and how to apply this Policy and the grievance procedures in order to discharge their
duties in an efficient and sensitive manner.
10. Roles of the University Under NACAP

10.1. General Role

The General role is designed for implementation and reporting by all implementing agencies
and organizations, including public sector organizations, private sector and not-for-profit
organizations.

54262 WtignAg Vsyi

The specific role is for implementation of specific activities by the lead and collaborating imple-
menting agencies as applicable. Therefore, at the end of every quarter, the Anti-Corruption
Committee is expected to report on all the activities under the “General Roles” and some of
the activities under the four strategic objectives as may be seen in Schedule III to this Policy.

11. Reference Documents
a. The 1992 Constitution of Ghana
b. The National Anti-Corruption Action Plan
c. The University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806)
d. The University Statutes, 2011 (as amended)
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e. The Criminal Offences Act, 1960 (Act 29)
f. Whistleblowers Act, 2006 (Act 720)

12. Schedules
Schedule |

COMPOSITION OF ANTI-CORRUPTION COMMITTEE

« A Chairperson who may be a retired Justice of the Superior Courts of Judicature or a lawyer
qualified to be so appointed;

« Two (2) senior members of the University, who are persons of high moral integrity one of whom
1S a woman;

« One (1) representative from the Commission on Human Rights and Administrative Justice
(CHRA))

« One (1) representative from the Ghana Anti-Corruption Coalition.

Schedule Il

COMPLAINT FORM

Name of Complainant:

Address of Complainant:

Person Complained of/Respondent:

Location of Respondent

Details of Act of Corruption Complained of with Particulars:

Name and address of witness (if any)

Date:

Signature:

Name of Committee Member receiving the complaint

Office/Address of Member

Schedule Il

The Reporting Framework may be obtained yearly on the CHRAJ website, at https://chraj.gov.gh/
nacap/. Below is a sample of the reporting framework
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[A] BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Name of Implementing Partner:

Date of submission (DD-MM-YY):

Reporting Period:

The addresses for submission of Reports are as follows:

Address for Submission: Copy to:

CHAIRMAN (MONICOM) THE CHIEF OF STAFF

C/0O THE COMMISSIONER OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

CHRAJ, P.O. BOX AC 489, FLAGSTAFF HOUSE,

OLD PARLIAMENT HOUSE, KANDA,

J.E.A. MILLS HIGH STREET, ACCRA

ACCRA EMAIL:
requests@presidentsecretariat.gov.gh

EMAIL:

nacap@chrajghana.com

fadrahman@chrajghana.com

INTPEREXISR SJ XL1 WIKQIRXW IR XL1 QSRIXSVIRK ERH IZEPYEXISR JVEQI [SVO
FOR REPORTING

Implementing Part- Results /Status

ners of Implemen-
Broad |WtigiAg | Indicator Frequency | Data Data tation
Activity | Activity | jsvWtigiAg | of Data Source | Disaggre- || ..q Collaborating

Activity Collection gation

The columns are explained below:
Broad Activity: The long-term activity captured in the 2015-2024 NACAP document, from which spe-
cific activities are derived.

Specific Activity: The activities derived from the broad activities that are expected to be undertaken
by specific stakeholders for the particular reporting year.

Specific Indicator: The measurable indicator that will be monitored and evaluated based on the
respective specific activity. The indicator shows the expected results from the implementation of the
specific activity.

Frequency of Data Collection: The number of times and or how often a given data was collected on
the indicator.

Data Source: The origin, root from which the data was collected on the indicator, e.g. Programme/
Meeting reports, Payments vouchers, Store records, etc.

Data Disaggregation: Indicates the separation of data/ information into its component parts, e.g.
gender, regional, rural/urban etc.

Implementing Partners: This column contains the Lead and the Collaborating Implementing Partners.
The “Lead implementing Partners” has the primary responsibility to undertake the specific activities.

They would be held responsible for the success or failure during implementation. oage 109
age



_ University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy

The “Collaborating Implementing Partners” is to support the implementation of the specific activities.
It refers to agencies and other implementing partners or stakeholders who are either beneficiaries,
or those to be directly impacted by the implementation of the said activity. It also refers to those who
may be interested in the execution of the activity.

Where an agency has been omitted from the lead/collaborating implementing agency column for a
specific activity, but the agency/organization has operations related to or has interest in the broad
activity, the agency/organization may implement aspects of the broad activity and report on it.

Result/Status of Implementation: This column provides for measurable output/outcome of the specific
activity. It covers either quantitative or qualitative measurable output/outcome of the specific activity.

In completing this column, implementing agencies should be as brief as possible.

For avoidance of doubt, the areas to complete are: “Data Source,” “Frequency of Data Collection” and
“Result/ status of implementation”.

Where an implementing agency is unable to undertake a required specific activity, the agency should
indicate “NOT UNDERTAKEN?”, in the “result” column and reasons must be provided for not under-
taking the activity.

3.2.13 TRANSACTION PROCEDURE AND SIGNATORY MANDATE
POLICY No. 2200
TRANSACTION PROCEDURE AND SIGNATORY MANDATE GUIDELINE

Viwtsrwifpi SAgiv The Vice-Chancellor
Approval Council
1. Preamble

This Transaction Procedure and Signatory Mandate Guidelines is intended to be a guide to all members
of the University of Ghana on all transactions at all levels of the University structure. The Transaction
Procedure and Signatory Mandate Guidelines is borne out of the procedures and provisions contained
in the following:

a. The University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806);

b. The University of Ghana Statutes 2011 as amended by the amendment Statutes of 2016 (the
Statute);

The University Financial Regulations and Governance Policy, 2012;

The Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by the Public Procurement
(Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914):

The Public Procurement Manuals;

The Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921); and

The Public Financial Management Regulations, 2019 (LI 2378), as well as

Other national laws and University Policies.

oo

Froa oo

2. Aims of the Guideline

This Guideline is designed as the best available practice for conducting transactions for and on behalf
of the University including procurement, investment, leasing, etc . The Guideline identifies the need
for structured transactional practices and addresses them for good governance and best practice in
contextual issues required for effective conduct and maintenance of the University’s transactions.
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Consequently, the Guideline is intended to simplify and compile into one document the procedures
and authorized persons to enter into binding transactions on behalf of the University.

7 Pikep Jveqi{svo

The following provisions constitute the legal framework upon which this Guideline is established.

3.1. The University Council

The University of Ghana Act, 2010 (Act 806) stipulates under section 16 (1) that subject to the
provisions of this Act, the University Council shall have power to do or provide for any act or
thing in relation to the University which the Council considers necessary or expedient in its
capacity as the governing body of the University.

3.2. Property and Contracts of the University

In accordance with section 23 (1-2) of Act 806, the University shall have power:

(a) for any purpose which the Council considers necessary or expedient, or (b) for the purpose of
the performance of the functions of the University, to acquire and hold movable or immovable
property, sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise alienate or dispose of that property and to enter into
any other transaction.

Where the University Council resolves that it is necessary to acquire a property under subsec-
tion (1), the property may be treated as property required for the Public Services and the State
Property and Contract Act, 1960 (C.A.6) shall apply with the modifications that are necessary to
provide for the vesting of the property acquired in the University and the cost of acquisition to
be defrayed by the University.

3.3 The University of Ghana Statutes, 2016 provides under statute 34 that subject to the Act and
these Statutes, the University may enter into contracts and own, hold and dispose of movable and
immovable property solely for the purpose of achieving the aims and objectives of the University.

3.4 For the avoidance of all doubt, the authority to enter into contractual transactions, including
transactions relating to land owned or held by the University, shall be vested in Council and no
person shall enter into any transaction binding or intended to be binding on the University unless
the said transaction has the prior approval of Council. However, Council shall have the power to
ratify contractual transaction entered into without its prior approval where in its opinion such
ratification is justified and shall not compromise the interests of the University.

3.5 Council may delegate in writing its authority to enter into contractual transactions to any of
the principal officers of the University. Without prejudice to leases in existence before the coming
force of these Statutes, the University may enter into contracts creating an interest in land owned
by the University only by way of lease and the lease shall not be for more than twenty-five years
and shall be renewable for another term of twenty-five years at the option of the University.

3.6 Under section 4 (15) of the Statutes, the Council shall determine annually the expenditure
necessary for capital and revenue investments, the maintenance of the property of the University,
and the human resources for transacting the business of the University and may appropriate
moneys for these purposes.

3.7 Finance and General Purposes Committee

Subject to the provisions of Act 921, the functions of the Finance and General Purposes Committee
shall be as provided under rule 2.3 (a) of the University of Ghana Financial Regulations and

Governance Policy.
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3.8 The Investment Committee

Subject to the meaning of investment provided under section 102 of Act 921 and the applicable
provisions of Act 921, the functions of the Investment Committee shall be as provided under rule
2.3.3 of the University of Ghana Financial Regulations and Governance Policy.

3.9 Physical Development and Municipal Services

Subject to the provisions of Act 921, Act 806 and Act 663, the functions of the Physical Development
and Municipal Services shall be as provided under rule 2.3.4 of the University of Ghana Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy.

3.10 Procurement and Tender Committee

Subject to the provisions of Act 921, Act 806 and Act 663, the functions of the Procurement and
Tender Committee shall be as provided under rule 2.3.6 of the University of Ghana Financial
Regulations and Governance Policy

3.11 The Vice-Chancellor

a. The Vice-Chancellor (VC) is appointed by the University Council under section 9(1) of
Act 806 as the academic and administrative head and chief disciplinary officer of the
University.

b. He is responsible for the management of the University and shall report to the Council
on same (Statute 5 (1).

c. Heisresponsible for driving the overall growth and development of the University under
the direction of the Council and shall have overall authority over the academic, financial
and administrative matters. (Statute 5(2).

d. Heis responsible for advising the Council and the Academic Board on matters affecting
policy, finance, governance and administration of the University. (Statute 5(10).

e. The Vice-Chancellor may delegate in writing to a senior member the performance of a
function vested in the Vice-Chancellor by Act 806 or the Statutes (Statute 5(11).

f. A matter not expressly provided for by these Statutes or by regulations shall be determined
by the Vice-Chancellor subject to approval or ratification by Council. (Statute 52 (1).

g. Under Act 806, He is the head of Entity who is ultimately responsible for compliance with
the law (section 17(1) & 18 (1) of Act 914).

3.12 The Investment Expenditure of the University

h. The Vice-Chancellor may propose or commit to invest in a project only after expert assess-
ment has been completed and the justification for the investment project and efficiency
is established in accordance with Section 33(5) of the Public Financial Management Act,
2016 (Act 921). The method for the preparation, evaluation and execution of investment
projects under section 33 of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921), shall be
made in accordance with the financial regulation set by the Minister.

i. The Vice-Chancellor shall obtain the prior written approval of the Minister and the approval
of the Council for the University to enter into any agreement with a financial commitment
that binds the Government for more than one financial year or that results in a contingent
liability.

3.13 The Registrar

In accordance with section 20 of Act 806 and the Statutes of the University of Ghana, as amended, the
Registrar shall be the Chief Operating Officer of the University under the Vice-Chancellor and shall
subject to the provisions of Act 921, Act 806 and Act 663 be generally responsible for the day-to-day
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administration of the affairs of the University.

3.14 The Director of Finance

In accordance with the Statutes of the University of Ghana, as amended, and subject to Act 921, Act
806 and Act 663, the Director of Finance shall be generally responsible for the financial administration
of the University.

3.15 The Legal Counsel

In accordance with statutes 2 (c) 1, 2, 3 and 7 of the Amendment Statutes of the University of Ghana,
2016, the Legal Counsel shall:
1. receive notice of all transactions and contract negotiations and shall participate in such
negotiations and provide advice to ensure effective negotiation and compliance with rules
and regulation of the University and the laws of Ghana.

2. draft, review and interpret all contracts, memorandum of understanding, joint venture and
partnership agreements, and any other commercial or non-commercial agreement, involv-
ing, affecting or relating to the University before execution in accordance with the signatory
mandate contained in this Guidelines.

725: Gsrangx sj llirxiviwx
1. Inaccordance with statute 50(4)-(6) of the University of Ghana Statutes, 2016, no member of the
University shall without the approval of the Vice-Chancellor:

a. enter into a commercial contract or transaction with the University;
b. receive a benefit directly or indirectly from any contract or transaction with the University.

And no employee of the University shall accept an appointment or engage in the provision of services
outside the University without the express prior approval of the Vice-Chancellor in writing. The Vice-
Chancellor may refuse to grant approval, where the service to be provided is similar to the University’s
mission or may diminish the esteem or reputation of the University. Any contract or transaction which
is contrary to this Statute shall, for all purposes, be null and void.

2. Pursuant to section 33(1) of the Public Financial Management Act, 2016 (Act 921), the University
shall not enter into any agreement with a financial commitment that binds the Government for
more than one financial year or that results in a contingent liability except where the financial
commitment or the contingent liability:
is with the prior written approval of the Minister, and authorised by Parliament in accordance
with article 181 of the Constitution of Ghana, 1992.

4.0 Transaction Procedures

All expressions of interest received by the University shall be directed to and forwarded to the Logistics
Directorate (LD) where it concerns procurement (See 7.0 for Procurement Procedures) and the Physical
Development and Municipal Services Directorate (PDMSD), if it involves land use.

4.1 Expression of Interest for Land

1. PDMSD shall determine whether the intended project:
i. Falls within the development plan (land use map) of the University
ii. Thelocation of the land and size of land is available

2. The parameter (s) for determining the developmental plan and availability shall be determined by
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3.

the Physical Development and Municipal Services Committee.

Upon determination in clause 3, PDMSD shall notify qualifying entities in writing to submit any
further documents that may be needed to carry out, where applicable, due diligence exercises
including but not limited to:

i. General Corporate Materials

ii. Litigation related documents

iii. Compliance with laws

iv. Employee matters

v. Intellectual Property

vi. Debt financing

vii. Financial information

viii. Tax Matters

ix. Registration with SSNIT and NPRA

x. Detailed proposal of intended project

Upon receipt of the above documentation, PDMSD shall carry-out its due diligent exercise to:
i. Determine how each applying entity was identified; through-

a. Unsolicited approaches to the University

b. Direct approaches to potential partners

c. Public tenders as deemed appropriate

ii. Ensure that applying entity has clear statement of intent for the development of the land in
line with the criteria stated in clause 2 of the Guidelines.

iii. The proposed development meets the zoning and use requirement of the University

iv. The applying entity’s request is for a specific size of land or otherwise

v. The applying entity’s request falls within a specific location or otherwise

vi. The entity’s request for a specific size of land is available within the specific location

vii. The University has available land for such development at the specified location

viii. Applying entity is a preferred partner and reasons for choice

ix. Applying entity is committed to use land as indicated and time-bound

x. Clearly state their recommendation or otherwise for the intended project

Upon conclusion of the checks by PDMSD, qualifying intended project(s) shall be forwarded to the
Office of the Legal Counsel to conduct legal and regulatory due diligence.

The Legal Counsel shall carry out due diligence on the qualifying project(s). The Due Diligence
shall broadly cover:
i. General Corporate Materials
ii. Litigation related documents
iii. Compliance with laws
iv. Employee Matters
v. Intellectual Property
vi. Debt Financing
vii. Existence of Audited Accounts or Financial Statements
viil. Tax Matters
ix. Registration with SSNIT and NPRA
x. Disclosure Matters on:
a. Financial interests
b. Conflict of interest
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Politically connected exposed persons behind the bidding firms or persons with any
dealing or connections to University of Ghana.

Disclosure of Interested/Related Parties. There shall be a clear definition of any insiders/related
parties in the Head of Terms.

Upon completion of the due diligence, the Legal Counsel shall submit a report on qualifying and
non-qualifying entities to PDMSD.

PDMSD shall prepare the Head of Terms, (an internal confidential document) for approval or
otherwise by Development Committee.

The Head of Terms shall include:

M oae o
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Sub-Lessor

Sub-Lessee

Size of Land

Location of Land/Reference ID

Term

Value of Land per Acre to be determined by PDMSD and external valuer. Any indicative
values determined hereunder shall be approved by Council every other year.
Proposed Upfront Premium

Annual Ground Rent per Acre (annual upward review 1-2%)

Rent Review (every 5 year of term granted)

Rent Escalation Rate (5-10%)

Use of the Land

Development Period (in general within 2 years of signing lease agreement, or shall be
negotiated or agreed)

. Payment Terms

Non-Refundable Commitment Fee (X amount per Acre due on Acceptance of Offer)
Premium Payment

Further Material Disclosures on applying entity

Date of Incorporation

List of subsidiaries, parent companies, related party companies/ names the company
has done business under since its formation

Principal Place of Business

Date of Receipt of (Unsolicited) interest in UG Lands

Date of Processing by Land Lease Committee

Authorized Business

Directors

Shareholders

Disclosure of Interests

Indicate applying entity has undergone PDMSD Due Diligence Checks

aa. Indicate applying entity has undergone Legal Due Diligence Checks
ab. Recommendation by Development Committee

11. Following approval or otherwise by Development Committee, all requests shall be forwarded with
relevant documentation justifying the reasons for the recommendations to the Finance and General
Purposes Committee for their consideration.

12. When proposed offers are approved by the Finance and General Purposes Committee, the Director
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of PDMSD and the Legal Counsel shall collaborate to develop the Offer Letters based on the Head
of Terms.

13. Offerletters shall also include the under listed in addition to the parameters in the Head of Terms:

1.

il

1il.

1v.

vi.

A statement indicating intended project to be completed within 2 years of the execution of
the Lease Agreement.

A statement indicating that extension to complete intended project may be granted depending
on the reasons provided.

The University reserves the right to reclaim the right of re-entry and re-possession of the land
after giving adequate notice to the lessee and time to remedy the breach or to make reasonable
compensation or both.

An Agreement for a Lease to be given upon the applicants’ acceptance of the terms.

The Right of Entry to be granted upon full payment of the premium; and

The possibility of the University engaging the services of a Land Surveyor to demarcate the
land that is being offered to the applicant at entity’s cost.

14. Offer Letters shall also indicate the terms of payment for the various premiums per land acreage

15.

16.

17.

1.

i1

111.

as below:

Leases of up to the Cedi equivalent of US$500,000.00 shall be treated as below:
a. 1% Instalment: 50% within 1 month of signing an agreement for a lease.
b. Delivery of Bank Guarantee to cover remaining payment.
c. Remaining 50% within three months of signing the lease agreement.

Leases of up to the Cedi equivalent of US$500,001.00 — US$1,000,000.00 as:
a. a.1stInstalment: 50% within 1 month of signing an agreement for a lease.
b. Delivery of Bank Guarantee to cover the 2nd and 3rd instalments.
c. 2nd Instalment: Additional 25% within three months of signing the lease agreement.
d. 3rd Instalment: Remaining 25% within six months of signing the lease agreement.

Leases of up to the Cedi equivalent of US$1,000,000.00 and above as:
a. 1st Instalment: 50% within 1 month of signing an agreement for a lease.
b. Delivery of Bank Guarantee to cover the 2nd and 3rd instalments.
c. 2nd Instalment: Additional 25% within six months of signing the lease agreement.
d. 3rd Instalment: Remaining 25% within 12 months of signing the lease agreement.

The Development Committee may negotiate with applying entities who request for discounts.
However, no discounted premium shall go below PDMSD and external valuers agreed recom-
mended lease prices.

Renegotiation on counter-offer to be concluded within two months of receipt by the University.

All monies generated from the lease of land shall be lodged in an account opened in UG’s account-
ing systems for lessees.

4.2 Ancillaries

1.

1.

The leasing process shall, subject to prevailing circumstances and availability of resources, be guided
by these timelines, which define when each stage of the process to leasing shall be completed:

Receipt of proposal, acknowledgment, and invitation to provide further information - 10
working days
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ii. Provision of all data for due diligence — one month

iii. Due Diligence Checks - 40 working days

iv. Approval by Development Committee, notification to applying entities of success after due
diligence, dispatch of Offer Letters - 20 working days

All recommended lease price shall be time specific and dependent on current economic, location
and neighbourhood conditions. It shall be confirmed by external valuers using usual and acceptable
valuation principles and approved by Council as and when prepared.

The University’s Leased Land shall not be used as security or collateral for any transaction.

Once agreement is signed, an accounting book for lessee shall be opened and invoices issued for
premium and ground rent 4 weeks before due

PDMSD shall ensure that any Bank Performance Guarantees submitted for the purpose of the
lease are regular

The non-refundable amount of the Cedi equivalent of US$10,000.00 per acre will be applied upon
non-payment of premium within a stipulated timeframe.

Failure to pay 95% payment within the stipulated timeframe shall constitute a ground for losing

the offer.

4.3 Commercial & Non-Commercial Transactions

1.

Pursuant to statute 2 of the Amendment Statutes, all negotiations for contracts, commercial and
non-commercial projects or transactions, joint ventures, partnerships, memorandum of under-
standings, collaborations and all transactions affecting and relating to the University. shall be
conducted by the relevant officers of the University including the Legal Counsel.

The Legal Counsel shall proffer legal advice on the validity of the transaction, capacity of the parties
to enter into the transaction and conduct a legal due diligence, as detailed in these Guidelines, before
negotiations are commenced or completed, whichever shall be appropriate in the circumstance.

Where appropriate and as shall be required by Act 663, the relevant contract, transaction or project
shall be concluded in accordance with Act 921, Act 806 and Act 663.

The terms of all concluded negotiations shall be reduced into writing by the Head of the Unit
leading the negotiations and approved by the Provost, Director or Head of the Administrative
Unit of the College, Directorate or Administrative Unit, respectively, and shall be submitted to the
Vice-Chancellor for final approval.

The approved terms shall be incorporated into an agreement drafted by the Legal Counsel or
incorporated into the agreement submitted by the other party and reviewed by the Legal Counsel
and executed in accordance with Signatory Matrix set out in the table below.

All negotiations and agreements arising from a procurement process shall be initiated, conducted
and concluded in accordance with Act 663 by the Logistics Directorate and the agreement submit-
ted to the Legal Counsel for review and subsequently executed by the Entity Head and Principal
Spending Officer.
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7.

8.

9.

All service, works and supply contracts initiated from the relevant Units shall be processed through
the Logistics Directorate and receive the approval of the Director of Logistics.

All requests for review or drafting of service, works, supply contracts or any contract arising from
procurement processes shall be delivered to the Legal Counsel with a certificate of compliance
signed by the Director of Logistics certifying that the award was made in compliance with the
procurement laws of Ghana and the regulations of the University.

All other requests for review or draft of service or other contracts shall be accompanied by an
approval or request memo from the Director of Logistics.

10. All requests for legal opinions, due diligence, transaction advisory, negotiations with third parties

11.

12.

13.

14.

or counterparties, advice, review or draft of agreements, MoUs or other transaction documents
must be channeled through the various heads as follows:

a. University Transactions, Management and Financial Issues — Vice-Chancellor

e

University Operational Issues - Registrar

Boards & Committees - Chairperson or Secretary under the authority of the Chairperson

a o

Colleges - Provosts or Deans & Directors through their Provosts
Research, Grants and Project Agreements - Pro-Vice-Chancellor (RID)
Administrative Directorates - Director of the Directorate

International Programmes Office - Dean

S

Library - Librarian
Students - Dean of Students
j. Any Other Unit - Head of Unit

— e

All requests or initiatives for the establishment of a subsidiary company or trust shall be submitted
to the Vice-Chancellor for approval and then to the Finance and General Purposes Committee for
final approval under Regulation 2.3 (a) i bullet numbered 6 of the University of Ghana Financial
Regulation and Governance.

Theresolutionordecision ofthe Finance and General Purposes Committee toestablish forthe University
or dissolve any subsidiary company or trusts shall be submitted to the University Council for approval
orratification, as the case may be, and shall then be communicated to the Legal Counsel, who shall upon
receiptcausetheestablishmentordissolution of the subsidiarycompanyortrustinaccordancewithlaw.

All transactions, commercial or non-commercial agreements, MoUs, projects and funding agree-
ments shall be executed by the authorized officer in accordance with the Signatory Mandate below
upon receipt of written opinion, certificate of compliance or legal risk assessment certificate issued
and signed by the Legal Counsel.

The engagement of external legal counsels or procurement of legal advice from any person other
than the Legal Counsel, shall be subject to a certification or opinion signed by the Legal Counsel
requiring the procurement of such engagement or advice from an external legal counsel.

4.4 Procurement Procedures

Procurement Procedures and thresholds are provided under Policy No. 1501, 1502, 1503 and 1504 of the
Financial Regulations and Governance Policy as well as Act 663 as may be amended or replaced from
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time to time, as well as the procedures set out under 4.5 hereunder.

4.5 Procurement of Goods, Works and Services

The following processes shall in accordance with Act 663 be followed in the procurement of Works,
Goods and Services.
1. Directorates/Colleges/Departments/Units shall budget for such expenditure in the year in
which the expenditure shall be incurred.

2. Directorates/Colleges/Departments/Units shall submit inputs for Procurement Plan for the
Year under Reference. Items, Services, and Works not captured in the Procurement Plan
would not be procured, as stipulated in Section, 21 of Act, 663, 2003, as amended.

3. Theimplementing Officers shall initiate the procurement process by sending a Memorandum
to the Vice-Chancellor for approval in the case of those in Central Administration. Those under
Colleges shall send their requests through their respective Provosts.

4. Invitation for Quotation shall be extended to at least three (3) Service Providers/Suppliers or
Contractors.

5.  The Service Providers/Suppliers/Contractors must possess and meet the following man-
datory requirements.
i. Valid Business Registration Certificate issued by the Registrar General’s Department
ii. Valid Tax Clearance Certificate
iii. Tender Security
iv. Valid VAT Certificate
v. Evidence of Public Procurement Authority Registration
vi. Valid SSNIT Contribution Certificate.

The Service Providers/Suppliers/Contractors should be registered with the Logistics Directorate.

6. After Opening Evaluation and Approval of the report by the appropriate authority, the lowest
evaluated Tenderer/Service Provider/Supplier/Contractor will be notified to provide the ser-
vice, supply the goods or execute the works through the issue of Award Notification Letter.

7. Upon the Acceptance of the Terms and Conditions of the Award, a Contract will be signed by
the University and the Service Provider/Supplier/Contractor concerned.

The Procurement Unit of Logistics Directorate should be involved in the process leading to
the selection of the successful tenderer Service Provider/Supplier/Contractor and subsequent
contract in order to avoid future audit query or payment being flagged by the Internal Audit
Directorate.

The practice of initiators of procurement attaching invoices to procurement requests should
cease because it is against the provisions of the Public Procurement Act, 663, 2003 as amended.

8. Delivery:

a. Goods
All goods delivered must be routed through stores and witnessed by the representatives of users, stores
staff and Internal Audit Directorate. After the inspection, the team shall fill and sign the Technical

Certification Form (TCF), Waybills and Invoices.
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b. Services
The delivery of the service must be witnessed by the user and staff of the Internal Audit Directorate
and the necessary records should be kept for future auditing.

c. Works
Execution of works contracts shall be witnessed and certified by representatives of Internal Audit,
Physical Development and Municipal Services (PDMS) and Logistics Directorates.

9. Payments Initiation:
a. Goods
After the delivery, inspection and certification of goods delivered, a Goods Receipts Note shall be
prepared through the ITS and forwarded to Finance for Payment.

The following documents should be attached to the Goods Receipts Note to be forwarded to Finance
for Payment.

i. A copy of the Contract Document

ii. Invoice

iii. Award Notification and Acceptance Letter

iv. Certification Form

b. Services

The following documents shall be attached to Request for Payment for Services.
i. A copy of the Contract Document
ii. Invoice
iii. Certification Form

c. Works
Request for Payment of Works Project should be accompanied the following
i. A copy of the Contract Document
ii. Award Notification and Acceptance Letter
iii. Payment Certificate issued by PDMS or Consultant.
iv. Certification Form

10. Violation of these Procedures attract a sanction of 2500 Penalty Units or a Term of Imprisonment
not less than five (5) years or both (Public Procurement Act 663, 2003, as amended, Section 92).

11. Officers implementing Projects/Research with defined Procurement and Financial Rules shall
liaise with the Director of Logistics to apply to the Public Procurement Authority (PPA) for ‘no
objection” to use the Procurement and Financial Rules of the donor as stipulated in Section 96,
of the Public Procurement Act, 663, 2003 and Public Procurement Amendment Act, 914, 2016

5. Signatory Mandate

5.1. The Signatory mandate (See Table below) is an extraction from the University Act and
Statutes of Officers and the mandates established by the Act and Statutes or to sign documents
or grant approval for action.

5.2.The Signatory Mandate also defines the powers of the various levels of authority within the
University and the extent or limits of the authority of persons who take actions and decisions
that bind the University or commits the University in one way or another.

5.3. [t covers the signing of MoU, a plethora of agreements, as well as mandate over appointment
and promotion of employees as specifically outlined in Schedule A of these Guidelines
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Xefpi> Wnkrexsv} Qerhexi

This Signatory Mandate shall be subject to Policy number 1600 of the Financial Regulations and
Governance Policy, the provisions of the Public Procurement Act, 2003 (Act 663) as amended by the
Public Procurement (Amendment) Act, 2016 (Act 914), the Public Procurement Manuals and the

University of Ghana Procurement laws and manual.

TYPE OF AGREEMENT SUBJECT MATTER, AUTHORISED SIGNATORY
CONTRACTING PARTY/
BENEFICIARY
1. Loan Agreement uG Vice-Chancellor with prior
ettvsze) svvewAgexisr T} Gsyrgp
(Sec. 23(6) of Act 806; Statute
4(9)(d) & (f).

2. Lease of University of Ghana lands. | Commercial/non-Commercial | Vice-Chancellor with prior

i.e. — Hostels. entities. ettysze) svvexiAgexisr sj Gsyrgn
(Statute 4(9)(c) & (f); Statute 34 (2)
(3).
3. Tenancy Agreements —on common | Commercial/non-Commercial | Vice-Chancellor (Statute 36).
areas of UG lands. i.e. — Banks, entities.
Restaurants.
4. General Contracts Commercial/Non- Vice-Chancellor with prior
Commercial entities. ettvsze) svvewAgexisr sj Gsyrgip
(Statute 34(2) & (3), Statute 4 (9)(f).

5. Edpewxsr Ekviiqirx? Yriziwmn}l uG Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Academic
wide Academic Faculty and erh Wxyhirx E feww- {mx1 tvisv
Student Support; Developmental ettvsze) svvewAgexisr sj Gsyrgip
Assistance; Technical Assistance; (Statute 34(2) & (3); Statute 4(9)(f)
Training Agreement; Twinning
Agreements, Student Exchanges
and other similar Agreements.

6. Gspiki Edpexsr Ekviiqirxl UG Colleges Provost with prior approval or
Faculty support vewiAgexisr sj Gsyrgm ,Wxexyxi

34(2) & (3); Statute 4(9)(f)

7. Grant Contracts; Research and YKIO YK WxeJ Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Research,
Grant Agreements; Intellectual Innovation and Development)
Property and Technology Transfer {ix1 twisv ettysze) sv vexiAgexisr
Agreements and other similar of Council (Statute 34(2) & (3);
Agreements Statute 4(9)(f)

8. Contracts & Arrangements Small scale enterprises, Vice-Chancellor (Statute 36)
concerning UG facilities and Commercial/Non-commercial
Employee services to UG (leases, ventures/entities
licences, & arrangements in respect
of UG lands, buildings, hostels,
traditional halls, markets & all
facilities and infrastructures)

9. Tenancy Agreements — Commercial/non-commercial | Vice-Chancellor or College
Departments/Schools/Institutes/ entities. Provost with prior written
Centres (Academic). i.e. - ettvsze) svvewAgexisr sj Zigil
Stationery stalls. Chancellor (Statute 36; Statute

5(11); Statute 27(6)

10. Licence Agreements - Departments/ | Commercial/Non- College Provost with prior written
Schools/Institutes/Centres commercial Ventures. ettvsze) svvewAgexisr sj Zigil
(Academic). i.e. — Restaurants, Chancellor (Statute 36; Statute
Sports Clubs & other Student 5(11); Statute 27(6)

Clubs.
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11. Consultancy Agreements

UG Centres/Institutes

Vice-Chancellor in accordance
with the Threshold under the
Public Procurement Act as
amended_

12. Procurement Contracts: Goods,
Works and Services

Investors, contractors,
suppliers

Vice-Chancellor in accordance
with the Threshold under the
Public Procurement Act as
amended

18. Contractual Transactions including | UG Vice-Chancellor with prior
those relating to land owned or ettysze) svvexiAgexisr sj Gsyrgn
Liph £} xbi Yrzivw} b fivirgi (Statute 34(2) & (3)
between 2,4 and 13)

14. I.T Services Agreements uG Vice-Chancellor

15. Other Employment Contracts in
relation to Senior Members up to
grade of Senior Lecturers

XIw i giyhiw s3giw {Iswi

ettsirxqinw evi wtigiAgep} tyszihih

for under the UG Act or Statute like

Members of Senior Management,

Professorial level Appointments, Deans,
Directors etc.)

Appointment of senior
member employee &
Independent Contractors
up to the grade of Senior
Lecturer.

Vice-Chancellor (Statute 22(4)

16.

Senior Members appointed by
Council under Act 806 and the
Statutes

Professorial appointment
by Council on the
recommendation of the
Appointment Board.

Registrar as Secretary to Council
(Statute 22(3)

17.

Employment Contracts in relation to
Nyrisv erh Wirsv Wxe [

Igtys}i iw3Gsrwegx Wxe [

Registrar on behalf of Vice-
Chancellor (Statute 22(5)

18. Secondment Agreements uG Vice-ChanceIIot with prior
ettvsze) svvexAgexisr sj Gsyrgmp
(Statute 52(1)

19. Post Retirement Contracts Retirees Registrar as Secretary to Council

(Statute 22(2)

20.

University Seal

Gywxsh} * E3 |irk

Vice-Chancellor (Statute 5(8)

21.

Gssvhirexsw 1 Jeqgirexisr SAgiwl
Ettsirxqirx sj sxliv SIgiw rsx
provided for in the Statute including
but not limited to Acting Deans,
Egmrk Hvigxsw erh sxliv S3giw
in Acting Capacities.

uG

Vice-Chancellor
(Statute 52(1)
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TO MAKE CORRUPTION A HIGH- RISK LOW- GAIN ACTIVITY

Broad Activity WtigiAg Indicator Frequency | Data Data Imple- Results
Activity jsvWtigiAg | of Data Source | Disaggre- | menting | (Status
Activity Collection gation Agency | of Imple-
menta-
tion)
Lead Collabo-
rating
2. Organize Organize | Number National, | CHRAJ,
regular public regular of pro- Regional, | PEF MDAs,
education and public grammes District, NCCE,
awareness pro- educa- organized Male & CSOs
grammes on the | tion and in MDAs. Female
evils of corruption | awareness
and the ethos of | pro-
anti-corruption grammes
in MDAs, gen- in MDAs.
eral public, and
private sector
organizations.
Organize | Number National, | CHRAJ, NCCE,
public of pro- Regional, | CSOs RCCs
educa- grammes District,
tion and organized Male &
awareness | for the Female,
pro- general Print,
grammes | public at Electron-
for the the region- ic, Social
general al level. Media
public na-
tionwide.
Organize | Number National, | CHRAJ, [CSOs
pro- of pro- Regional, | PEF
grammes | grammes District,
for Private | organized Male &
Sector for Private Female
na- Sector
tion-wide. | Organiza-
tions.
3. Create Public | Conduct Number of District CHRAJ, | NCCE,
fora /community | outreach |outreach GACC MDAs,
outreach/clinics pro- pro- MMDAs,
at District Level. [ grammes | grammes PSC
in select- | conducted
ed dis-
tricts.
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5. Mainstream Develop Anti-Cor-
Anti-Corrup- anti-cor- ruption,
tion, Ethics and ruption, Ethics and
Integrity in Public, | ethics and | Integrity
Private Sector, integrity Issues de-
Civil Society and | as part of | veloped
Religious Organi- | organi-
zation. zational
culture.
Publicise | Anti-Cor-
anti-cor- ruption,
ruption, Ethics and
ethics and | Integrity
integrity Issues
as part of | publicized.
organi-
zational
culture
6. Introduce Hold con- | Consulta-
modules and ele- | sultations | tions held.
ments to highlight | to intro-
and strengthen duce the
good ethical modules.
values in primary,
secondary and
tertiary, formal
and non-formal
education.
Develop Road map
road map | developed.
for intro-
ducing the
modules.
7. Develop Develop Guidelines
co-curricular guidelines | developed.
anti-corruption for the
activities, such as | establish-
integrity clubs in | ment of
Junior and Senior | integrity
High schools. clubs in
Junior
and senior
high
schools.

National, | CHRAJ, | Religious
Regional, | PSC, Bodies,
District NDPC, Private
GES/ Sector

MoE, Organi-

PEF sations,

MDAs
National, | CHRAJ, | Religious
Regional, | PSC, Bodies,
District NDPC, Private
GES/ Sector

MoE, Organi-

PEF sations,

MDAs

National GES, CSOs,
MoE CHRAJ,

AG,
Non-For-

mal
Education

Division

of GES,

NCCE,
MoF, A-G,

GNAP,

CHASS,

EOCO,

Private

Sector.

National, | CHRAJ, |GES,
regional Auditor | NCCE,
and Dis- | General. | Heads
trict. of Junior
& Senior

High
Schools,
MOF, Po-
lice, A-G.
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National,
regional
and Dis-
trict.

CHRAJ,
Auditor
General.

GES,
NCCE,
Heads
of Junior
& Senior
High
Schools,
MOF, Po-
lice, AG.

National,
regional &
District

CHRAJ,
& EOCO

GACC,
MOE,
MMDAs,
MDAs,
CSOs
Univer-
sities,
Educa-
tional in-
stitutions
&Schools.

Facilitate | At least 20
the forma- | integrity
tion and clubs es-
revamping | tablished
of integrity | in Junior
clubs in High
Junior and | schools
Senior na-
High tion-wide.
Schools
in each
Region.
200 se-
nior high
schools
integrity
clubs re-
vamped.
Provide educa- Hold con- | Number of
tional corruption | sultations | Consulta-
Akxrk gexiview | on devel- | tions held.
for public schools | opment of
and universi- anti-cor-
ties, and general | ruption
public. materi-
als for
schools
and uni-
versities.
Develop a | Road map
road map | developed.
for the
prepa-
ration of
anti-cor-
ruption
educa-
tional ma-
terials for
public
schools
and uni-
versities.
Develop Number of
and dis- materials
seminate | developed
anti-cor- and dis-
ruption seminated.
materials
for the
general
public,
schools,
universi-
ties and
the gener-
al public.

National,
regional &
District.

CHRAJ &
EOCO.

GACC,
MOE,
MMDAs,
MDAs,
CSOs
Univer-
sities,
Educa-
tional in-
stitutions
&Schools.

National,
regional &
District

CHRAJ,
& EOCO

GACC,
MOE,
MMDAs,
MDAs,
CSOs
Univer-
sities,
Educa-
tional in-
stitutions
&Schools.
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Schedule IV
GUIDANCE FOR ETHICAL DECISION-MAKING

Being a compliant and ethical institution is not just about having the right systems and processes in
place. It also involves nurturing shared values and assisting students, staff and management to make
the right decisions.

Whenever an employee of the University is faced with an ethical dilemma, they are to assess their
decisions with the following questions:

Isitlegal?

Do the University’s policies and procedures allow it, and what are the consequences?
Do my professional standards allow it?

What would my ethical role model do?

How would it look on the front page of tomorrow’s newspaper?

How does it make me feel?

Who are the stakeholders involved, and how are they affected by my decision?

To what extent will this affect the environment?

o T A ol o S A

Schedule V
OTHER FOREIGN LAWS TO BE CONSIDERED

A. THE U.S. FOREIGN CORRUPT PRACTICES ACT

The United Stated (U.S) Congress first enacted the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) in 1977 to
prohibit making corrupt payments to foreign officials or political organisations. Though it is only
imposed in the U.S, the FCPA is a law with international reach since businesses within its range may
violate the statute anywhere in the world. The anti-bribery and provision of the FCPA makes it unlawful
to bribe foreign government officials to obtain or retain business. The FCPA prohibits organisations
and individuals from bribing foreign government officials in the event of an application for grant in
the U.S or undertaking any activity in the U.S.

1. Violation of the FCPA

An act will be considered a violation of the FCPA if the following elements are present:
A Regulated Party (e.g. A domestic concern)

A domestic concern is any citizen, national or resident of U.S or any business entity that has its prin-
cipal place of business in the US or that is organised under the laws of a state, territory, possession or
commonwealth of the US.

The University may obtain grants or other forms of assistance from organisations in the U.S or insti-
tutions that operate under the laws of a state and territory of the U.S and is expected to comply with
the FCPA as a regulated party.

Obtaining grants from various sources may have implications for the University as it may be seen
as a third-party representative who acts on behalf of a regulated party. This relationship makes the
University liable under the same conditions as the regulated party.

2. Qeoiwe Te}qirxsvSJiv
FCPA prohibits paying, offering, promising to pay, or approving to pay or offer money or anything of
value to obtain or keep business, secure a grant or obtain items from a supplier. The FCPA provides
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examples of items defined as anything of value which staft and management must desist from paying,
approving to pay or offer, and it includes the following:

i. Money, cash and cash equivalent

ii. Benefit to third parties with a connection to government officials e.g. scholarship to foreign

official’s relative

iii. Travel expenses and non-monetary gifts

iv. Charitable contributions or donations

v. In-kind service.

3. E Jsvinkr S gnep

The term foreign official means any officer or employee of a foreign government, a public interna-
tional organisation or any department or agency, or any person acting in an official capacity. Foreign
officials may include:

i. Officials of public international organisations

ii. Employees of any organisation substantially owned or controlled by a foreign government

iii. Consultants who hold government positions

iv. Members of any branch of a foreign government institution.

v. Staffand management should avoid making payments to or offering anything of value to these

persons in the execution of their roles and in meeting the University’s strategic objectives.

4. With Corrupt Intent

This means that it must be envisioned that the payment persuades recipients to misuse their official
positions to provide an improper business advantage. Corrupt intent can also be inferred from an
evidence.

Staff and management should not pay, approve to pay or offer anything of value to a foreign official
with the aim of coercing the official to consider an application for grants and the provision of other
forms of technical assistance in research and education.

5. Jsvxli Tyvtswiw sjlirayirgirk e Fywnriww Tyvtswi

The payment must be made to assist the payer in obtaining or retaining businesses. It may cover
payments made to secure, obtain or retain a contract, influencing a procurement process, reducing
or eliminating customs duties, securing favourable tax treatments or circumventing license or permit
requirements.

6. Facilitation Payments

The FCPA contains an exception for certain types of payments made to accelerate the performance of
a routine governmental action by a foreign official, political party or party official that relates to the
performance of their ordinary and routine functions. These payments are usually made to ‘encourage’
and/or ‘motivate’ foreign officials to fast-track their mundane tasks. This exception is to allow compa-
nies to avoid liability where small amounts are paid to accelerate certain routine, non-discretionary
government acts.
Examples of facilitation payments include making payments for the expedition of the following:

i. Obtaining permits, licenses or other official documents to assist operations

ii. Processing governmental papers such as visas and work orders.

A person engages in fraudulent activity if they engage in dishonest deceitful conduct with the intent
to obtain or continue to receive some financial advantage, or benefit for himself/herself or for another
person, or property belonging to another, whether tangible or not. Fraudulent activity also includes
evading a liability or other obligation.
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In the University’s quest to prevent, detect and respond to fraud, this Policy provides some accompa-
nying information/instructions about what to look out for. Staff and management should be aware
of the following warning signs:

i. Complaints about the lack of authority

ii. Abnormal number of expense items, supplies or reimbursement to a particular employee
iii. Unwillingness to take leave days

iv. Irritability, suspiciousness, defensiveness, providing unreasonable responses to questions

v. Sloppy science: Suspicious lab practices, misuse of statistics, conclusions that do not conform
to desired hypothesis

vi. Repeated requests to purchase a particular item

vii. Complains about inadequate payment/borrowing monies from co-workers
viii. Excessive shortage of equipment and other items

ix. Lack of data transparency

x. Excessive peer/family pressure for success

xi. Frequent occurrence of missing documents

xii. Reluctance to provide information to auditors

xiii. Decisions are dominated by an individual or small group.

B. THE UK BRIBERY ACT

1. Background

The UK Bribery Act was passed in May 2010 and came into effect on 1 July 2011. The Bribery Act makes
it a crime to offer foreign public officials bribes or to accept bribes from them with regard to interna-
tional business transactions. The Bribery Act contains a general commercial bribery offense and also
creates a corporate offense in the event where business entities fail to prevent bribery.

Charges exist for acts committed outside the UK by individuals and entities with a close connection
to the UK, including any organisation incorporated under the law of any part of the UK.

Staff and students ought to comply with the UK Bribery Act due to the University’s partnership with
organisations in the UK, contracts with UK citizens or dealings with UK organisations responsible
for complying with the Bribery Act.

2. Failure to Prevent Bribery

The Bribery Act creates an offense for the failure of a corporate entity to prevent bribery committed by
associated persons. The University can be held liable for failing to prevent bribery offenses committed
by associated persons if the corrupt act was for the purpose of securing or retaining business or some
advantage. Any possible defence will be subject to having adequate procedures in place to prevent acts
of bribery by associated persons.

Adequate procedures here is defined as procedures that are reasonably designed, implemented and
enforced so that they will generally be effective in preventing and detecting criminal conduct.
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ETTIRHIN

The Nolan Committee’s Seven Principles of Public Life

Organization of the University of Ghana Finance Directorate

(@ S3gi sj xhi Hvigxsy sj Jirergi

(b) Secretariat

(c) ITS Support Unit

(d) Management Accounting & Payroll Section

(e) Financial Accounting & Treasury Management Section
i) Research & Project Management Section

(9) College Finance Administration

Transaction Procedure and Signatory Mandate

v Terminologies & Interpretations
V Formats for Management Reports
Vi Formats for Financial Statements
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ETTIRHIN N

THE NOLAN COMMITTEE’S SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE

Wipaiwwr iww
Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of the public interest. They should not
dosoin order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.

Integrity
Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organizations that might influence them in the performance of their official duties.

Objectivity
In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding contracts, or recom-
mending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public and must submit
themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

Openness

Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that they
take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the wider public
interest clearly demands.

Honesty

Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public duties and
to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest.

Leadership
Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership and example.
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ETTIRHIN Il ,e-

ORGANIZATION OF THE
UNIVERSITY OF GHANA’S FINANCE DIRECTORATE

Director

of Finance

User Support

Secretariat gl
Coordination

© Fmancial™ Research & College

S e Accounting &

Accgugnrlllg & Treasury Project Financial
ayro o SR Management Administration

ETTIRHIN I, F-
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING & PAYROLL SECTION

Deputy Director of Finance
E(’.\IanagementAccounting& Payroll)

Budget Preparation Payroll Managment

Management Reports Reconciliations
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ETTIRHIN W ,g-
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING & TREASURY MANAGEMENT SECTION

Deputy Director of Finance
(Financial Accounting &
Treasury Management)

Joint Venture/
Partnerships

Treasury Financial

Management Accounting Unit Accounts Payable Accounts Receivable]

ETTIRHIN N, h-
RESEARCH AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT SECTION

Deputy Director of Finance

(Research & Project Management)

Budget Preparation & Disbursements Report Preparation
Fund Raising & Dissemination

Purchase Order Processing Payment Processing

Project Bank
Reconciliations

Invoice Processing
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ETTIRHIN N, 1-
SECRETARIAT

Drivers/ Messengers/ Cleaners Records and Archival Staff

Administrative Assistant
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ETTIRHIN WM

TERMINOLOGIES & INTERPRETATIONS

Owing to the diverse nature of activities in the University of Ghana, a wide range of terms are in use
by committees, employees and other persons connected to the University. The following general terms
have been used in these Regulations.

These terms are to be understood as used in the University Statutes unless the context of the Regulation
requires otherwise. Further guidance is contained in the detailed financial procedures Manual.

Accounting system An organized set of manual and computerized accounting methods,
procedures, and controls established to gather, record, classify, analyze,
summarize, interpret, and present accurate and timely Arergiep data for
management decisions in the University.

Associate company Er irm} sziv {higl x1i Yrizivwix} lew wikriAgerx nrdyirgi2 WikriAgerx
irdyirgi wxli ts{iv xs tevagrtexi ir xli Arergiey erh stivexrk tspg}
decisions of the investee but not control or jointly control these policies. If
the University holds, directly or indirectly, 20% or more of the voting power
sj xi orziwxi 10 w ewwyqih xlex xki Yrzivwwi} lew wikriAgerx irdyirgi
unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case.

Assets Any item of economic value owned by the University especially that which
could be converted to cash. Examples are cash, accounts receivable,
inventory, s3gi 1uyrtqiryx, buildings, vehicles, and other property.

Bequest The transfers of wealth that occur upon a donor’s death including transfers
by means of a will or a trust.

Best practices A technique or methodology that, through experience and research, has
proven to reliably lead to a desired result.

Block grants Relates to a sum of money granted by the national government with only
general provisions as to the way it is to be spent. This can be contrasted with
e viwvigxih3 wtigiAg grant { ligl lew gsvi wxigx erh wtigiAg tvszmisrw sr
the way it is to be spent.

Budget E uyerxxexizi erh3sv Arergiepwxexiqirx tvitevih tvisvxs e hiArih tivish
sj xiq il sj xhi tspg} xs Fi tywyih hywrk xIi hiArih tivish? I irbngexiw
the resources that have to be made available or which are available for the
hoLivirx xewow xlex lezi xs Fi yrhiweoir xs exemr hiArih sfiigaziw sv
ksew or xki hiArih tiwsh?

Budget holder X1i tiwsrw eyxlsvi~ih xs mrgyv i|tirhmyvi yrhiv wtigAih eggsyrx
codes or budget centres.

Budgetary Control Methodical control of the University’s operations through establishment of
standards and targets regarding income and expenditure, and a continuous
monitoring and adjustment of performance against them.

Capital grant Funds allocated to support the physical infrastructure of the University.
These funds are designed to recognize that good-quality buildings,
equipment and information technology are essential to academic
excellence in teaching and research.

Capital projects Long-term investment project requiring relatively large sums to acquire,
develop, improve, and/or maintain (such as land, buildings, roads).
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Gewl as{ wxexiqgirx

Gewl as{ wxexigirw tvszthi e psso ex xhi gsziqirx sj gewl ir erh syx
of the University. These statements include information from operating,
irziwark) erh Arergirk egaznaiw Ew er erep}xigep xssil x1i wxexiqirx sj
gewl as{wmw ywijypor hixivonrmrk xbi whswxivg zrefmx} sj xbi Yoz ivwix}
particularly its ability to pay bills, handle expenses, and acquire assets.

Contract

an agreement which has been validly executed between the University and
any other Party(ies) and which is legally enforceable

Consolidated
Financial Statements

Gsgtvwi xli Arergiep wexiginw sj x1i Yrizivwi} erh mw wyfwihieviiw3
ewwsgrexiw ew ex x1i irh sj xli Arergiep }iew

Consultancy Services

wivzigiw L Ingl evi sj er irxipigxyey erh ehzmwsv} rexyvi tvszihih £} Avgqw
or individuals using their professional skills to study, design and organize
wtigiAg tvstigwl ehzwi gpi rwd gsrhygx xerrrk sv xverwjiv ors{pihki?

Consultant

a person, natural or corporate, dealing in the provision of services including
consultancy services.

Depreciation

A non-cash expense that reduces the value of an asset as a result of wear
and tear, age, or obsolescence. Most assets lose their value over time (in
other words, they depreciate), and must be replaced once the end of their
useful life is reached.

Employee

Senior members and employees of the University.

Endowment Fund

A special account that is established in order to generate revenue that
{m Fi ywih jsv e wtigiAg tyvtswi? Jyrhw sj xhw x}ti evi wsqixngiw
established to create an income stream to fund research projects, provide
wgIspew Irtw xs uyepAih ettpgerw) sv izir xs wytty} eth xs irbmzihyew
{Is et} xs x1i jyrh jsvArergiep lipt?

Extra-ordinary items

Extraordinary items are characterized by the fact that they arise from events
or transactions that are distinct from the University’s ordinary activities, are
not expected to recur frequently or regularly and are outside the control or
irayirgi sjxbi Yrizivwix}

Financial period/ year

Period for which an organization prepares its internal or external accounts
or the period covered by the Arergiep wxexiqirw. For internal accounts, it
may be a month or a quarter; for external accounts it is normally a period
of 12 months.

Financial and
management controls

E wiwiqgexg iJsw T} qgerekiqirx xs gsqtevi tivjsvgergi xs
predetermined standards, plans, or objectives in order to determine
whether performance is in line with these standards and presumably in
order to take any remedial action required to see that human and other
viwsyvgiw evi Finrk ywih or xhi gswx i figuzi erh i3grirx {e} tswwfpi
in achieving the university objectives.

Financial plan

X1 psrkixivg tvsgiww sj {mwig} gerekirk xIi yrizivwi} Arergiw ws xlex
it can achieve its’ goals.

Financial statement

Vigsvhw xlex tvszthi er arhigexisr sj xli Yriziwn}w Arergiep wxexyw?
XLivi evi jsyv Fewig x}tiw sj Arergep wxexi g irw Wxexiqirx sj Jirergie)
Tswixisr() Wxexiqirx sj Jirergiep Tivjsvgergil Wxexiqirx sj Gewl as{wl
Statement of Changes in Equity, and accounting policies and explanatory
notes.

Fundamental errors

Jyrheqirxep iwsw evi iwsw xlex lezi wygl e wkriAgerx i figx srxli
Arergiep wexiqirw sj sri sv gsvi tuisv tivishw xlex xIswi Arerge)
statements can no longer be considered to have been reliable at the date
of their issue.
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Goods

objects of every kind and description including raw materials, products
and equipment and objects in solid, liquid or gaseous form, and electrici-
ty, as well as services incidental to the supply of the goods if the value of
those incidental services does not exceed that of the goods themselves;

IAS

International Accounting Standards

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRIC

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

Investment

Er i|tirhmxyvi srxli gviexsr sv eguymwmisr sj Al ih ewwixwl 1rzi rxswiw
valuable physical stocks or securities;

Lease

E piewi w e pikep} irjsvgiefpi gsrwegx {Ingl hiAriw x1i vipexsrwlit Fi-
tween an owner (the lessor) and a renter (the lessee). A typical lease spells
out all of the terms involved in a land including the length of time a lessee
may use it and the rights and obligations of the parties. A ‘Lease’ enables
one party to convey an interest in land or property to another for a speci-
Aih xiqi 1r vixyvr jsv e tivishig te}qirx

Liabilities

The university’s legal debts or obligations that arise during the course of
business operations. Liabilities are settled over time through the transfer of
igsrsqig FiriAwrgyhirk gsri}) ksshw sv wivzigiw?

License

a contract by which a permit is given by the university to another of land
or property belonging to the university for use and within the terms as spe-
grAgep} hiArihor x1i gsrivegx?

Memorandum of Un-
derstanding (MOU)

a document that describes the broad outlines of an agreement that two or
more parties have reached. MOUs communicate the mutually accepted
expectations of all the parties involved in a negotiation. While not legally
binding, the MOU heralds the signing of a binding contract to deal with
wtigiAg ewtigw erh mwyiw tvszihih ir xli QsY?

Nolan Principles

X1i wizir twrgrtpiw thireAih £} x1i Gsqqmxii sr Wxerhevhw ir Ty g
Life

Public Funds

The Consolidated Fund, the Contingency Fund and any other fund estab-
lished by or under an Act of Parliament.

Risk management

Risk management is a logical process or approach that seeks to eliminate
or at least minimize the level of risk associated with a business operation.
Iwwiraep}) xhi tvsgiww thirsAiw er} x}ti sj wxyeasr xlex gsyph viwyp ir
damage to any resource within the possession of the company, including
personnel, then take steps to correct factors that are highly likely to result
in that damage.

Secondment the assignment of a senior member of the University to another organiza-
tion whether public or private for a temporary period as provided under
Statute 23 (1) of the Statutes.

Segment A recognized component of the University that is engaged in undertaking

egxiznniw erh tvszihirk wivzigiw xlex evi wyfnigx xs viwow erh vixyvrw hifiv-
ent from those of other segments.

Statement of Finan-
cial Position

E Arergiey wexiqirx xlex wygqgevi~iw xbi Yrizivwndw ewwixw) pefmoiw
erh fuyn} ex e wtigiAg tsirx ir xiqi2 X1i wxexiqirx sj Arergiep tswixisr
gives an idea as to what the University owns and owes, as well as the
amount invested in it.

Page | 136




University of Ghana | Financial Regulations & Governance Policy _

Wxexiqirx sj Arergiep
performance

E Arergiep wexiqirx xlex giewyviw x1i yrizivwi}w Arergiep tivisvgergi
sziv e wtigiAg eggsyrxrk tivish? Jirergiep) tivisvgergi w ewwiwwih ¥}
giving a summary of how the university incurs its income and expens-
es through both operating and non-operating activities. It also shows the
rix tvsAx sv psww irgywih sziv e wtigiAg eggsyrark tivish) x}tigen} sziv
e Awgep uyevxiv sv }iew

Subsidiary company

Entities in respect of which the University owns shares, wholly or partly or
whereby virtue of the exercise of a power, directly or indirectly, can appoint
or remove or can cause the appointment or removal of all or not less than
half of its directors.

Subvention

E wyfwih ¥ kverx sj Arergiep eth kizir £} e kSzivrgirx xs er irwixyxisr2

Technical Services

services which are tendered and contracted on the basis of performance
of a measurable physical output such as drilling, mapping, aerial photog-
raphy, surveys, seismic investigations, maintenance of facilities or plant
and similar operations

Transactions

er izirxxlex lew e Arergiep iqtpgensr sv sxbiv{mwi sr xIi Yrzivwi} sv
xlex gsggmw xhi Yrizivwi} xs tivjsvg giveir wtigiAih sv yrwtigiAih
obligations in relation to Land, Property, Agreements generally and Mem-
orandum of Understanding (MoU).

True and fair view

Words used in a company’s accounts by auditors to show that they think
the accounts give correct and complete information about a company’s
Arerguep wixyexisr?

UGEL

University of Ghana Enterprises Limited

Units

All establishments of the University including Colleges, Institutes, Centres,
Schools, Directorates and Departments.

Value for money

Value for Money (VM) is the term used to assess whether or not an organ-
wexisr lew sfeirih xli geliqyq FiriAx jysq xli ksshw erh wivzigiw
it acquires and/ or provides, within the resources available to it. It not
only measures the cost of goods and services, but also takes account of
xki qu] sj uyepx} gswx) viwsyvgi ywi0 Axriww jsv tyvtswil xiqipriww erh
convenience to judge whether or not, when taken together, they constitute
good value. Achieving VM may be described in terms of the ‘three Es’ -
igsrsq} idgiirg} erh i figuziriww

VCG Vice-Chancellors’ Ghana

Virement The agreed transfer of money from one budget heading, to which it has
been allocated, to another budget heading.

Works work associated with the construction, reconstruction, demolition, re-
pair or renovation of a building or structure or surface and includes site
tvitevexsr( i]gezexsri ivigusr) ewwi g fi} irwkepexisr sj tierxt Ajirk sj
iuyrtqirx erh pehrk syx sj gexiviemd higsveusr erh Armlirk) erh er}
incidental activity under a procurement contract.

IPSAS The term IPSAS includes all applicable International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) Interpretations issued by the Interna-
tional Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

FGPC Finance and General Purposes Committee

NPRA National Pensions Regulatory Authority

PDMSD Physical Development and Municipal Services Directorate

PFMA Public Financial Management Act

PPA Public Procurement Authority
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SSNIT Social Security and National Insurance Trust
uG University of Ghana
VC Vice-Chancellor

ETTIRHN IiZ

FORMATS FOR MANAGEMENT REPORTS

TABLE MANAGEMENT REPORTS
1 Consolidated Expenditure Variance Reports
2 Analysis by Category of Income & Expenditure
3 Units Expenditure Variance Reports
4 Analysis by Individual Unit Results
5 Analysis of Expenditure by Activity
6 Analysis of personnel cost and other operating expenses by function
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“** Similar reports to be prepared for each College, Faculty, School, Institute, Directorate.

Xefpi & Ereppwmw £} Gexiksv} sjlirgsqi * 1] tirhmyvi
Szivani>
Note Revenue /Expenditure category YTD Projected Comments
variance annual
variance
Revenue
1 Government subvention & grants
2 Academic fees and other student
charges
3 Research Grants & Contracts
4 Other income
5 Endowment and Investment income
Expenditure
6 Iqtis}ii FiriAx
7 Academic costs
8 Research & Contract costs
9 Fywewiiw * Arergiep eth
10 Other operating expenses
11 Total Admin & Operating expenses
12 Infrastructure, maintenance, etc.
13 Other Expenses
Recurrent Operating Target
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Rsxi> {1ir tviwirxrk }syv ereppwmw epf e}w jsgyw sr xhi erryep tngxyvil ywnrk xIi tewx ,}lxlh-
ew e kynhi xs irjsvqnrk }sy {lex ger viewsrefp} i i|tigxih £} }ievirh?

Xefpi 7> Yrix 1| tirhmyvi Zewiergi Vitsw

Evie> Gspiki sj Liexl Wgnirgiw

Jan - April 2012 Full Year 2012 Note Full
Year
2011
Actual |Orig | Vari- % Forecast | Orig | Variance | % Actual | %
Plan [ance Var Plan Var Hif xs
2012

Government sub-
vention & grants

Academic fees
and other student
charges

Research Grants
& Contracts

Other income

Endowment
and Investment
income

Total Income

Personnel Costs

Academic costs

Research & Con-
tract costs

Fyweviiw * Arer-
cial aid

Other operating
expenses

Total Admin &
Operating ex-
penses

Infrastructure,
maintenance, etc.

Other Expenses

Asset Costs (De-
preciation)

Total Expenditure

Recurrent Op-
erating Surplus/
HiAgm

Recurrent Op-
erating Surplus/
HiAgn) sj Xsxep
Income
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Xefpi 8 Ereppww tiv lirhnzthyep Yrmx Viwypw

AREA Y-T-D

Actual | Plan

Variance

Actual | Note

2011

Vari-
ance

Forecast
2012

Original
Plan

College of Health Sciences

College of Basic and Applied
Sciences

College of Humanities

College of Education

Institutes/ Schools/ Centres

Directorates™**

Others

Assets

TOTAL

COLLEGE OF HEALTH SCIENCES COLLEGE OF HUMANITIES

School of Dentistry

University of Ghana Business School

School of Medicine

Centre for European Studies

School of Biomedical and Allied Health Sciences

School of Law

School of Public Health

School of Arts

Noguchi Memorial Institute for Medical Research

School of Languages

School of Nursing

School of Social Sciences

School of Pharmacy

School of Performing Arts

Center for Tropical, Clinical Pharmacology and Thera-
peutics

Institute of Statistical, Social and Economic Re-
search (ISSER)

COLLEGE OF BASIC AND APPLIED SCIENCES

Institute of African Studies (IAS)

School of Biological Sciences

Regional Institute for Population Studies (RIPS)

School of Physical and Mathematical Sciences

Centre for Migration Studies (CMS)

School of Agriculture

Language Centre

School of Engineering Sciences

Centre for Social Policy Studies (CSPS)
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School of Veterinary Medicine

Piksr Girwi jsvirxivrexsre) Efenw erh Hrigsqe-
cy (LECIAD)

School of Nuclear and Allied Sciences

University of Ghana Accra City Campus

Institute of Environmental and Sanitation Studies

Centre for Gender Studies and Advocacy

Institute of Applied Science and Technology

Centre for Urban Management Studies

Biotechnology Research Center

Centre for Asian Studies

West African Centre for Crop Improvement

Centre for Latin American Studies

West African Centre for Cell Biology of Infectious
Pathogens

Centre for Aging Studies

Centre for Climate Change and Sustainability Studies

Centre for Merian Institute for Advance Studies in
Africa

School of Information and Communication Studies

School of Education and Leadership

Biotechnological Centre

School of Continuing and Distance Education
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Table 5

UNIVERSITY OF GHANA

EREPIWIW SJ INTIRHIXYVI F] EGXIZIX]

Other Bursaries . . .
Personnel . . Depreci- | Financial
Costs | OPerating | &Finan- | = o Costs
Costs cial Aid
Academic Departments XX XX XX XX XX
Research Grants & Con- XX XX XX XX XX
tracts
Total Teaching & Research \\ \\ \\ \\ \\
Academic Services XX XX XX XX XX
Central Administration/ Ser- XX XX XX XX XX
vices
General Educational Expen- XX XX XX XX XX
diture
WxeJ erh Wxyhirx Jegmmniw XX XX XX XX XX
Premises (repairs & mainte- XX XX XX XX XX
nance)
Residences, catering and XX XX XX XX XX
conferences
Other services rendered XX XX XX XX XX
Other Activities XX XX XX XX XX
Total Non- teaching & Re- \\ \\ \\ \\ \\
search
XSXEP INTIRHIXYV \\\ \\\ \\\ \\\ \\\
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TABLE 6

UNIVERSITY OF GHANA
EREPJWIW SJ 1QTPS] I FIRIJIXW ERH SXL1V STIVEXIRK INTIRWIW F]
FUNCTION

Year ended 315t Year ended 315t

December xxxx December xxxx

Academic Supporting Total Academic Supporting Total

related Services GH¢ related Services GH¢

GH¢ related GH¢ related cost

cost GH¢
GHc¢

Note XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
..... Employee
FiriAx
Emoluments XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
Pension XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
payments
Book and XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
research
allowance
Total XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
Note....Other \\\\ \\\\ N\\N\\  \\\\ A\\\\ \\\\
Operating
expenses
Repairs and XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
maintenance
Administrative XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
and general
expenses
Bulk Utility XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
WxeJ {ipjevi XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
Examination XXXX - XXXX XXXX - XXXX
expenses
Admission XXXX - XXXX XXXX - XXXX
expenses
Local travel XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
costs
Selection and  XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX XXXX
training
Foreign travel ~ XXXX XXXX XXXX  XXXX XXXX XXXX
costs
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TABLE 7

UNIVERSITY OF GHANA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
JSV XLI1 JIEV IRHIH 75 HIGIQF IV 64\\15
Consolidated | The University
Notes [ 2xx-1 2xx0 2xx 2xx0

REVENUE
Revenue from non-ex-
change transactions
Government subvention and \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
grants
Research grants and con- \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
tracts
Fyweviiw erh Arergiep eth A\\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Revenue from other non-ex- ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
change transactions

\\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Academic fees and other \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
student charges
Interest Income A\\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Revenue from other ex- ANNNN XXXX ANNNY XXXX
change transactions

ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Total revenue ANNNN XXXX ANNNY XXXX
INTIRWIW
Iqus}ii FiriAw gsw
Operating expenses \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Research grants and con- \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
tracts expenses
Fyweviiw erh Arergiep eth \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Finance costs \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Depreciation and amortisa- \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
tion

ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Total expenses
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ANANY XXXX ANANY XXXX
Share of Associate’s sur-
toyw3, hiAgnx-
ANANY XXXX ANANY XXXX
Wyvtpyw3,hiAgix- jsv x1i }iev
ANANY XXXX ANANY XXXX
ExxviFyxefpi xs>
Owners of the controlling
entity
Non-controlling interests \\\\ \\\\ \\\\ XXXX
AN XXXX A\ XXXX
AN [ XXXX ANNNN XXXX
TABLE 8
UNIVERSITY OF GHANA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2xx-1
Consolidated | The University
As at 31 As at 31 De-
December cember
Notes | 2xx-1 2xx0 2xx1 2xx0
ASSETS
Non-current assets
\\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Property, plant and equip-
ment
Investment property \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Intangible assets \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Quoted securities \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Investment in subsidiary \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Due from related parties \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Other non-current assets ANNAN XXXX ANNAN XXXX
Total non-current assets ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Current Assets
Inventories \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Receivables from exchange \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
transactions
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Receivables from non-ex- \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
change transactions

Investments \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Cash and cash equivalents ANNAN XXXX ANNAN XXXX
Total current assets ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Total Assets ANANN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Restricted funds \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Igtys}ii FiriAx sfukexsr \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Provisions \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Deferred tax ANNAN XXXX ANNAN XXXX
Total non-current liabilities ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Current liabilities

Borrowings \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Due to related parties \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Accounts payable and ac- A\\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
crued liabilities

Provisions AN\ XXXX A\ XXXX
Total current liabilities ANNAN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Net Assets ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
NET ASSETS

Eggyqypexih wyvtiyw3, hiAgix- \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
General reserve fund \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
UG Endowment fund \\\\ XXXX \\\\ XXXX
Revaluation reserve ANNNN XXXX ANNNN XXXX
Total net assets ANNNN XXXX ANNAN XXXX
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TABLE 9
UNIVERSITY OF GHANA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
EWEX 75 HIGIQF IV 64\\15
Year ended 31 December 2xx-1 Year ended 31 December 2xx0
Accumulated | General UG Accu- General re- | UG En-
surplus reserve Irhs{qirx | mulated |serve fund |hs{qirx

fund fund surplus fund
At 1 January
Wyvepyw3 ,hiAgn-jsv | \\\\ \\\\ \\\\ XXXX XXXX XXXX
the year
Initial recognition of | \\\\ \\\\ \\\\ XXXX XXXX XXXX
assets
Transfers to/from ac- | \\\\ \\\\ \\\\ XXXX XXXX XXXX
cumulated surplus
Changes in the value | \\\\ \\\\ \\\\ XXXX XXXX XXXX
of assets
Balance at ANNNN AN ANN\N XXXX XXXX XXXX
31 December

TABLE 10
UNIVERSITY OF GHANA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
JSV XLI JI1EV IRHIHHIGIQFIV 64\\15
Consoli- The Uni-
dated versity
Notes |2xx-1 2xx0 2xx-1 2XX0

Cash generated from operating \\\\ XXXX \\\\ \\\\
activities
Gewl as{w jvsq rziwxark egxizi-
ties
Purchase of property, plant and ,\\\- (XXX) ,\\\- ,\\\-
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, ANNNN XXXX ANNNN ANNNN
plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activi- AN (XXX) A\ N\- AN\N\-
ties
Gewl as{w jvsq Arergirk egxizi-
ties
Interest received \\\\ XXXX \\\\ \\\\
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Finance cost paid ,\\\- (XXX) ,\\\- ,\\\-
Borrowings drawdowns \\\\ XXXX \\\\ \\\\
Borrowings repaid ,\\\- (XXX) ,\\\- ,\\\-
General and special research funds \\\\ XXXX \\\\ \\\\
received

General and special research funds AN\N\- (XXX) ANNG AN\N\-
used

Rix gewl kirivexih jysq Arerg- ANNNN XXXX ANNAN ANNNN
ing activities

Net increase in cash and cash \\\\ XXXX \\\\ \\\\
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at be- AN XXXX N\ N\
ginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end ANNAN XXXX ANNAN ANNAN
of year
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Students Welfare XXXX - XXXX  XXXX -

expenses

Animal and Crop  XXXX - XXXX  XXXX -

Prod. Cost

Audit fees - XXXX XXXX - XXXX

Total \\\\ \\\\ N\\\N  \\\WN\ A\\\\
ETTIRHIN\ Z

FORMATS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XXXX

XXXX

XXXX
\\\\

TABLE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7

Statement of Financial Performance
8

Statement of Financial Position
9

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
10

Cash Flow Statement

Rsxiw xs x1i Arergiep wxexi i rw
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NOTES

General information

University of Ghana is a public University which was founded as the University College of the Gold Coast
by Ordinance on 11 August 1948. In 2010, it was established by an Act of parliament, University of Ghana
Act, 2010 (Act 806) with the aims to provide higher education, undertake research, disseminate knowledge
and foster relationships with outside persons and bodies in accordance with laid down principles. It is
located in Legon and its postal address is P. O. Box LG 25, Legon Accra.

Date of Publication - 15th December 2020

Assented to in December 2020 under the hand of

Professor Yaw Twumasi Professor Ebenezer Oduro Owusu
Chairman of Council, University of Ghana Vice-Chancellor, University of Ghana
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